
 
 
 

June 23, 2025 Regular Board Meeting – 6:30 p.m. 
 
 

 

 

BOARD MEETING AGENDA 
The following order of business may be changed by majority vote of the Board at any meeting.     

 

 
Harry L. Wheeler Community Center and Administrative Offices    ⚫    24076 F.V. Pankow Boulevard, Clinton Township, Michigan 48036 

 
 
 

   * Indicates Board Action Needed   ** Indicates Roll Call Vote Needed 

A. Call to Order, Pledge of Allegiance, Roll Call 

B. *Approval of Agenda for the June 23, 2025 Regular Board Meeting 

C. Presentations 
1. Little Inventors 
2. Athletics College Signings 
3. State Qualifying Athletes 

D. Human Resources – High School Principal Recommendation 

1. *LCHS-N Principal – Employment Recommendation 

E. Superintendent’s Report 

1. District Update 
2. Choir 

****************************************BREAK**************************************** 

F. Hearing of School District Patrons 
Please note: The Board will provide 30 minutes for public comment and speakers will be asked to limit their comments to 5 minutes. If you did 
not have a chance to speak, the Board will provide additional time at the end of the meeting for public comment. 
 

G. Recommendations for Expulsion 
1. **Closed Session – Motion to enter closed session pursuant to Section 8(1)(b) of the Open Meetings 

Act to consider the dismissal, suspension, or disciplining of a student if the public body is part of the 
school district, intermediate school district, or institution of higher education that the student is 
attending, and if the student or the student's parent or guardian requests a closed hearing. 

2. **Recommendation for Expulsion of Student #0406 
3. **Recommendation for Expulsion of Student #0409 
4. **Recommendation for Expulsion of Student #0413 
5. **Recommendation for Expulsion of Student #0419 

H. ** Consent Agenda 
Please note: Unless removed from the Consent Agenda, items identified within the Consent Agenda will be acted on at one time. 

1. Budget Report 
2. Payment Registers 
3. Purchases (None this month) 
4. Summary of Investments & Wire/ACH Transfers 
5. Employment Recommendations 
6. Student Travel Requests 
7. Board Meeting Minutes 

a. April 14, 2025 Committee of the Whole Minutes 
b. April 28, 2025 Regular Meeting Minutes 
c. May 12, 2025 Committee of the Whole Minutes 
d. May 19, 2025 Regular Meeting Minutes 
e. May 20, 2025 Special Board Meeting Minutes 

8. Amended Resolution to Add Middle School East as a Voting Precinct 

I. Curriculum and Instruction 
1. *Michigan High School Athletic Association (MHSAA) Resolution 

J. Business Office 
1.  **Truth-in-Budget Hearing 

Continued on reverse → 



 
 
 

June 23, 2025 Regular Board Meeting – 6:30 p.m. 
 
 

 

 

BOARD MEETING AGENDA 
The following order of business may be changed by majority vote of the Board at any meeting.     

 

 
Harry L. Wheeler Community Center and Administrative Offices    ⚫    24076 F.V. Pankow Boulevard, Clinton Township, Michigan 48036 

  
2. *Recommendation to Accept the Final Amended 2024-2025 Budget 
3. *Recommendation to Accept the 2025-2026 Original Budget 
4. *Recommendation to Approve the District’s Annual Renewal of Insurance with M.A.I.S.L. 
5. *Recommendation for Workers Compensation Excess Insurance Policy 

K. Human Resources  
1. *LCEA – Letter of Understanding 

L. Operations 
1. *Lawn Mower Purchase for Grounds 
2. *Floor Machine for Yacks Elementary 
3. *Pool Dehumidification Project 

M. Other Matters 
1. Letter to Prosecutor 
2. MASB Membership for 2025-2026 School Year 

N. Hearing of School District Patrons Follow-up 

O. Board Member Comment 

P. *Adjournment 



Keith Howell 
SUPERINTENDENT  

 

HUMAN RESOURCES 
 

Michael W. Van Camp 
ASSISTANT SUPERINTENDENT 

FOR HUMAN RESOURCES 

 

Anita Dzieszkowski 
SUPERVISOR FOR HUMAN RESOURCES 

 
24076 F.V. PANKOW BLVD. 

CLINTON TOWNSHIP, MI  48036-1304 
586.783.6300  

586.783.6311 FAX 
WWW.LC-PS.ORG 

BOARD OF EDUCATION 
 

Adam Lipski Al Doss Sharon Ross John Da Via Jeffrey Cyprus Sandra Hernden Shane Sellers 
PRESIDENT VICE PRESIDENT SECRETARY TREASURER TRUSTEE TRUSTEE TRUSTEE 

 

NOTICE OF NONDISCRIMINATION.  It is the policy of L’Anse Creuse Public Schools not to discriminate on the basis of race, color, religion, national origin or ancestry, gender, age, disability, height, weight or marital status 

in its programs, services, activities, or employment.  Inquiries related to nondiscrimination policies should be directed to: Civil Rights Coordinator, Assistant Superintendent for Human Resources, L’Anse Creuse Public Schools, 

Harry L. Wheeler Community Center and Administrative Offices, 24076 F. V. Pankow Blvd., Clinton Township, MI 48036, and (586) 783-6300. Nondiscrimination inquiries related to disability should be directed to:  Section 504 

Coordinator, Director for Special Education, (586) 783-6300. 
 

HARRY L. WHEELER COMMUNITY CENTER 

AND ADMINISTRATIVE OFFICES 

 

 

 
 
 

 

Initiator:  Mike Van Camp 

  

Board Meeting: June 23, 2025 

 

Agenda Item:  Employment Recommendations 

  

Board Action Required     CONFIDENTIAL 

Informational Material 

 Other_______________________ 

 

 

Background:   

 

The L’Anse Creuse High School North - Principal vacancy was posted, both internally through 

our district application website and externally through the Michigan Association of Secondary 

School Principals (MASSP) and the Michigan Association of Superintendents & Administrators 

(MASA). The position was posted for ten business days, during which we received 21 

applications. After screening the applicants’ qualifications, 7 candidates were selected for 

interviews. 

 

Current Status:   

 

Nick Ellul is the recommended candidate for the L’Anse Creuse High School - North Principal 

position. Nick brings with him eight years of administrative experience as an Associate Principal 

at L’Anse Creuse High School - North. He has a strong passion for supporting students, staff, 

and families. Previously, Nick served as the District’s K-12 Math and Science Instructional 

Coach. He also has 15 years of experience at L’Anse Creuse High School as a Math and Science 

teacher. He is a dynamic, collaborative, and solutions-oriented leader with a growth mindset, 

strong communication skills, and a passion for curriculum design and school improvement. His 

ability to build strong relationships with staff, students, and the community makes him an 

excellent fit for this role. Nick holds an Education Specialist Degree in Curriculum and 

Instruction from the University of Michigan and will be an asset to the students, staff, and 

community at L’Anse Creuse High School - North. 

 

Future Direction (Notes or Comments)/Recommended Motion:   

 

Administration is recommending that the Board motion to approve the recommendation for Mr. 

Nick Ellul as the Principal for L’Anse Creuse High School - North, and with the Board 

President’s permission, allow him to make a few remarks. 

 

 

MV/jd 

D.1 

http://www.lc-ps.org/


Keith Howell 
 SUPERINTENDENT 

  

BUSINESS OFFICE 
 

 

Kathy Konon, CPA 
                 ASSISTANT SUPERINTENDENT FOR  
                         BUSINESS AND OPERATIONS 

 

Beth Disbrow 
                                       DIRECTOR FOR FINANCE  

 
24076 F.V. PANKOW BLVD. 

CLINTON TWP., MI  48036-1304 
586.783.6300  

586.783.6312 FAX 
WWW.LC-PS.ORG 

BOARD OF EDUCATION 
 

Adam Lipski   Al Doss    Sharon Ross         John Da VIa Jeffrey Cyprus Sandra Hernden Shane Sellers 
PRESIDENT    VICE PRESIDENT     SECRETARY           TREASURER TRUSTEE TRUSTEE  TRUSTEE 

 

NOTICE OF NONDISCRIMINATION.  It is the policy of L’Anse Creuse Public Schools not to discriminate on the basis of race, color, religion, national origin or ancestry, gender, age, disability, height, weight or marital status 

in its programs, services, activities, or employment.  Inquiries related to nondiscrimination policies should be directed to: Civil Rights Coordinator, Assistant Superintendent for Human Resources, L’Anse Creuse Public Schools, 

Harry L. Wheeler Community Center and Administrative Offices, 24076 F. V. Pankow Blvd., Clinton Twp.,, MI 48036, and (586) 783-6300. Nondiscrimination inquiries related to disability should be directed to:  Section 504 

Coordinator, Director for Special Education, (586) 783-6300. 
 

HARRY L. WHEELER COMMUNITY CENTER AND ADMINISTRATIVE OFFICES 

 

 

 

  
 

 
 

H.1. 

 
Initiator:  Kathy Konon, CPA  
 
Board Meeting: June 23, 2025 
 
Agenda Item:  Budget Report & Quarterly Budget Update 
  

 Board Action Required     CONFIDENTIAL 
 Informational Material 
 Other       _______________________ 

 
 
 
Background: 
This report provides the Board with a monthly expenditure overview by fund for the 2024-2025 
fiscal year, showing the original total budgeted expenditures, actual expenditures month-to-
date, year-to-date encumbrances, and the remaining balance in each category as of the current 
month. In addition, the Comparative Statement compares current year-to-date revenues and 
expenditures with those of the prior year and displays the current year’s Board-approved 
budget alongside the year-to-date projected budget. 

 
Current Status: 
Attached is the Budget Report as of April 30, 2025. Due to the upcoming audit, the next Quarterly 
Budget Update will cover the period ending September 30, 2025. 

 
Future Direction (Notes or Comments)/Recommended Motion: 
This report is a component item of the consent agenda and Administration recommends that 
the Board motion to approve the budget report and quarterly budget as presented.  
 
 
KK/jh 
 

http://www.lc-ps.org/


 5/15/25  11.30.49                          EXPENSE SUMMARY BY FUNCTION                                  LANHAUFFJU       FX0288
L'ANSE CREUSE PUBLIC SCHOOLS    PERIOD ENDING  04/30   FISCAL PERIOD 10   YEAR 2025       WORKING                   PAGE         1

AMEND MAR         ACTUAL          ACTUAL       ENCUMBRANCES      REMAINING     %
FUNC DESCRIPTION                             BUDGET        MO TO DATE      YR TO DATE    AS OF  5/15/25      BALANCE   UNEXPEND

11 GENERAL FUND

 111 Elementary Instruction                  28,904,321.00    2,176,044.12   20,067,111.96    6,276,287.54    2,560,921.50    8.85 %
 112 Middle/Jr. High                         14,850,711.00    1,061,563.56   10,300,716.53    3,098,900.31    1,451,094.16    9.77 %
 113 High School                             21,864,196.00    1,941,149.63   15,216,315.25    4,596,915.96    2,050,964.79    9.38 %
 119 Summer School/Basic Pgm                    247,829.00             .00      104,837.21             .00      142,991.79   57.69 %
 122 Special Education                       10,672,233.00      831,045.75    7,490,598.85    2,084,855.47    1,096,778.68   10.27 %
 125 Compensatory Education                            .00             .00             .00             .00             .00     .00 %
 127 Career & Tech Education                  2,820,615.00      225,783.86    1,900,672.35      532,597.74      387,344.91   13.73 %
 211 Truancy/Absenteeism Serv                   296,324.00       27,314.89      241,779.24       12,382.61       42,162.15   14.22 %
 212 Guidance Services                        2,213,521.00      169,135.15    1,544,803.31      471,758.03      196,959.66    8.89 %
 213 Health Services                            377,731.00       31,666.28      303,428.74       40,824.47       33,477.79    8.86 %
 214 Psychological Services                     956,978.00       72,170.29      636,538.10      215,869.10      104,570.80   10.92 %
 215 Speech/Audiology Services                1,649,862.00      126,030.89    1,118,279.43      386,022.12      145,560.45    8.82 %
 216 Social Work Services                     1,578,709.00      108,425.34    1,004,154.51      342,427.06      232,127.43   14.70 %
 218 Teacher Consultant                         489,315.00       36,506.43      322,307.52      118,428.63       48,578.85    9.92 %
 219 Other Pupil Support Serv                 1,317,660.00       97,356.74      995,262.51       30,277.53      292,119.96   22.16 %
 221 Improv of Instruction                    1,483,707.00       85,208.94      880,931.84      202,246.98      400,528.18   26.99 %
 222 Educational Media Service                1,007,693.00       78,433.51      764,661.34       74,277.52      168,754.14   16.74 %
 226 Superv/Direc Inst Staff                  1,568,300.00      119,833.33    1,220,392.59      171,316.36      176,591.05   11.26 %
 229 Other Instr Staff Srvices                  123,352.00       12,698.00      101,896.46       14,268.90        7,186.64    5.82 %
 231 Board of Education                         342,140.00       38,307.19      270,525.21        2,534.00       69,080.79   20.19 %
 232 Executive Admin                          1,142,004.00       62,782.86      894,572.25      158,297.52       89,134.23    7.80 %
 241 Office of Principal                      9,132,769.00      782,467.32    7,023,619.59    1,247,577.05      861,572.36    9.43 %
 252 Fiscal Services                          1,671,261.00      137,370.68    1,445,086.44      169,680.29       56,494.27    3.38 %
 257 Internal Services                            3,000.00        3,413.74-         377.30-            .00        3,377.30  112.57 %
 259 Other Business Services                     62,200.00        1,368.64       15,996.27             .00       46,203.73   74.28 %
 261 Operating Bldg Services                 12,320,718.00    1,036,591.55    9,419,033.42      404,164.08    2,497,520.50   20.27 %
 266 Security Services                          310,938.00       27,141.30      172,310.86       34,254.22      104,372.92   33.56 %
 271 Pupil Trans Services                     6,418,565.00      591,341.92    4,754,577.08      360,685.20    1,303,302.72   20.30 %
 282 Communication Services                     136,943.00        9,680.94      105,385.25       18,179.14       13,378.61    9.76 %
 283 Staff Services                           1,793,464.00      113,777.39    1,324,656.30       99,660.00      369,147.70   20.58 %
 284 Support Services Tech                    2,197,669.00      124,640.50    1,727,303.07      168,984.16      301,381.77   13.71 %
 285 Pupil Accounting                           562,048.00       19,851.49      487,512.89       15,938.61       58,596.50   10.42 %
 299 Other Support Services                            .00        5,179.23        5,179.23             .00        5,179.23-    .00 %

11 GENERAL FUND                    * TOTAL  128,516,776.00   10,147,453.98   91,860,068.30   21,349,610.60   15,307,097.10   11.91 %

12 ATHLETIC FUND

 226 Superv/Direc Inst Staff                           .00             .00             .00             .00             .00     .00 %
 261 Operating Bldg Services                           .00             .00          691.28             .00          691.28-    .00 %
 266 Security Services                           10,000.00             .00          787.98             .00        9,212.02   92.12 %
 293 Athletic Activities                      2,714,640.00      363,481.97    1,889,759.60       84,568.94      740,311.46   27.27 %

12 ATHLETIC FUND                   * TOTAL    2,724,640.00      363,481.97    1,891,238.86       84,568.94      748,832.20   27.48 %

14 STATE GRANT FUND

 111 Elementary Instruction                     970,589.00       66,928.79      502,524.20      180,275.30      287,789.50   29.65 %
 112 Middle/Jr. High                             23,634.00             .00        2,432.22             .00       21,201.78   89.70 %



 5/15/25  11.30.49                          EXPENSE SUMMARY BY FUNCTION                                  LANHAUFFJU       FX0288
L'ANSE CREUSE PUBLIC SCHOOLS    PERIOD ENDING  04/30   FISCAL PERIOD 10   YEAR 2025       WORKING                   PAGE         2

AMEND MAR         ACTUAL          ACTUAL       ENCUMBRANCES      REMAINING     %
FUNC DESCRIPTION                             BUDGET        MO TO DATE      YR TO DATE    AS OF  5/15/25      BALANCE   UNEXPEND

 113 High School                                  9,598.00             .00        6,979.53             .00        2,618.47   27.28 %
 118 Pre-school                               1,638,636.00       87,107.63      868,965.90       28,061.16      741,608.94   45.25 %
 119 Summer School/Basic Pgm                     31,118.00             .00             .00             .00       31,118.00  100.00 %
 125 Compensatory Education                   4,987,628.00      329,549.90    2,817,346.56      704,579.09    1,465,702.35   29.38 %
 127 Career & Tech Education                     83,100.00             .00             .00             .00       83,100.00  100.00 %
 131 Adult/Cont Ed Basic                        206,897.00       33,982.92      152,563.95       30,216.48       24,116.57   11.65 %
 132 Adult/Cont Ed Secondary                     16,021.00       16,762.72-            .00             .00       16,021.00  100.00 %
 212 Guidance Services                        1,103,632.00       76,413.65      804,458.16      255,557.87       43,615.97    3.95 %
 213 Health Services                            381,144.00       25,516.39      211,633.82       83,909.62       85,600.56   22.45 %
 216 Social Work Services                       615,948.00       44,422.61      412,020.54      146,437.98       57,489.48    9.33 %
 219 Other Pupil Support Serv                          .00             .00             .00             .00             .00     .00 %
 221 Improv of Instruction                      518,578.00       33,526.53      294,230.78      107,767.67      116,579.55   22.48 %
 222 Educational Media Service                   51,312.00        3,921.62       31,249.31       12,836.83        7,225.86   14.08 %
 225 Technology Assisted Inst                    14,946.00       13,592.00       13,690.67             .00        1,255.33    8.39 %
 226 Superv/Direc Inst Staff                    355,225.00       23,859.69      385,428.16       35,385.78       65,588.94-  18.46-%
 227 Academic Stu Assessment                     19,150.00       26,739.85       28,446.55             .00        9,296.55-  48.54-%
 249 Other School Admin                                .00             .00             .00             .00             .00     .00 %
 252 Fiscal Services                             24,167.00        3,888.08       18,528.42        2,350.29        3,288.29   13.60 %
 257 Internal Services                              840.00             .00             .00             .00          840.00  100.00 %
 261 Operating Bldg Services                     10,313.00             .00             .00             .00       10,313.00  100.00 %
 266 Security Services                          102,029.00        4,805.20       93,255.65            4.48        8,768.87    8.59 %
 271 Pupil Trans Services                        18,875.00          355.00          455.00             .00       18,420.00   97.58 %
 281 Plan, Research & Dev                           952.00             .00             .00             .00          952.00  100.00 %
 282 Communication Services                       4,800.00           73.66        1,953.88             .00        2,846.12   59.29 %
 283 Staff Services                              11,098.00          425.00        1,750.50             .00        9,347.50   84.22 %
 284 Support Services Tech                          700.00             .00          687.00             .00           13.00    1.85 %
 285 Pupil Accounting                           104,362.00        8,196.78       76,866.86        4,224.41       23,270.73   22.29 %
 311 Community Serv Direction                    26,939.00             .00        5,059.72             .00       21,879.28   81.21 %
 331 Community Activities                        10,081.00        4,225.12        6,608.99             .00        3,472.01   34.44 %
 351 Cust & Care of Children                     32,960.00             .00       32,960.00             .00             .00     .00 %
 452 Site Improvement Services                   13,000.00             .00        1,953.00        2,800.00        8,247.00   63.43 %
 453 Architectur & Eng Servs                     10,000.00             .00          800.89             .00        9,199.11   91.99 %
 456 Bldg Improvments Services                    8,670.00             .00             .00             .00        8,670.00  100.00 %

14 STATE GRANT FUND                * TOTAL   11,406,942.00      770,767.70    6,772,850.26    1,594,406.96    3,039,684.78   26.64 %

15 FEDERAL GRANTS

 111 Elementary Instruction                     103,578.00       44,534.63       90,238.47       37,675.87       24,336.34-  23.49-%
 112 Middle/Jr. High                             51,220.00        8,785.64       16,912.09       14,349.50       19,958.41   38.96 %
 113 High School                                       .00             .00             .00             .00             .00     .00 %
 118 Pre-school                                        .00             .00             .00             .00             .00     .00 %
 119 Summer School/Basic Pgm                    269,656.00             .00      105,234.01             .00      164,421.99   60.97 %
 122 Special Education                        2,850,959.00      199,431.62    1,736,230.86      603,950.03      510,778.11   17.91 %
 125 Compensatory Education                   1,051,767.00       52,790.51      461,761.09      146,280.85      443,725.06   42.18 %
 127 Career & Tech Education                     64,795.00        7,023.34       66,225.81           16.86        1,447.67-   2.23-%
 131 Adult/Cont Ed Basic                         87,000.00          105.13       11,963.08-            .00       98,963.08  113.75 %
 132 Adult/Cont Ed Secondary                    110,602.00       23,246.31      157,042.30       55,839.68      102,279.98-  92.47-%
 212 Guidance Services                           40,631.00        2,905.34       26,504.72            5.62       14,120.66   34.75 %
 213 Health Services                                   .00             .00             .00             .00             .00     .00 %
 214 Psychological Services                      64,776.00        2,200.00       47,976.19          800.00       15,999.81   24.70 %
 215 Speech/Audiology Services                    1,150.00             .00          150.00             .00        1,000.00   86.95 %



 5/15/25  11.30.49                          EXPENSE SUMMARY BY FUNCTION                                  LANHAUFFJU       FX0288
L'ANSE CREUSE PUBLIC SCHOOLS    PERIOD ENDING  04/30   FISCAL PERIOD 10   YEAR 2025       WORKING                   PAGE         3

AMEND MAR         ACTUAL          ACTUAL       ENCUMBRANCES      REMAINING     %
FUNC DESCRIPTION                             BUDGET        MO TO DATE      YR TO DATE    AS OF  5/15/25      BALANCE   UNEXPEND

 216 Social Work Services                       113,233.00       17,799.91       78,460.25       41,663.55        6,890.80-   6.08-%
 218 Teacher Consultant                         353,589.00       27,081.06      243,527.97       89,231.24       20,829.79    5.89 %
 219 Other Pupil Support Serv                          .00             .00             .00             .00             .00     .00 %
 221 Improv of Instruction                      745,637.00       42,343.10      377,517.28      138,052.37      230,067.35   30.85 %
 222 Educational Media Service                    5,747.00             .00             .00             .00        5,747.00  100.00 %
 226 Superv/Direc Inst Staff                    163,568.00       12,108.41      107,438.04       39,211.57       16,918.39   10.34 %
 227 Academic Stu Assessment                           .00             .00             .00             .00             .00     .00 %
 231 Board of Education                           2,000.00             .00             .00             .00        2,000.00  100.00 %
 232 Executive Admin                                   .00             .00             .00             .00             .00     .00 %
 241 Office of Principal                               .00             .00             .00             .00             .00     .00 %
 252 Fiscal Services                                   .00             .00             .02-            .00             .02     .00 %
 259 Other Business Services                           .00             .00             .00             .00             .00     .00 %
 261 Operating Bldg Services                           .00             .00             .00             .00             .00     .00 %
 266 Security Services                            8,767.00          979.15        9,166.12             .45          399.57-   4.55-%
 271 Pupil Trans Services                        72,514.00        3,144.04        3,144.04             .00       69,369.96   95.66 %
 281 Plan, Research & Dev                         4,000.00             .00             .00             .00        4,000.00  100.00 %
 282 Communication Services                            .00             .00             .00             .00             .00     .00 %
 283 Staff Services                                 390.00           85.00          475.00             .00           85.00-  21.79-%
 284 Support Services Tech                             .00             .00      355,445.85             .00      355,445.85-    .00 %
 285 Pupil Accounting                            70,840.00             .00             .00             .00       70,840.00  100.00 %
 331 Community Activities                       161,394.00       45,898.86       88,426.68       21,980.19       50,987.13   31.59 %
 351 Cust & Care of Children                      8,667.00             .00             .00             .00        8,667.00  100.00 %
 361 Welfare Activities                          17,283.00          528.45        9,477.64             .00        7,805.36   45.16 %
 371 Non-Public Schl Pupils                      37,219.00          997.44       13,287.22        3,056.21       20,875.57   56.08 %
 391 Other Community Services                          .00             .00             .00             .00             .00     .00 %
 411 Payments Oth K-12/In Stat                         .00             .00             .00             .00             .00     .00 %
 611 FUND MOD - GENERAL FUND                           .00             .00             .00             .00             .00     .00 %

15 FEDERAL GRANTS                  * TOTAL    6,460,982.00      491,987.94    3,982,678.53    1,192,113.99    1,286,189.48   19.90 %

25 CAFETERIA

 252 Fiscal Services                             83,700.00             .25             .00             .00       83,700.00  100.00 %
 259 Other Business Services                     15,180.00        1,250.20       11,881.28             .00        3,298.72   21.73 %
 261 Operating Bldg Services                     65,942.00        2,369.94       34,746.97        1,312.24       29,882.79   45.31 %
 291 Pupil Activities                             4,163.00             .00             .00             .00        4,163.00  100.00 %
 297 Food Services                            6,238,509.00      627,889.02    4,807,031.70      146,380.85    1,285,096.45   20.59 %
 611 FUND MOD - GENERAL FUND                    200,000.00             .00             .00             .00      200,000.00  100.00 %

25 CAFETERIA                       * TOTAL    6,607,494.00      631,509.41    4,853,659.95      147,693.09    1,606,140.96   24.30 %

26 COMMUNITY EDUCATION FUND

 259 Other Business Services                     50,100.00        4,035.38       38,578.38             .00       11,521.62   22.99 %
 261 Operating Bldg Services                      1,802.00             .00        1,092.52             .00          709.48   39.37 %
 283 Staff Services                                 300.00             .00             .00             .00          300.00  100.00 %
 311 Community Serv Direction                   319,613.00       33,894.48      307,039.88        2,967.10        9,606.02    3.00 %
 351 Cust & Care of Children                    887,189.00       97,964.34      764,156.70        6,261.70      116,770.60   13.16 %
 391 Other Community Services                   220,563.00           27.44      189,203.95             .00       31,359.05   14.21 %

26 COMMUNITY EDUCATION FUND        * TOTAL    1,479,567.00      135,921.64    1,300,071.43        9,228.80      170,266.77   11.50 %



 5/15/25  11.30.49                          EXPENSE SUMMARY BY FUNCTION                                  LANHAUFFJU       FX0288
L'ANSE CREUSE PUBLIC SCHOOLS    PERIOD ENDING  04/30   FISCAL PERIOD 10   YEAR 2025       WORKING                   PAGE         4

AMEND MAR         ACTUAL          ACTUAL       ENCUMBRANCES      REMAINING     %
FUNC DESCRIPTION                             BUDGET        MO TO DATE      YR TO DATE    AS OF  5/15/25      BALANCE   UNEXPEND

27 PRESCHOOL FUND

 118 Pre-school                                 437,402.00       37,849.42      383,969.29        2,492.81       50,939.90   11.64 %
 261 Operating Bldg Services                     75,831.00        7,818.47       75,138.13        3,816.58        3,123.71-   4.11-%
 311 Community Serv Direction                     5,700.00          209.14        1,340.67             .00        4,359.33   76.47 %
 351 Cust & Care of Children                    568,498.00       43,274.61      466,739.35       30,501.77       71,256.88   12.53 %

27 PRESCHOOL FUND                  * TOTAL    1,087,431.00       89,151.64      927,187.44       36,811.16      123,432.40   11.35 %

29 STUDENT/SCHOOL ACTIVITY FUNDS

 296 Oth Stu/Schl Activity Exp                         .00             .00        1,500.00-            .00        1,500.00     .00 %

29 STUDENT/SCHOOL ACTIVITY FUNDS   * TOTAL             .00             .00        1,500.00-            .00        1,500.00     .00 %

31 2025 SCHOOL BOND DEBT RETIREME

 511 Debt Service - Long Term                          .00             .00             .00             .00             .00     .00 %
 512 Payments Escrow Agent                             .00             .00             .00             .00             .00     .00 %

31 2025 SCHOOL BOND DEBT RETIREME  * TOTAL             .00             .00             .00             .00             .00     .00 %

34 2015 SWAPTION (FORMERLY 2008 S

 511 Debt Service - Long Term                          .00             .00             .00             .00             .00     .00 %
 512 Payments Escrow Agent                             .00             .00             .00             .00             .00     .00 %
 639 fund modification                                 .00             .00             .00             .00             .00     .00 %

34 2015 SWAPTION (FORMERLY 2008 S  * TOTAL             .00             .00             .00             .00             .00     .00 %

35 2021 REFUNDER

 511 Debt Service - Long Term                          .00   10,324,920.77   11,489,841.54             .00   11,489,841.54-    .00 %

35 2021 REFUNDER                   * TOTAL             .00   10,324,920.77   11,489,841.54             .00   11,489,841.54-    .00 %

37 2015 REFUNDER- DEBT RETIREMENT

 511 Debt Service - Long Term                          .00    5,080,031.25    5,505,079.94             .00    5,505,079.94-    .00 %

37 2015 REFUNDER- DEBT RETIREMENT  * TOTAL             .00    5,080,031.25    5,505,079.94             .00    5,505,079.94-    .00 %

39 2023 REFUNDER- DEBT RETIREMENT

 511 Debt Service - Long Term                          .00    3,566,875.00    4,494,100.00             .00    4,494,100.00-    .00 %
 512 Payments Escrow Agent                             .00             .00        1,000.00             .00        1,000.00-    .00 %

39 2023 REFUNDER- DEBT RETIREMENT  * TOTAL             .00    3,566,875.00    4,495,100.00             .00    4,495,100.00-    .00 %



 5/15/25  11.30.49                          EXPENSE SUMMARY BY FUNCTION                                  LANHAUFFJU       FX0288
L'ANSE CREUSE PUBLIC SCHOOLS    PERIOD ENDING  04/30   FISCAL PERIOD 10   YEAR 2025       WORKING                   PAGE         5

AMEND MAR         ACTUAL          ACTUAL       ENCUMBRANCES      REMAINING     %
FUNC DESCRIPTION                             BUDGET        MO TO DATE      YR TO DATE    AS OF  5/15/25      BALANCE   UNEXPEND

41 2025 SCHOOL BOND FUND SERIES 1

 259 Other Business Services                    671,491.00      128,414.24      545,356.91             .00      126,134.09   18.78 %
 271 Pupil Trans Services                     2,628,157.00      231,500.00      783,316.00             .00    1,844,841.00   70.19 %
 452 Site Improvement Services               28,789,667.00             .00    3,949,311.17      133,629.59   24,706,726.24   85.81 %
 453 Architectur & Eng Servs                           .00             .00       98,000.00             .00       98,000.00-    .00 %
 456 Bldg Improvments Services               78,582,176.00      598,962.10    2,900,578.60-   6,554,819.44   74,927,935.16   95.34 %
 459 Othr Facilities Acq & Con                         .00        6,097.00       22,395.50             .00       22,395.50-    .00 %

41 2025 SCHOOL BOND FUND SERIES 1  * TOTAL  110,671,491.00      964,973.34    2,497,800.98    6,688,449.03  101,485,240.99   91.69 %

46 BLD & SITE 2008

 456 Bldg Improvments Services                         .00             .00             .00             .00             .00     .00 %
 639 fund modification                                 .00             .00             .00             .00             .00     .00 %

46 BLD & SITE 2008                 * TOTAL             .00             .00             .00             .00             .00     .00 %

47 B & S 2010 SERIES A TAXABLE

 456 Bldg Improvments Services                         .00             .00             .00             .00             .00     .00 %
 646 FUND MOD-2008 BLDG&SITE                           .00             .00             .00             .00             .00     .00 %

47 B & S 2010 SERIES A TAXABLE     * TOTAL             .00             .00             .00             .00             .00     .00 %

62 SCHOLARSHIP FUND

 298 Oth Priv Purpose Trust Ex                         .00             .00             .00             .00             .00     .00 %

62 SCHOLARSHIP FUND                * TOTAL             .00             .00             .00             .00             .00     .00 %

83 Compensated Absence Internal S

 259 Other Business Services                           .00             .00             .00             .00             .00     .00 %

83 Compensated Absence Internal S  * TOTAL             .00             .00             .00             .00             .00     .00 %

** GRAND TOTALS  268,955,323.00   32,567,074.64  135,574,077.23   31,102,882.57  102,278,363.20   38.02 %
 *BUDGET # 01 Amended March                   3/31/2025 AMEND MAR



Keith Howell 
  SUPERINTENDENT  

 

BUSINESS OFFICE 
 

 

Kathy Konon, CPA 
                 ASSISTANT SUPERINTENDENT FOR  
                         BUSINESS AND OPERATIONS 

 

Beth Disbrow 
                                       DIRECTOR FOR FINANCE

     
24076 F.V. PANKOW BLVD. 

CLINTON Twp., MI  48036-1304 
586.783.6300  

586.783.6312 FAX 

 

 

BOARD OF EDUCATION 
 

Adam Lipski   Al Doss    Sharon Ross         John Da Via Jeffrey Cyprus Sandra Hernden Shane Sellers 
PRESIDENT    VICE PRESIDENT     SECRETARY           TREASURER TRUSTEE TRUSTEE  TRUSTEE 

 

NOTICE OF NONDISCRIMINATION.  It is the policy of L’Anse Creuse Public Schools not to discriminate on the basis of race, color, religion, national origin or ancestry, gender, age, disability, height, weight or marital status 

in its programs, services, activities, or employment.  Inquiries related to nondiscrimination policies should be directed to: Civil Rights Coordinator, Assistant Superintendent for Human Resources, L’Anse Creuse Public Schools, 

Harry L. Wheeler Community Center and Administrative Offices, 24076 F. V. Pankow Blvd., Clinton Twp.,, MI 48036, and (586) 783-6300. Nondiscrimination inquiries related to disability should be directed to:  Section 504 

Coordinator, Director for Special Education, (586) 783-6300. 
 

HARRY L. WHEELER COMMUNITY CENTER AND ADMINISTRATIVE OFFICES 

 

 

 

  

H.2. 

  
Initiator:                        Kathy Konon, CPA 
  
Board Meeting: June 23, 2025 
 
Agenda Item:  Payment Registers 
  

 Board Action Required     CONFIDENTIAL 
 Informational Material 
 Other       _______________________ 

 
 
Background: 
The Payment Register and Purchase Card Report for all funds are presented to the Board 
of Education each month for review as part of the Consent Agenda. Each check run for 
the month is summarized and totaled by fund, providing a clear financial overview.  
 
 
Current Status: 
The Payment Register for all funds are presented as of April 30, 2025, as follows: 

 

• April 2, 2025 

• April 16, 2025 

• April 30, 2025 

• Purchase Card Reports for March 2025 (reviewed) 
 
Future Direction (Notes or Comments)/Recommended Motion: 
This report is a component item of the consent agenda and Administration recommends that 
the Board motion to approve the Payment Registers as presented. 
 
 

KK/jh 





































































































































































Keith Howell 
 SUPERINTENDENT  

 

BUSINESS OFFICE 
 

 

Kathy Konon, CPA 
                 ASSISTANT SUPERINTENDENT FOR  
                         BUSINESS AND OPERATIONS 

 

Beth Disbrow 
                                       DIRECTOR FOR FINANCE

                                       
24076 F.V. PANKOW BLVD. 

CLINTON Twp., MI  48036-1304 
586.783.6300  

586.783.6312 FAX 

 

 

BOARD OF EDUCATION 
 

Adam Lipski   Al Doss    Sharon Ross         John Da Via Jeffrey Cyprus Sandra Hernden Shane Sellers 
PRESIDENT    VICE PRESIDENT     SECRETARY           TREASURER TRUSTEE TRUSTEE  TRUSTEE 

 

NOTICE OF NONDISCRIMINATION.  It is the policy of L’Anse Creuse Public Schools not to discriminate on the basis of race, color, religion, national origin or ancestry, gender, age, disability, height, weight or marital status 

in its programs, services, activities, or employment.  Inquiries related to nondiscrimination policies should be directed to: Civil Rights Coordinator, Assistant Superintendent for Human Resources, L’Anse Creuse Public Schools, 

Harry L. Wheeler Community Center and Administrative Offices, 24076 F. V. Pankow Blvd., Clinton Twp.,, MI 48036, and (586) 783-6300. Nondiscrimination inquiries related to disability should be directed to:  Section 504 

Coordinator, Director for Special Education, (586) 783-6300. 
 

HARRY L. WHEELER COMMUNITY CENTER AND ADMINISTRATIVE OFFICES 

 

 

 

  
 

H.4. 
Initiator:  Kathy Konon, CPA    
 
Board Meeting: June 23, 2025 
 
Agenda Item:  Summary of Investments & Wire/ACH Transfers 
  

 Board Action Required     CONFIDENTIAL 
 Informational Material 
 Other       _______________________ 

 
 
Background: 
As part of fiscal management, available cash funds are invested to earn income for the district. 
Since investing carries both interest rate and credit risk, the Board has established a policy 
requiring a monthly investment report. Additionally, as part of financial management 
operations, the business office routinely transfers to and from the district’s bank accounts. To 
provide oversight of this process, a monthly report is prepared by the accountant, detailing the 
date of each transaction, the bank accounts involved, the purpose of the transfer, the amount, 
and the requesting fund. 

 
 
Current Status: 
These reports reflect data as of April 30, 2025, which includes not only details of the 
investments by the fund but the type of fund. It also summarizes ACH and wire transfers of the 
General, Debt, Food and Nutrition, and Trust & Agency funds. 

 
 
Future Direction (Notes or Comments)/Recommended Motion: 
These reports are part of the consent agenda and Administration recommends that the Board 
motion to approve the Summary of Investments & Wire/ACH transfers as presented. 

  
KK/jh 

 



 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Summary of investments as of: April 30, 2025  

 

   

Institution Type  Amount Rate Date 

Purchased 

Due Date Fund Number 

of Days 

 

JPMorgan Chase 

 

Checking 

 

$12,674,577.34 

 

N/A 

 

Varies 

 

Immediate 

 

GF 

 

- 

        

JPMorgan Chase Checking $177,342.02 N/A Varies Immediate  IF - 

        

JPMorgan Chase 

 

Checking $4,862,773.49 N/A Varies Immediate DF - 

JPMorgan Chase 

 

Checking 0 N/A Varies Immediate Bond  

        

Fifth Third Bank Depository $2,169,805.85 N/A Varies Immediate  GF - 

        

Fifth Third Bank Depository $1,495,987.05 N/A Varies Immediate  IF - 

        

Fifth Third Bank Depository $1,866,533.75 N/A Varies Immediate  F&N - 

        

MILAF 

 

MILAF 

 

Investment 

 

Investment 

$6,226,126.17 

 

$999,139.42 

N/A 

 

N/A 

N/A 

 

N/A 

Varies 

 

Varies 

GF 

 

IF 

- 

 

- 

MILF Investment $1,061,622.34 N/A N/A Varies F&N - 

MILAF Investment $170,695.13 N/A N/A Varies Scholarship 

Fund 

- 

Huntington Bank Investment $104,908,949.44 N/A N/A Varies Bond - 

Calendar YTD 

Accumulative Earnings 

for all Funds 

 $100,208.58 

 

 

$305,824.48 

N/A 

 

 

N/A 

N/A 

 

 

N/A 

Varies 

 

 

Varies 

Interest 

 

Bond 

Interest 

- 

 

 

- 

NOTE:        

State Aid Payment –  

April 21, 2025 

Deposited to JPMorgan 

Chase                                      

 $9,645,346.78  N/A    

 

B&S = Building & Site 

CF = Cafeteria Fund 

DF = Debt Fund 

GF = General Fund 

 IF = Internal Fund 

  

 

  

 

 

Rates as of April 30, 2025: 
Federal Reserve  

     Non-Asset Backed     30 days       N/A 

          60 days       4.31 

     Asset Backed         30 days       4.39 

          60 days       4.39 

 

Note: N/A. indicates trade data insufficient to 

support calculation of the particular rate. 



 

L’ANSE CREUSE PUBLIC SCHOOLS 

Summary of General, Debt, Cafeteria and Trust & Agency Funds Wire Activity  

April 1 through April 30, 2025 

 

  1 of 1  

1 4/03/25 JPMorgan Chase 

GF 

BMO Purchasing Card Activity through April 27th ($160,758.49) ACH GF 

2 4/02/25 JPMorgan Chase 

GF 

Bank of America 4/04/25 PR Direct Deposit ($1,693,235.10) Wire GF 

3 4/02/25 JPMorgan Chase 

GF 

MSGCU 4/04/25 Net Payroll Deductions ($329,976.36) Wire GF 

4 4/04/25 JPMorgan Chase 

GF 

Wells Fargo Bank 4/04/25 Annuities Funding ($141,916.23) ACH GF 

5 4/16/25 JPMorgan Chase 

GF 

Bank of America 4/18/25 Net Payroll Deductions ($1,473,855.59) Wire GF 

6 4/16/25 JPMorgan Chase 

GF 

MSGCU 4/18/25 Net Payroll Deductions ($473,483.33) Wire GF 

7 4/18/25 JPMorgan Chase 

GF 

Wells Fargo Bank 4/18/25 Annuities Funding ($141,906.60) ACH GF 

8 4/25/25 JPMorgan Chase 

GF 

UMB Bank Refunding 2023 Bonds ($3,566,875.00 Wire DF 

9 4/25/25 JPMorgan Chase 

GF 

Huntington National 

Bank 

2015 Refunding Bond (General Obligation 

Unlimited Tax) 

 

($5,080,031.25) Wire DF 

10 4/25/25 JPMorgan Chase 

GF 

UMB Bank 2021 Refunding Bonds ($10,324,920.77) Wire DF 

 

 



Keith Howell 
SUPERINTENDENT  

 

HUMAN RESOURCES 
 

Michael W. Van Camp 
ASSISTANT SUPERINTENDENT 

FOR HUMAN RESOURCES 

 

Anita Dzieszkowski 
SUPERVISOR FOR HUMAN RESOURCES 

 
24076 F.V. PANKOW BLVD. 

CLINTON TOWNSHIP, MI  48036-1304 
586.783.6300  

586.783.6311 FAX 
WWW.LC-PS.ORG 

BOARD OF EDUCATION 
 

Adam Lipski Al Doss Sharon Ross John Da Via Jeffrey Cyprus Sandra Hernden Shane Sellers 
PRESIDENT VICE PRESIDENT SECRETARY TREASURER TRUSTEE TRUSTEE TRUSTEE 

 

NOTICE OF NONDISCRIMINATION.  It is the policy of L’Anse Creuse Public Schools not to discriminate on the basis of race, color, religion, national origin or ancestry, gender, age, disability, height, weight or marital status 

in its programs, services, activities, or employment.  Inquiries related to nondiscrimination policies should be directed to: Civil Rights Coordinator, Assistant Superintendent for Human Resources, L’Anse Creuse Public Schools, 

Harry L. Wheeler Community Center and Administrative Offices, 24076 F. V. Pankow Blvd., Clinton Township, MI 48036, and (586) 783-6300. Nondiscrimination inquiries related to disability should be directed to:  Section 504 

Coordinator, Director for Special Education, (586) 783-6300. 
 

HARRY L. WHEELER COMMUNITY CENTER 

AND ADMINISTRATIVE OFFICES 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 
 
Initiator:  Mike Van Camp 
  
Board Meeting: June 23, 2025 
 
Agenda Item:  Employment Recommendations 
  

Board Action Required     CONFIDENTIAL 
 Informational Material 
 Other_______________________ 

 
 
Background:   
 
The attached list contains candidates who have been recommended for employment in the 
position/building that is indicated, as well as current employees who are being recommended 
for a change in some aspect of their employment status.  
 
 
Current Status:   
The Human Resources department has received, from the appropriate administrator, a 
recommendation for the action listed along with any required documentation. Interviews and 
reference checks, if applicable, have been completed.  The Employment Recommendations are 
being submitted for approval by the Board. 
 
Future Direction (Notes or Comments)/Recommended Motion:   
 
Administration recommends that the Board motion to approve the Employment 
Recommendations as presented. 
 
 
MV/jd 
 

 

 
 

 H.5. 

http://www.lc-ps.org/


Employment Recommendations

June 23, 2025

Page 1

# * Name Assignment Remarks Effective Degree/Step

INSTRUCTIONAL

1 Babbitt, Aimee Summer School Special Education Teacher 

(TC Room), L'Anse Creuse High School 

Filled Position 6/10/2025 $40.00 

2 Baumgarten, Madison GSRP Teacher, Anna Mae Burdi Early 

Childhood Center

New Position 8/13/2025 $31.08 

3 Bayly, Jaime Elementary Summer Explorers Teacher, 

Green Elementary

Filled Position 6/26/2025 $40.00 

4 Beard, Meredith Summer School Coordinator, split position, 

L'Anse Creuse High School - North

Filled Position 6/10/2025 $3,500.00 

5 Beard, Meredith Principal, L'Anse Creuse High School - 

North

Retirement (29 years, 6 

months)

7/31/2025

6 Bice, Kylie Speech & Language Pathologist, South 

River Elementary

Resignation 6/10/2025

7 Brooks, Andrea Preschool Panda's Summer Camp Teacher, 

Anna Mae Burdi Early Childhood Center

Filled Position 6/11/2025 $25.08 

8 Brown, Amy Summer School Math Teacher, L'Anse 

Creuse High School - North 

Filled Position 6/10/2025 $40.00 

9 Cairo, Kristin Associate Principal, L'Anse Creuse Middle 

School - Central

Retirement (27 years, 2 

months)

7/31/2025

10 Carr-Medina, Carroll Elementary Summer Explorers Teacher, 

Green Elementary

Filled Position 6/26/2025 $40.00 

11 Cavalier, Trindin Summer School Special Education Teacher 

(TC Room), L'Anse Creuse High School - 

North

Filled Position 6/10/2025 $40.00 

12 Chalk, Meghan Elementary Summer Explorers Teacher, 

Green Elementary

Filled Position 6/26/2025 $40.00 

13 Clay, Amy Elementary Summer Explorers Teacher, 

Green Elementary

Filled Position 6/26/2025 $40.00 



Employment Recommendations

June 23, 2025

Page 2

14 Clyne, Jennifer Elementary Summer Explorers Teacher, 

Green Elementary

Filled Position 6/26/2025 $40.00 

15 Crescentini, Luciano Summer School PE/Gym Teacher, L'Anse 

Creuse High School - North

Filled Position 6/10/2025 $40.00 

16 Crescentini, Luciano Summer School Social Studies, L'Anse 

Creuse High School - North

Filled Position 6/10/2025 $40.00 

17 Day, Kendall Title I Extended School Year Teacher- 

Summer Program, Graham Elementary

New Position 6/9/2025 $40.00 

18 Dudzinski, Sheri Elementary Summer Explorers Teacher, 

Green Elementary

Filled Position 6/26/2025 $40.00 

19 Ellul, Nicholas Summer School Coordinator, split position, 

L'Anse Creuse High School - North

Filled Position 6/10/2025 $3,500.00 

20 French, Sabrina Off to a Great Start Instructor, L'Anse 

Creuse Middle School - East

Filled Position 8/11/2025 $40.00 

21 Gorecki, Monica Elementary Summer Explorers Teacher, 

Green Elementary

Filled Position 6/26/2025 $40.00 

22 Gorney, Jennifer Elementary Summer Explorers Teacher, 

Green Elementary

Filled Position 6/26/2025 $40.00 

23 Griffith, Nicole Elementary Summer Explorers Teacher, 

Green Elementary

Filled Position 6/26/2025 $40.00 

24 Harris, Stephanie 5th Grade Teacher, Yacks Elementary Resignation 6/30/2025

25 Hauser, Justin Principal, L'Anse Creuse Middle School - 

East

Resignation 7/31/2025

26 Hein, Janis Speech & Language Pathologist, 

Lobbestael Elementary

Resignation 6/6/2025

27 Henwood, Scott Principal, L'Anse Creuse Middle School - 

Central

Resignation 7/31/2025

28 Hessell, Shayna Title I Extended School Year Teacher- 

Summer Program, Graham Elementary

New Position 6/9/2025 $40.00 

29 Hoag, Tracey Elementary Summer Explorers Teacher, 

Green Elementary

Filled Position 6/26/2025 $40.00 



Employment Recommendations

June 23, 2025

Page 3

30 Kavanagh, Donald Summer School Online-Edmentum 

Teacher, L'Anse Creuse High School - 

North

Filled Position 6/10/2025 $40.00 

31 Kawalec, Cathy Elementary Summer Explorers Teacher, 

Green Elementary

Filled Position 6/26/2025 $40.00 

32 Kellstrom, Michelle Elementary Summer Explorers Teacher, 

Green Elementary

Filled Position 6/26/2025 $40.00 

33 Koneczny, Lauren Title I Extended School Year Teacher- 

Summer Program, Graham Elementary

New Position 6/9/2025 $40.00 

34 Kwapik, Jillian Elementary Summer Explorers Teacher, 

Green Elementary

Filled Position 6/26/2025 $40.00 

35 Laing, John Summer School Math Teacher, L'Anse 

Creuse High School - North

Filled Position 6/10/2025 $40.00 

36 Livingston, Codi Summer Mini Camp Teacher, Anna Mae 

Burdi Early Childhood Center

Filled Position 6/23/2025 $26.83 

37 Mancini, Daniel Off to a Great Start Instructor, L'Anse 

Creuse Middle School - South

Filled Position 8/11/2025 $40.00 

38 Martin, Ronald Summer School Coordinator, L'Anse 

Creuse High School 

Filled Position 6/10/2025 $7,000.00 

39 McBride, Lindsey Kindergarten Teacher, South River 

Elementary

Leave of Absence 2025-2026

40 McGee, Sean Summer School Math Teacher, L'Anse 

Creuse High School

Filled Position 6/10/2025 $40.00 

41 McMahon, Vicki Title I Extended School Year Teacher- 

Summer Program, Graham Elementary

New Position 6/9/2025 $40.00 

42 Mourtos, Jalyn Elementary Summer Explorers Teacher, 

Green Elementary

Filled Position 6/26/2025 $40.00 

43 Nevado, John Title I Extended School Year Teacher- 

Summer Program, Graham Elementary

New Position 6/9/2025 $40.00 



Employment Recommendations

June 23, 2025

Page 4

44 Nyenhuis, Kimberly Off to a Great Start Instructor, L'Anse 

Creuse Middle School - North

Filled Position 8/11/2025 $40.00 

45 O'Connell, Kelli Summer School Science Teacher, L'Anse 

Creuse High School - North

Filled Position 6/10/2025 $40.00 

46 O'Keefe, Juliette Summer School Special Education Teacher 

(TC Room), L'Anse Creuse High School

Filled Position 6/10/2025 $40.00 

47 Onyski, Mikalle Title I Extended School Year Teacher- 

Summer Program, Graham Elementary

New Position 6/9/2025 $40.00 

48 Pardi, Daniel Summer School English Teacher, L'Anse 

Creuse High School - North

Filled Position 6/10/2025 $40.00 

49 Polderdyke, Crystal Off to a Great Start Instructor, L'Anse 

Creuse Middle School - Central 

Filled Position 8/11/2025 $40.00 

50 Reppenhagen, Jillian Preschool Panda's Summer Camp Teacher, 

Anna Mae Burdi Early Childhood Center

Filled Position 6/11/2025 $25.08 

51 Roskopp, Kellee Elementary Summer Explorers Teacher, 

Green Elementary

Filled Position 6/26/2025 $40.00 

52 Shimkus, Amanda Elementary Summer Explorers Teacher, 

Green Elementary

Filled Position 6/26/2025 $40.00 

53 Smith, Amber Preschool Panda's Summer Camp Teacher, 

Anna Mae Burdi Early Childhood Center

Filled Position 6/11/2025 $25.08 

54 Turak, Heath Elementary Summer Explorers Teacher, 

Green Elementary

Filled Position 6/26/2025 $40.00 

55 Wheeler, Debra Summer School Counselor, L'Anse Creuse 

High School - North

Filled Position 6/10/2025 $40.00 

56 White, Zachary Elementary Summer Explorers Teacher, 

Green Elementary

Filled Position 6/26/2025 $40.00 

NON-INSTRUCTIONAL



Employment Recommendations

June 23, 2025

Page 5

1 Allam, Judy Title I Paraprofessional, Tenniswood 

Elementary

Retirement (8 years, 8 

months)

6/5/2025

2 Anderson, Nevaeh Summer Day Camp South Counselor, 

South River Elementary

Replaces Jackson Saleh 6/16/2025 $15.48 

3 Andrejewski, Leah Preschool Panda's Summer Camp Aide, 

Anna Mae Burdi Early Childhood Center

Filled Position 6/11/2025 $15.92 

4 Baron, Kendyl Summer Day Camp South Counselor, 

South River Elementary

Filled Position 6/16/2025 $15.48 

5 Barrer, Terry Bus Driver, Larry F. Brender Support 

Services Center

Resignation 6/6/2025

6 Bemiss, Kaitlyn Elementary Summers Explorers Nurse, 

Green Elementary

Filled Position 6/26/2025 $40.00 

7 Berger, Nancy Paraprofessional, Green Elementary Retirement (39 years, 6 

months)

6/6/2025

8 Bianchi, Michelle Cook/Cashier, L'Anse Creuse High School - 

North

Resignation 5/19/2025

9 Bicksler, Lori Summer Feeding, Class III, South River 

Elementary

Filled Position 6/16/2025 $17.85 

10 Borowy, Andrea EL Paraprofessional for Extended Year, 

L'Anse Creuse Middle School - North

New Position 6/5/2025 $17.37 

11 Bothel, Jaclyn Summer Day Camp South Counselor, 

South River Elementary

Replaces Zorica Zaric 6/16/2025 $15.48 

12 Burton, Kari Preschool Panda's Summer Camp Aide, 

Anna Mae Burdi Early Childhood Center

Filled Position 6/11/2025 $16.74 

13 Canup, Jennifer Summer Day Camp North Counselor, 

Carkenord Elementary

Filled Position 6/16/2025 $15.48 

14 Corbin, Deborah Cook/Cashier, L'Anse Creuse Middle 

School - Central

Resignation 5/8/2025

15 Cornett, Tracy Athletic Event Worker, L'Anse Creuse 

Middle School - South

Filled Position 5/1/2025 $12.48 



Employment Recommendations

June 23, 2025

Page 6

16 DeCeuninck, Kristie Summer Day Camp North Counselor, 

Carkenord Elementary

Filled Position 6/11/2025 $16.21 

17 Dopkowski, Robert JV Basketball At-Will Coach, L'Anse Creuse 

High School

Resignation 6/10/2025

18 Evans, Kimberly Summer Feeding, Class I, South River 

Elementary

Filled Position 6/16/2025 $15.00 

19 Ferrazza, Jacqueline Spring Boys Running Club Supplemental, 

L'Anse Creuse Middle School - North

New Position 4/21/2025 Flat Rate

$700

20 Ferrazza, Jacqueline Spring Girls Running Club Supplemental, 

L'Anse Creuse Middle School - North

New Position 4/21/2025 Flat Rate

$700

21 Gianakis, Chelsea Preschool Panda's Summer Camp Aide, 

Anna Mae Burdi Early Childhood Center

Filled Position 6/11/2025 $15.48 

22 Gratton, Don Director for Operations, Larry F. Brender 

Support Services Center

Retirement (4 years, 3 

months)

9/30/2025

23 Gurecki, Hannah Lifeguard for Community Education, Harry 

L. Wheeler Community Center & 

Administrative Offices 

Filled Position 5/27/2025 $15.75 

24 Halloran, Bryan Varsity Girls Golf Coach, L'Anse Creuse 

High School

Replaces Scott Krause 6/23/2025 Per Contract 

25 Heilig, Cindy Summer Feeding - Mobile Transporter, 

Class I, South River Elementary

Replaces Amy Cirillo 6/16/2025 $15.00 

26 Henderson, Jacob Diversity Club Sponsor, L'Anse Creuse High 

School

Resignation 6/10/2025

27 Iknar, Elisia Summer Day Camp South Counselor, 

South River Elementary

Filled Position 6/16/2025 $15.48 

28 Jacques, Timothy Summer Day Camp North Counselor, 

Carkenord Elementary

Filled Position 6/16/2025 $16.42 

29 Krula, Melyssa Summer Day Camp South Counselor, 

South River Elementary

Filled Position 6/16/2025 $15.71 

30 Lamb, Angela Athletic Event Worker, L'Anse Creuse 

Middle School - South

Filled Position 5/1/2025 $12.48 



Employment Recommendations

June 23, 2025

Page 7

31 Lingeman, Skylar Summer Day Camp North Counselor, 

Carkenord Elementary

Replaces Julianna Webb 6/16/2025 $15.48 

32 Livingston, Sue Payroll Specialist, Harry L. Wheeler 

Community Center & Administrative 

Offices 

Retirement (18 years, 1 

month)

12/31/2025

33 Malaga, Sharon Elementary Summers Explorers Clerk, 

Green Elementary

Filled Position 6/26/2025 $20.25 

34 Mancini, Sabrina Cook/Cashier, L'Anse Creuse High School - 

North

Resignation 5/22/2025

35 Massie, Bonnie Cook/Cashier, DiAnne M. Pellerin Center Resignation 5/22/2025

36 Mayfield, Roger Bus Driver, Larry F. Brender Support 

Services Center

Retirement (10 years, 1 

month)

9/1/2025

37 McDonald, Brian Bowling Club Sponsor, L'Anse Creuse 

Middle School - South

Resignation 5/22/2025

38 McDonald, Brian 8th Grade Assistant Football Coach, L'Anse 

Creuse Middle School - South

Resignation 5/22/2025

39 McDonald, Brian Intramural Sponsor, L'Anse Creuse Middle 

School - South

Resignation 5/22/2025

40 McDonald, Brian 7th & 8th Grade Girls Track Coach, L'Anse 

Creuse Middle School - South

Resignation 5/22/2025

41 McNamara, Sherlyn Special Education Paraprofessional, South 

River Elementary

Leave of Absence 2025-2026

42 Njoku, Chinaka JV Boys Basketball Head At- Will Coach, 

L'Anse Creuse High School - North

Resignation 5/21/2025

43 Nummer, Jaclyn Summer School Secretary, L'Anse Creuse 

High School - North

Filled Position 6/10/2025 $16.53 

44 Oleksy, Susan Office Clerk for Food and Nutrition 

Services, Larry F. Brender Support Services 

Center

Retirement (36 years, 4 

months)

6/17/2025

45 * Oliva, Alexa Groundskeeper, Larry F. Brender Support 

Services Center

Replaces Chris Hayes 5/19/2025 $18.36 

46 O'Malley, Kayla Summer Day Camp North Counselor, 

Carkenord Elementary

Replaces Kara Piejak 6/16/2025 $16.42 



Employment Recommendations

June 23, 2025

Page 8

47 Pawl, Skye Preschool Panda's Summer Camp Aide, 

Anna Mae Burdi Early Childhood Center

Filled Position 6/11/2025 $16.16 

48 Perkins, Phyllis Senior Class Sponsor, L'Anse Creuse High 

School

Resignation 6/6/2025

49 Pijanowski, Suzanne Bus Driver, Larry F. Brender Support 

Services Center

Resignation 5/11/2025

50 Redinger, Cheryl Summer Records Clerk, L'Anse Creuse High 

School - North

Filled Position 6/10/2025 $17.69 

51 Roodbeen, Brian Varsity Girls Golf Coach, L'Anse Creuse 

High School - North

Replaces Kurt Wilson 6/2/2025 Per Contract 

52 Rossi, Carolyn Bus Driver, Larry F. Brender Support 

Services Center

Retirement (7 years, 10 

months)

6/13/2025

53 Ruell, Sara Summer Day Camp South Counselor, 

South River Elementary

Filled Position 6/16/2025 $15.48 

54 Ruffer, Randall Summer School Supervisory Aide, L'Anse 

Creuse High School - North

Filled Position 6/10/2025 $15.48 

55 Sanders, Isabelle Summer Day Camp South Counselor, 

South River Elementary

Replaces Jonathan Blanchard 6/16/2025 $15.48 

56 Swartz, Ellen Summer Food Truck,  Larry F. Brender 

Support Services Center

New Position 6/16/2025 $22.95 

57 Torres, Danielle Yearbook Club Sponsor, L'Anse Creuse 

Middle School - East

Replaces Marianne Mertz 8/25/2025 Per Contract 

58 Trask, Nicolette Executive Assistant to Superintendent, 

Harry L. Wheeler Community Center & 

Administrative Offices

Retirement (28 years, 6 

months)

7/1/2025

59 Quantz, Julie Summer Day Camp North Counselor, 

Carkenord Elementary

Filled Position 6/16/2025 $16.42 

60 Weir, Jonathan Summer Day Camp North Counselor, 

Carkenord Elementary

Filled Position 6/16/2025 $16.21 

61 * Widdows, Brent Varsity Head Football At-Will Coach, 

L'Anse Creuse High School - North

Replaces Dejuan Garland 6/1/2025 Per Contract 

62 Wrubel, Wendy Custodian, Green Elementary Retirement (25 years) 6/27/2025



Employment Recommendations

June 23, 2025

Page 9

63 * Yencha, Rachel Girls JV Head Volleyball At-Will Coach, 

L'Anse Creuse High School - North

Replaces Breanna Staton 4/28/2025 Per Contract 

64 York, Maryjean Athletic Event Worker, L'Anse Creuse 

Middle School - South

Filled Position 5/1/2025 $12.48 

65 Zaldana, Sofia Preschool Panda's Summer Camp Aide, 

Anna Mae Burdi Early Childhood Center

Filled Position 6/11/2025 $16.74 

*New Employee to the District

Years of service reflect LCPS service, only, and does not reflect purchased service or service in other school districts.

Updated items are in red.



BOARD OF EDUCATION 
 
Adam Lipski Al Doss Sharon Ross John Da Via Jeffrey Cyprus Sandra Hernden Shane Sellers 
PRESIDENT VICE PRESIDENT SECRETARY  TREASURER TRUSTEE TRUSTEE  TRUSTEE 

 

NOTICE OF NONDISCRIMINATION.  It is the policy of L’Anse Creuse Public Schools not to discriminate on the basis of race, color, religion, national origin or ancestry, gender, age, disability, height, weight or 
marital status in its programs, services, activities, or employment.  Inquiries related to nondiscrimination policies should be directed to: Civil Rights Coordinator, Assistant Superintendent for Human Resources, 
L’Anse Creuse Public Schools, Harry L. Wheeler Community Center and Administrative Offices, 24076 F. V. Pankow Blvd., Clinton Township, MI 48036, and (586) 783-6300. Nondiscrimination inquiries 
related to disability should be directed to:  Section 504 Coordinator, Director for Special Education, (586) 783-6300. 
 

Keith Howell 
 SUPERINTENDENT 

 
  

Lisa E. Montpas 
ASSISTANT SUPERINTENDENT 

FOR CURRICULUM AND INSTRUCTION 
 
 

Kimberly Rawski 
DIRECTOR FOR 

SECONDARY EDUCATION 
 

Dr. Tony Sedick 
INTERIM DIRECTOR FOR 

ELEMENTARY EDUCATION 
 

24076 F.V. PANKOW BLVD. 
CLINTON TWP., MI  48036-1304 

586.783.6300 
586.783.6312 FAX 

WWW.LC-PS.ORG 

 

 

  DEPARTMENT OF CURRICULUM AND INSTRUCTION 
 
 

                                                  

     H.6. 
Initiator:  Lisa Montpas                      
                                 
Board Meeting: June 23, 2025                                               
       
Agenda Item:  Student Travel Requests    
 
 

 Board Action Required     CONFIDENTIAL 
 Informational Material 
 Other_______________________ 

 
Background: 
According to Board Policy Article VIII, Section 19 Field Trips and Other District Sponsored Trips “Board 
approval is required for field trips and other District-sponsored trips which are planned to take students 
out of the United States or overnight.” 
 
Current Status: 
The following student travel requests have been received for approval.  These student travel trips are 
educational trips, aligned to curriculum, chaperoned and organized by School Personnel: 
 

1. Student travel is requested for 110 L’Anse Creuse High School North Band Students to travel to Echo 
Grove Camp in Leonard, Michigan on August 10, 2025 and return on August 15, 2025.  The students will 
be learning their 2025 show.  The trip is requested by Dan Griffith.  There will be 2 staff; D. Griffith and S. 
Oranchuk and 25 parents to chaperone the trip. 

2. Student travel is requested for 7 Pankow Thespian Students to travel to Michigan Education Theatre 
Association Camp in Marquette, Michigan on July 22, 2025 and return on July 24, 2025.   Students will 
attend a leadership camp.  The trip is requested by Gregory Trzaskoma.  There will be 1 staff; Gregory 
Trzaskoma chaperoning the trip. 

3. Student travel is requested for 30 Middle School East Student Council and NJHS students to travel to 
Washington, D.C. on May 13, 2026 and return on May 15, 2026.  The trip is a leadership event.  The trip is 
requested by Shawn Conger.  There will be 2 staff; S. Conger and H. Budnick and 10 parents to chaperone 
the trip. 

4. Student travel is requested for 29 L’Anse Creuse High School JV and Varsity Cheer students to travel to 
Bavarian Inn in Frankenmuth, Michigan on July 14, 2025 and return on July 16, 2025.  The trip is a 
JV/Varsity cheer camp. The trip is requested by Melissa Bushon.  There will be 3 staff; M. Bushon, A. 
Hogness and E. Waak and 2 parents to chaperone the trip. 

Future Direction (Notes or Comments): 
Administration recommends approval for the above student travel requests. 

http://www.lc-ps.org/


 

 

 

 

 

BOARD OF EDUCATION 

COMMITTEE OF THE WHOLE MEETING MINUTES 

APRIL 14, 2025 – 6:30 P.M. 

The Board of Education of the L’Anse Creuse Public Schools district convened a Committee of the Whole 

Board Meeting on Monday, April 14, 2025 at 6:30 p.m. at the Harry L. Wheeler Community Center and 

Administrative Offices, located at 24076 F.V. Pankow Boulevard, Clinton Township, Michigan. 

 

A. Call to Order, Pledge of Allegiance, Roll Call 

Mr. Al Doss, Vice President, called the Committee of the Whole Board Meeting to order at 6:30 p.m. 

Roll Call 

Present:  Mr. Al Doss, Vice President 

Mrs. Sharon Ross, Secretary 

Mr. John Da Via, Treasurer 

Mr. Jeff Cyprus, Trustee 

Mrs. Sandra Hernden, Trustee 

 

 Absent:  Mr. Adam Lipski, President – arrived at 7:12 pm 

Mr. Shane Sellers, Trustee – arrived at 6:31 pm 

  

Also present: Mr. Keith Howell, Superintendent 

 Ms. Lisa Montpas, Assistant Superintendent for Curriculum & Instruction 

Mr. Michael Van Camp, Assistant Superintendent for Human Resources 

Ms. Kimberly Rawski, Director for Secondary Education 

Mr. Tony Sedick, Director for Elementary Education 

Ms. Nancy Supanich, Director for Special Education 

Dr. Major Mickens, Director for Community Education and Student Services 

Mr. Donald Gratton, Director for Operations 

Mr. Brandon Streng, Director for Technology 

Ms. Beth Disbrow, Director for Finance 

Employees and Patrons of the District 

 

Motion by Mr. Da Via, supported by Mr. Cyprus, to make this a voting meeting. 

  

Roll Call Vote 

Yes: Da Via, Cyprus, Doss, Hernden, Ross, Sellers 

No:  None 

Motion carried. 

 

A.1. Swearing in of New Board Member 

Mr. Doss welcomed Mr. Jeff Cyprus as this is his first meeting since being appointed as Trustee. Mr. 

Cyprus read the oath and was sworn in by Anita Dzieszkowski, notary public. 

 

B. Bond Updates 

Mr. Howell introduced Mr. Gratton who presented information about the Bond Program Project 

Series Transfers as listed in the Consent Agenda. Shifting some of the projects between Series 1 & 

Series 2 are relatively neutral but necessary as they will help achieve economies of scale during 

project completion. Representatives from Barton Malow and Partners in Architecture were also 

present to address any questions the Board may have. 

 

H.7.a. 



MINUTES OF THE COMMITTEE OF THE WHOLE MEETING FOR APRIL 14, 2025                        Page 2 

L’Anse Creuse Public Schools 

 

 

Mr. Sam Esser of Barton Malow also gave a summary of technology-related transfers between Series 

1 and Series 2. This will allow more parity project efficiencies between Series 1 and Series 2 

benefitting the district’s safety and security projects while accommodating the coordination of the 

installation of A/V equipment with construction projects scheduled in the buildings. 

Discussion followed. 

 

C. Superintendent’s Report 

 
C.1. District Update 

Mr. Howell stated while there are many great highlights in the district there are also challenges. He 

read a report regarding the arrest of a student at High School–North on April 1, 2025 for an alleged 

crime that did not take place on school grounds nor in Macomb County. The district understands the 

gravity of the situation and a full investigation is taking place. A districtwide safety audit will also be 

taking place in the coming weeks.  

Discussion followed. 

 

Mr. Lipski arrived at 7:12 p.m. 

 

D. Hearing of School District Patrons 

Public comment began at 7:13 p.m. 

 

• Mitchell Osadchuk, teacher (11 years) and parent, made a statement in support of the 

environment, culture and safety at LCHS-N. He thanked those who have stood behind staff and 

students. 

• Michael Lynch, teacher (28 years) and parent, made a statement in support of LCHS-N. He stated 

has never felt unsafe or disrespected by administration or students. He stated he witnesses many 

more positive actions by students than negative, and feels very supported by administration. He 

thanked community for sending their kids to him to teacher and stated they are safe and loved at 

this school. 

• Trindin Cavalier, teacher (27 years), read statement she had written prior to April 1 to all of the 

Board members in support of the remarkable learning environment, culture and climate at LCHS-

N. The supportive and professional atmosphere benefits staff & students in countless ways. 

• Heather Dishman, teacher (9 years), made a statement in support of LCHS-N. She does not like 

seeing the discord online and misinformation posted. She stated she is proud of her 

administration, the superintendent and the students and has always felt safe. The volatile and 

aggressive behavior online is not constructive. We should come together as a community and 

support one another. 

• Mr. P who has no students currently in the district made a statement with several concerns about 

the district. 

• Joel Patterson, parent, stated this is a very good district but questioned the policy of arrests in 

classroom/building. 

• Carrie Ryan, parent, stated the teachers are phenomenal, but the Board needs to work together. 

She stated she feels the Board is split and the room is split. She would like to see better 

communication with parents, a clearer safety plan,, and the Board and Administration work 

together towards solutions. She also inquired about the parent advisory committee. 

• Jacqueline Guzzo, parent, stated she feels trust has eroded in leadership. She stated it appears as 

though administration allowed a known threat in school and expressed concern. 

 

Mr. Doss stated 30 minutes has been exhausted.  

Motion by Mrs. Hernden, supported by Mr. Sellers, to extend the first session of Hearing of School 

District Patrons to go beyond the standard 30 minutes. 



MINUTES OF THE COMMITTEE OF THE WHOLE MEETING FOR APRIL 14, 2025                        Page 3 

L’Anse Creuse Public Schools 

 

 

Discussion followed. 

Roll Call Vote 

Yes: Hernden, Sellers, Da Via, Doss, Lipski, Cyprus 

No: Ross 

Motion carried. 

• Karla Warren, staff member (14 years) and parent, would like to see everyone refocus 

conversations and energy toward educating students. She stated she feels disheartened by the 

negative social media posts and the spreading of misinformation. Jostens professional 

development is needed in the current teaching climate.  

• Carey Wolschleger, parent and former football coach at LCHS-N, stated he is hoping there is an 

internal investigation about the incident at LCHS-N to ensure it doesn’t happen again. 

• Tracy Miller, parent and police officer, stated she has security concerns about why the warrant 

was served in school. She feels trust is needed and in-house security resource officers would help 

build relationships with the students vs. Macomb County Sheriffs who are not able to be always 

present in the buildings.  

• Marie Howard, parent and LCHS-N teacher retiree (25 years), stated she is very concerned about 

the presence of mold at Middle School–North and LCHS-N. She is requesting something be done 

to remediate the water/mold issue in the buildings. 

• Yvonne Michalski, parent, stated the teachers are amazing but feels building conditions at LCHS-

N are poor and the health & safety of students and staff are at risk. She stated the gym floor was 

sealed during school hours and questioned who approved this in October 2023.  

 

Public comment ended at 8:09 p.m. 

 

E. Department Updates 

Mr. Howell stated most department updates are in the agenda. He introduced Mr. Van Camp for an 

update from Human Resources. Mr. Van Camp stated there will be a retiree recognition program on 

May 12 at 4:45 pm in Multi-Purpose room at Wheeler. Forty individuals will be honored, 

representing 1027 years of service to L’Anse Creuse. 

Mr. Howell introduced Mrs. Supanich for an update from Special Education. Mrs. Supanich provided 

an update regarding the annual census cards. These cards are updated and reviewed annually. The 

printing company inadvertently mailed out the cards using an old template, not the current, approved 

one. The company has accepted responsibility and we are requesting a full refund from them for the 

cards and postal costs.  

Discussion followed. 

 

F. Curriculum and Instruction Office 

 
F.1. Student Travel Requests 

Mr. Sellers questioned the ratio of staff to students and the funding of the Jostens Renaissance 

Leadership Conference trip. He stated he does not feel this is something that should be funded by the 

district. Mr. Sellers showed a video of a trip last year to Orlando. 

Mrs. Hernden questioned previous expenditures on student travel requests and how many professional 

development days are gained from event. 

Mrs. Ross questioned what staff members were attending and asked about budget approval for this 

conference. She also questioned why fundraising isn’t in place for part of the costs of the trip. 

Mr. Howell stated it was approved as a part of last year’s budget. He recommended that we have 

some representatives from each school speak to elaborate on the details and benefits of the trip. 



MINUTES OF THE COMMITTEE OF THE WHOLE MEETING FOR APRIL 14, 2025                        Page 4 

L’Anse Creuse Public Schools 

 

 

Mr. Da Via explained that the zero-based budgeting process was used in order to justify building 

needs. He stated he feels there is extreme value in professional development activities such as this but 

would also like to hear from the principals. 

Discussion followed. 

 

G. Business Office 

G.1. Consent Agenda Items 

Mr. Howell advised Mrs. Konon was not present today, but stated if there were any questions, she 

would follow-up on those when she returns. All information was provided in the agenda packet. 

 

• Bond Program Project Series Transfer 

• Accounts Payable Check Register Approval Reminder 

• Budget Report 

• Overtime Report 

• Payment Registers 

• Purchases Bond 

• Purchases 

• Quarterly Budget Update 

• Summary of Investments 

• Summary of Wire Transfers 

H. Human Resources 

H.1. Employment Recommendations 

No questions or comments. 

 

I. Technology 

I.1. Technology Firewall Support Recommendation 

Mr. Streng stated two bids were received and after evaluating both bids it was determined that Delta 

Network Services’ bid met all the requirements and was the lowest bid for a total of $61,231.50 and 

$17,757.14 is E-Rate eligible. Of that amount, the district would be able to get 80% reimbursed which 

would be $14,205.71. This will be brought to the Board for a vote on April 28, 2025.This licensing 

renewal is due July, 2025. 

Discussion followed. 

I.2. *Technology Network Electronics Recommendation 

Mr. Streng stated five bids were received and after evaluating the bids, it was determined that Delta 

Network Services’ bid met all the requirements and was the lowest overall bid when combining the 

costs for both Category 1 and 2 components. The district will bear the full cost of the project totaling 

$1,131,626.84 using bond funds and seek the expected E-Rate reimbursement of $817,464.72 once 

the filing window opens on July 1, 2025. This project was planned for Series 1 and the total cost falls 

within the bond budget. 

Motion by Mr. Sellers, supported by Mr. Da Via, to approve the Technology Network Electronics 

Recommendation as presented. 

Yes:  All 

No: None 

Motion carried. 

 



MINUTES OF THE COMMITTEE OF THE WHOLE MEETING FOR APRIL 14, 2025                        Page 5 

L’Anse Creuse Public Schools 

 

 

J. Operations 

 
J.1. Abatement Associated with Yacks Flooring Project 

Mr. Gratton gave an overview of asbestos abatement and testing as a part of the flooring project. He 

will bring the detailed amounts to the next meeting. The bid was approximately $37,000.00 and 

testing is expected to be about $14,000.00. The total cost is expected to be approximately $51,000.00 

to include abatement and testing. No vote is necesary today. 

 Discussion followed. 

 

K. Other Matters 

 
K.1. Letter to Prosecutor Update 

Mr. Lipski asked if anyone has heard any follow-up regarding this letter. Mr. Sellers advised a news 

station requested follow up and he advised them to follow up with the police department. Mr. Lipski 

stated he would also follow-up on this. 

 

L. Hearing of District Patrons Follow-up 

Public comment began at 8:46 p.m. 

 

• Carrie Ryan, staff member (20 years), stated the Board appeared to be more cohesive as the 

meeting went on, but stated there should be more conflict resolution. She also stated a concern 

about building conditions. She feels leadership conference is needed for the morale of teachers, 

administrators and students and hopes to see a compromise on this issue. She stated clarification 

about whether district is in deficit or surplus is needed. She stated parents and families can be 

resources to the district for low or no cost.  

• Kelly McDevitt, teacher, stated as we are addressing a budget deficit, field trips and other 

expenditures by the district, it should be noted that the words and actions of this Board cost the 

district money in legal expenditures. 

• Kim Anderson, parent, stated her family is a Schools of Choice family and she knows her kids are 

safe and appreciates the thorough process in place to enroll. She stated she is concerned about 

how the student arrested was able to be enrolled. She stated attending L’Anse Creuse is a 

privilege, not a right and feels staff at L’Anse Creuse supports & protects students. 

• Michael Lynch, teacher, stated he understands the challenges in making decisions on how to 

spend resources, but reinforced the value of training and positive changes attending these 

conferences can bring to a building and improving the building culture. 

• Trindin Cavalier, teacher (27 years), stated she has not attended Jostens but stated how much she 

has learned and the value she received from her peers who have attended this conference. She 

listed several community partnerships who have provided gift cards & coupons that are 

distributed to students and by staff and students as positive reinforcement. She invited Board 

members to visit her room to get a feel for the climate and culture this type of professional 

development brings to the student and staff environment. 

• Andrew Zuremski, staff member, volunteer and Schools of Choice parent, stated the process for 

enrolling was very thorough and the people that help them through the process were amazing. He 

stated actions speak louder than words in terms of safety and would like to see improved 

communication, disciplinary policies, and procedures implemented building wide and district 

wide.  

• Michelle Ropp, staff member and former district parent, stated speaking as an employee, 

improved morale is needed and feels expenditure on Jostens trip is unfair. 

 

 

 

 



MINUTES OF THE COMMITTEE OF THE WHOLE MEETING FOR APRIL 14, 2025                        Page 6 

L’Anse Creuse Public Schools 

 

 

M. Board Member Comment 

Mr. Sellers expressed concern about the incident at LCHS-N and that he looks forward to providing 

any information he can learned in the closed session. 

 

Mrs. Hernden thanked community members who spoke and thanked families who contacted her. She 

stated she has received negative feedback regarding the student in question. She stated she spoke to 

parent of victim. She would like to see more accountability and transparency. She disclosed the 

arrested student did not live in district. She stated criminal matters are not protected by FERPA. She 

stated attorneys are threatening lawsuits and she is also looking to remove her child from the district 

as she feels the district cannot protect students.  

 

Mrs. Ross spoke about the word “transparency”, as though the district is not transparent, and 

requested the “LCPS Watchdog” to not talk about transparency if they’re not willing to be transparent 

also.  

 

Mr. Lipski thanked community members who spoke. He also thanked Mr. Howell for his hard work 

and time. He stated they spent over 70-80 hours together doing what is needed to investigate this 

incident over and above his day-to-day tasks. He stated they have a job to do and will inform the 

community as best as they can. He also thanked Mr. Gratton for all he is doing on the Bond projects 

and going above and beyond. 

 

Mr. Doss stated we have a surplus but are in a budget deficit for the year only. He stated there are 

differing leadership styles and he believes in professional courtesy. He operates from a position of 

due diligence and wants the facts before he communicates. Putting the district at risk for liability and 

additional costs is not beneficial for anyone. As a parent, he too wants to see issues handled but it 

must be done in the correct manner. He stated he does not feel threatened by lawyers. They simply 

laid out what should or should not be done to mitigate risk for the district. The budget was approved 

for the Jostens Leader Conference last year by the Board. Even though we know now there is a 

budget shortfall, the job now is making decisions from here on out, not calling out teachers and staff 

about a decision made last year. He stated their job is to make the learning environment better and 

will proceed with more due diligence from here on out and re-evaluate for next year. He thanked the 

community members who spoke and also appreciates how difficult it is to do so. 

 

N. **Closed Session 

 
N.1. Motion to enter closed session under section 8(1)(h) of the Michigan Open Meetings Act to review 

two attorney-client privileged materials that are exempt from disclosure under the Michigan Freedom 

of Information Act. 

N.2. Motion to enter closed session pursuant to Section 8(1)(c) of the Open Meetings Act for strategy and 

negotiation sessions connected with the negotiation of a collective bargaining agreement. 

Motion by Mr. Da Via, supported by Mrs. Hernden, to move into Closed Session for both above 

items at 9:27 p.m. 

Break from 9:27 p.m. until closed session started. 

Discussion followed.  

Roll Call Vote 

Yes: Da Via, Hernden, Doss, Lipski, Cyprus, Ross 

No: Sellers 

Motion carried. 

Motion by Mr. Sellers, supported by Mr. Cyprus, to reconvene to Regular Session at 12:25 a.m., 

April 15, 2025.  

 



MINUTES OF THE COMMITTEE OF THE WHOLE MEETING FOR APRIL 14, 2025                        Page 7 

L’Anse Creuse Public Schools 

 

 

Roll Call Vote 

Yes: Sellers, Cyprus, Hernden, Ross, Doss, Lipski, Da Via 

No: None 

Motion carried. 

 

O. *Adjournment 

Motion by Mr. Sellers, supported by Mr. Da Via, to adjourn the meeting at 12:26 a.m., April 15, 

2025. 

Yes: All 

No: None 

Motion carried. 

 

Respectfully submitted, 

 

 

 

Sharon L. Ross, Secretary  

Board of Education 

SLR:cjg 



 

 

 

 

 

BOARD OF EDUCATION 

REGULAR MEETING MINUTES 

APRIL 28, 2025 – 6:30 P.M. 

The Board of Education of the L’Anse Creuse Public Schools district convened a Regular Board Meeting on 

Monday, April 28, 2025 at 6:30 p.m. at the Harry L. Wheeler Community Center and Administrative Offices, 

located at 24076 F.V. Pankow Boulevard, Clinton Township, Michigan. 

 

A. Call to Order, Pledge of Allegiance, Roll Call 

Mr. Al Doss, Vice President, called the Regular Board Meeting to order at 6:30 p.m. 

Roll Call 

Present:  Mr. Al Doss, Vice President 

Mrs. Sharon Ross, Secretary 

Mr. John Da Via, Treasurer 

Mr. Jeff Cyprus, Trustee 

Mrs. Sandra Hernden, Trustee 

 

Absent:  Mr. Adam Lipski, President – Arrived at 8:17 p.m. 

Mr. Shane Sellers, Trustee 

 

Also present: Mr. Keith Howell, Superintendent 

 Ms. Lisa Montpas, Assistant Superintendent for Curriculum & Instruction 

Mr. Michael Van Camp, Assistant Superintendent for Human Resources 

Ms. Kimberly Rawski, Director for Secondary Education 

Mr. Brandon Streng, Director for Technology 

Ms. Beth Disbrow, Director for Finance 

Ms. Cheryl Goodall, Executive Assistant to the Superintendent 

Employees and Patrons of the District 

 

B. Approval of Agenda 

 

Motion by Mrs. Hernden, supported by Mrs. Ross, to approve the April 28, 2025 Regular Board 

Meeting Agenda as presented with the following changes: 

Mr. Da Via requested to move item I.1. to between items C.4 after the break. 

Yes: All 

No: None 

Motion carried. 

 

C. Presentations 

Mr. Howell introduced the following presentations: 

 

C.1. State Wrestler Recognition 

Mrs. Alysia Samborsky recognized and congratulated LCHS wrestler Nick Martinek, a.k.a. Marty, 

who qualified for the State Wrestling Championship and competed at Ford Field on February 28, 

2025. 

C.2. SkillsUSA State Conference Qualifiers 

The district had six students from the Early Childhood and Criminal Justice programs at the Frederick 

V. Pankow Center qualify for and attend the SkillsUSA State Conference on Saturday, April 12. All  

H.7.b 



MINUTES OF THE REGULAR MEETING FOR APRIL 28, 2025                         Page 2 

L’Anse Creuse Public Schools 

 

 

of the students did a wonderful job representing the programs, the school, and the district. Ms. 

Heather Turak recognized two students for their outstanding achievements in the Early Childhood 

category. Ms. Samantha Giambrone also recognized four students who competed in the Criminal 

Justice category for their outstanding achievements. 

C.3. Secondary Science Olympiad State Qualifiers 

Several students from Middle School-North, Middle School-East, Middle School-Central and LCHS- 

North were recognized and congratulated for qualifying, placing and medaling in the State Science 

Olympiad Competition which took place Saturday, April 26th. 

C.4. L’Anse Creuse Teachers of Year 

Three L’Anse Creuse teachers, one from each level, were selected to represent our district as 

Teachers of the Year. Their dedication to their students, colleagues, and the school community has 

been instrumental in building an environment that allows everyone to learn, grow, and thrive. 

 

Ms. Colleen Furman (Principal at Atwood Elementary) recognized Ms. Ashley Berube as Elementary 

Teacher of the Year. 

 

Mr. Michael Van Camp (Assistant Superintendent for Human Resources) recognized Mr. Brian 

MacDonald of Middle School-South, as Middle School Teacher of the Year. 

 

Ms. Alysia Samborsky (Principal at LCHS) recognized Ms. Gail Ashburn of LCHS as High School 

Teacher of the Year and the 2025 High School Teacher of the Year for all of Macomb County. 

 

Mr. Doss called a break from 7:05 p.m. to 7:15 p.m. 

I.1. *Bond Program Project Series Transfer (See agenda change in item B.) 

Motion by Mr. Cyprus, supported by Mr. Da Via to approve the Bond Program Project Series 

Transfer as presented. 

Yes: All 

No: None 

Motion carried. 

D. Hearing of School District Patrons 
 
 

Trindin Cavalier, teacher at LCHS-North, spoke about the achievements occurring at LCHS-North. 

Michael Lynch, teacher at LCHS-North (28 years), described his positive experiences engaging with 

students and the importance of culture building in the school district. He used the theme of “nothing 

is impossible” as an example. 

Kristin Carson, resident of Harrison Township, expressed desire for more transparency regarding 

student arrest. She also expressed concern about the district not signing the document stating our 

district in compliance with the executive order. 

Matthew Carson, parent and former L’Anse Creuse student, expressed concerns about security and 

the availability of extra support in schools.  

Gail Ashburn, teacher at LCHS, spoke to the expansion of the student leadership program and all they 

do to better student achievement and behavior. Renaissance also positively benefits school culture.  

Hayley Chapman, senior at LCHS, expressed gratitude for support of the band program. She also 

recognized the accomplishments and benefits of band program and expressed importance of having a 

trailer for the band.  

 



MINUTES OF THE REGULAR MEETING FOR APRIL 28, 2025                         Page 3 

L’Anse Creuse Public Schools 

 

 

Mr. P. expressed gratitude for board pictures being posted on the website. He stated one of his FOIA 

requests was denied requesting communication records between the school district and the sheriff’s 

office due to there being no record.  

Kelly McDevitt, teacher and president of LCEA, expressed commitment to make L’Anse Creuse the 

top district in the state. She’s continuing her series “Teacher Triumphs”, highlighting the hard work 

and dedication of the teachers, staff, students and school community. She named several Middle 

School-Central teachers, referencing student score improvements and growth. These teachers 

identified 119 students recognized for achieving academic excellence and positive respectful 

behavior, which in turn is improving school climate. She thanked all for the continued support and 

thanked the MSC family and all teachers for all they do. 

Motion by Mrs. Hernden, supported by Mr. Da Via, to extend the beginning portion of public 

comments. 

Discussion followed. 

Roll Call Vote 

Yes: Hernden, Da Via 

No: Cyprus, Doss, Ross 

Motion failed. 

 

Mr. Doss read a statement from Mr. Lipski, Board President, indicating the Board will meet in closed 

session regarding the ongoing internal review of the incident at LCHS-North. The district will provide a 

statement to the community in the coming days and everyone’s patience is appreciated. 

E. Superintendent’s Report 

 

E.1. District Update 

Mr. Howell presented the promotional video for L’Anse created by Michael Kaufman. He stated 

when he started at LCPS, the overall goal he wanted to see was being student-focused and 

community-minded. 

F. ** Consent Agenda 
Please note: Unless removed from the Consent Agenda, items identified within the Consent Agenda will be acted on at one time. 

F.1. Budget Report 

F.2. Overtime Report 

F.3. Payment Registers 

F.4. Purchases Bond 

F.5. Purchases 

F.6. Quarterly Budget Update 

F.7. Summary of Investments 

F.8. Summary of Wire Transfers 

F.9. Accounts Payable Check Register Approval Reminder 

F.10. Employment Recommendations 

F.11. Student Travel Requests 

F.12. Board Minutes: 

a. March 31, 2025 Regular Meeting Minutes 

Mr. Lipski arrived at 8:17 p.m. 

Mr. Doss read an email sent to the Board of Education by the principals at both high schools, Mrs. 

Samborsky and Mrs. Beard regarding the Jostens/Renaissance conference indicating the numerous 

benefits to students and staff, along with climate and culture at the schools. They were also able to 

obtain a sponsorship in the amount of $9,600.00 from Jostens to help offset some of the cost. Staff 



MINUTES OF THE REGULAR MEETING FOR APRIL 28, 2025                         Page 4 

L’Anse Creuse Public Schools 

 

has already gone through the appropriate process to get this conference approved and it has already 

been approved by the Board. 

Discussion followed. 

Motion by Mr. Lipski, supported by Mr. Cyprus, to call the question on the discussion of the Consent 

Agenda. 

Roll Call Vote 
Yes: Lipski, Cyprus, Doss, Da Via, Ross  

No: Hernden 

Motion carried. 

Motion by Mr. Cyprus, supported by Mr. Da Via, to approve the consent agenda as presented. 

Roll Call Vote 

Yes: Cyprus, Da Via, Doss, Lipski, Ross 

No: Hernden 

Motion carried. 

G. Technology 

G.1.  *Technology Firewall Support Recommendation 

Motion by Mr. Da Via, supported by Mr. Cyprus, to approve the Technology Firewall Support 

Recommendation as presented. 

Yes: All 

No: None 

Motion carried. 

H. Operations 

H.1. *Abatement Associated with Yacks Flooring Project 

Motion by Mr. Cyprus, supported by Mr. Da Via, to approve the Abatement Associated with Yacks 

Flooring Project as presented. 

Yes: All 

No: None 

Motion carried. 

I. Other Matters 

I.2. Letter to Prosecutor Update 

Mr. Lipski stated that there is no update, it is an active case but no one has picked up the case at this 

time. 

I.3. Legislative Update 

Mr. Howell provided an overview stating the district is in compliance with Title VI, but the 

compliance document was not signed due to an injunction put in place by the courts that put a halt on 

the certification. He obtained four legal opinions who verified this as the correct action at this time 

until the matter is settled in the courts. This is the action being taken by many districts in the State of 

Michigan at this time. Courts have halted certifications and there is no risk of losing federal funding. 

 Discussion followed. 

J. Hearing of School District Patrons Follow-up 

Public comment began at 8:32 p.m. 

 
 

 



MINUTES OF THE REGULAR MEETING FOR APRIL 28, 2025                         Page 5 

L’Anse Creuse Public Schools 

 

 

Patrick Corcoran, teacher at Pellerin, stated Mike Davey is retiring this year after 34 years. He 

expressed how he has been a mentor to him and that he leaves a great legacy of dedication to students 

and LCPS. 

Jacob Mason, resident and former student, expressed congratulations and appreciation to teacher Gail 

Ashburn. He expressed frustration with the lack of support for field trips and the challenges with 

fundraising. He stated he would like to see more presence by Board members in the schools so they 

could see firsthand the benefits of the Renaissance leadership program. He stated true leadership is 

about being present and lifting others up.  

Delilah McFadden, freshman at LCHS, marching band member expressed appreciation for support by 

the district and the Board for the band program. 

Kelly Turri, parent, addressed concerns about safety and stated she is hurt to see teachers and the 

superintendent being torn down by a Board member for handling a situation appropriately and 

swiftly. She stated all should be standing together in unity and strength.  

Mr. P, resident, stated he wants his name read as written. He made a complaint against Board member 

Mrs. Sharon Ross and stated her name twice. Mr. Lipski stated since she was named twice, she has 

the option to go into closed session with the speaker. Mrs. Ross stated she wanted to go into closed 

session. 

A call to enter into Closed Session followed at 8:52 p.m. 

Roll Call Vote 

Yes: Ross, Lipski, Doss, Da Via, Cyprus  

No: Hernden 

Motion carried. 

Motion by Mr. Cyprus, supported by Mr. Da Via, to reconvene to Regular Session at 9:01 pm. 

Roll Call Vote 

Yes: Cyprus, Da Via, Doss, Hernden, Lipski, Ross  

No: None 

Motion carried. 

Michael Lynch, teacher at LCHS-North, stated school boards are elected but are not local government 

as defined by Michigan law. He stated the Board is given a charge and responsibility to put kids first 

and do what’s best for them always. 

Tallan Krueger, student at LCHS-North, presented a petition with 104 signatures to not displace 

teacher, Mrs. Carra. He stated he views LCHS-N as a family and thanked the Board and 

administration. 

Motion by Mr. Lipski, supported by Mr. Da Via, to move item L. Board Member Comment prior to 

item K. Closed Session in the event the closed session runs long. 

Roll Call Vote 

Yes: All 

No: None 

Motion carried. 

L. Board Member Comment 

Mr. Lipski thanked the Board for activities related to the Bond and approving the band trailer 

purchase even though it was a part of Series 2. He also thanked Mr. Doss for filling in for him while 

he attended to family commitments. He also thanked Mr. Howell for his time and dedication. He 

thanked all who spoke or wrote an email to the Board also. 

Mrs. Hernden congratulated all students who received rewards and the teachers of the year. She stated 

incident at LCHS-North is about safety and accountability. She expressed dissatisfaction with district 

leadership regarding the compliance letter and with general accountability.  



MINUTES OF THE REGULAR MEETING FOR APRIL 28, 2025                         Page 6 

L’Anse Creuse Public Schools 

 

 

Mr. Da Via stated he has worked as a teacher, coach and administrator for many superintendents, and 

Mr. Howell is the most student-centered superintendent he’s worked with in his entire career. He also 

shared he attended a tennis matches between LCHS and LCHS-North, and was impressed not only 

with their play, but with the respect, sportsmanship and honesty towards one another. 

Mr. Cyprus congratulated the award recipients and the teachers of the year. He stated while he loves 

to hear about their accomplishments, teachers shouldn’t feel the need to justify the quality of the work 

they do. He questioned what type of culture the Board is building. The culture starts with leadership 

and the Board needs to support Mr. Howell in building it. He reiterated the dedication of the group of 

MSC teachers that Ms. McDevitt spoke about. He also stated the safety survey was very well done 

and encouraged everyone to take the time to complete it. He stated as a Board, if we don’t like a 

policy, then let’s change it and not argue about it in public. He would like to see it handled in the 

correct way. 

Mrs. Ross congratulated students and teachers who were recognized this evening. Mrs. Ross 

acknowledged the contributions of Mr. Davey. She also acknowledged the amount of work Mr. 

Howell is putting in and said it’s very much appreciated. The Board as a group should be able to be 

respectful and do the work of the district for students and staff. Transparency needs to be from 

everyone including the watchdog group that is demanding transparency, yet not transparent 

themselves. She stated it’s okay to agree to disagree. She would like to see a stop to the subversive 

behavior. 

Mr. Doss expressed congratulations to those who received awards this evening. He also stated his 

appreciation to Mr. Howell for due diligence to protect the district’s liability and to ensure the district 

is making the right decisions. Mr. Doss read an email from a parent sent to Board members this week, 

regarding a threat made to her student a period of time ago, and expressing how professionally, 

swiftly, and compassionately the staff and law enforcement responded to her student and their family.  

 

K. **Closed Session 

K.1. Motion to enter closed session under section 8(1)(h) of the Michigan Open Meetings Act to review 

two attorney-client privileged materials that are exempt from disclosure under the Michigan Freedom 

of Information Act and pursuant to Section 8(1)(c) of the Open Meetings Act for strategy and 

negotiation sessions connected with the negotiation of a collective bargaining agreement. 

Motion by Mr. Cyprus, supported by Mr. Da Via to move into Closed Session at 9:31 p.m. 

 

Roll Call Vote 

Yes: Cyprus, Da Via, Ross, Hernden, Lipski, Doss 

No: None 

Motion carried. 

Motion by Mr. Da Via, supported by Mr. Lipski to reconvene to Regular Session at 11:17 p.m. 

 

Roll Call Vote 

Yes: Da Via, Lipski, Cyprus, Doss, Hernden, Ross 

No: None 

Motion carried. 

M. *Adjournment 

Motion by Mr. Lipski, supported by Mr. Da Via, to adjourn the meeting at 11:18 p.m. 

Yes: All 

No: None 

Motion carried. 

 



MINUTES OF THE REGULAR MEETING FOR APRIL 28, 2025                         Page 7 

L’Anse Creuse Public Schools 

 

 

Respectfully submitted, 

 

 

 

Sharon L. Ross, Secretary  

Board of Education 

SLR:cjg 



 

 

 

 

 

BOARD OF EDUCATION 

COMMITTEE OF THE WHOLE MEETING MINUTES 

MAY 12, 2025 – 6:30 P.M. 

 

The Board of Education of the L’Anse Creuse Public Schools district convened a Committee of the Whole 

Meeting on Monday, May 12, 2025 at 6:30 p.m. at the Harry L. Wheeler Community Center and 

Administrative Offices, located at 24076 F.V. Pankow Boulevard, Clinton Township, Michigan. 

 

A. Call to Order, Pledge of Allegiance, Roll Call, Voting Meeting 

 Mr. Adam Lipski, President, called the Committee of the Whole meeting to order at 6:30 p.m. 

 

Roll Call 

 

Present:  Mr. Adam Lipski, President 

Mr. Al Doss, Vice President 

Mrs. Sharon Ross, Secretary 

Mr. John Da Via, Treasurer 

Mrs. Sandra Hernden, Trustee 

 

Absent:  Mr. Jeffrey Cyprus, Trustee 

Mr. Shane Sellers, Trustee 

 

Also Present: Mr. Keith Howell, Superintendent 

Ms. Lisa Montpas, Assistant Superintendent for Curriculum & Instruction 

Mr. Michael Van Camp, Assistant Superintendent for Human Resources 

Ms. Kathy Konon, Assistant Superintendent for Business & Operations 

Ms. Kimberly Rawski, Director for Secondary Education 

Dr. Tony Sedick, Director for Elementary Education 

Dr. Major Mickens, Director for Community Education and Student Services 

Mr. Donald Gratton, Director for Operations 

Mr. Brandon Streng, Director for Technology 

Ms. Cheryl Goodall, Executive Assistant to the Superintendent 

Employees and Patrons of the District 

 

Mr. Lipski stated the Board will need make a motion to make this a voting meeting.  

 

Discussion followed. 

 

Motion by Mr. Doss, supported by Mr. Da Via, to make this a voting meeting and to make item F.4. 

Recommendation for Kitchen Equipment Purchase a voting item. 

 

Yes: All 

No: None 

Motion carried. 

B. Board Member Complaint 

Mr. Lipski read a letter received by Mr. Howell from a community member who spoke at the Regular 

Board meeting on April 28, 2025. Mr. Lipski reminded the Board to not engage with the community 

during public comments. He stated no further action is needed at this time, encourages public 

participation and looks forward to a productive meeting. 

H.7.c. 



 MINUTES OF THE COMMITTEE OF THE WHOLE MEETING FOR MAY 12, 2025                 Page 2 

 

L’Anse Creuse Public Schools 

 

C. Hearing of School District Patrons 

Jennifer Tuttle, teacher, retiring this year, has been with district as a student, camp counselor, teacher 

and literacy specialist for 45 years. As she is leaving LCPS, she thanked the LCPS community and 

recognized several other educators, administrators and colleagues who had an impact on her life. She 

welcomed Mr. Howell to the district and appreciates his communication and the direction he is taking 

the district in.  

 

Michelle Ropp, parent and staff member, expressed dissatisfaction with communication sent by the 

district regarding the budget deficit. 

 

Mr. P. recognized the school bus drivers in the district. He also spoke regarding the budget deficit and 

questioned where the cuts will be. He also addressed the Board Member Complaint letter written by 

him and while the matter was addressed, but no further action taken, he will file a civil lawsuit in 

Federal Court against the District.  

 

D. Superintendent’s Report 

D.1. District Update 

Mr. Howell stated retirees were recognized at a celebration prior to the meeting and he appreciated 

hearing about their careers and their dedication to LCPS. He also acknowledged the families of those 

in the field of education as their loved ones sacrifice a large amount of time as well. On May 4, he 

attended the South River’s 150 Year celebration. He stated it was a pleasure to attend this community 

event and meet people and learn more about what South Rover has meant to the community for so 

many years. The event included community members from 1974 for the opening of the time capsule. 

He also recognized all of the transportation staff for transportation week. Recently the annual “Road-

e-o” vent took place county wide. LCPS had two teams at this event competing in a variety of events. 

Our drivers did a great job representing LCPS and won several awards. He thanked the bus drivers 

and all of the transportation staff for their hard work & dedication to this important part of our 

district. 

D.2. Department Updates 

Mr. Van Camp stated 43 new retirees totaling 1,106 years of service to L’Anse Creuse were honored 

at the celebration today. Listening to some of the speeches and stories shared show that when anyone 

chooses to work for schools, in any capacity, we are all educators, regardless of job title, choosing to 

make a difference in the lives of kids every day. He stated it was an honor to be able to recognize the 

retirees today. 

Mr. Streng gave a report on behalf of Technology & Operations. He stated the district has been using 

the School Dude platform for several years for technology, maintenance and facility requests but 

price has been increasing over the years. He stated that he and Mr. Gratton have had experience with 

the FMX platform and are working on the project to migrate to the FMX platform which will result in 

approximately a $15,000.00 reduction in software subscription fees annually. 

Mr. Howell stated the rest of the department updates will take place within the agenda.  

Discussion followed. 

E. Curriculum and Instruction Office 

E.1. Benchmark Assessment – NWEA 

Ms. Montpas stated this is an annual renewal the district has been doing for the past several years. 

She stated there has also been a reimbursement grant for grades K-8 in years past. The grant amount 



 MINUTES OF THE COMMITTEE OF THE WHOLE MEETING FOR MAY 12, 2025                 Page 3 

 

L’Anse Creuse Public Schools 

 

is pending legislation but it is lower than in prior years. We expect to have this information in 

November or December. 

Discussion followed. 

E.2. Recommendation to begin CTE Consortium with Faith Christian School (New for the 2025-2026 

school year) 

Ms. Montpas stated Faith Christian School approached the district asking to become a part of the CTE 

consortium. A former student who had a wonderful experience in the CTE program at Pankow is now 

employed at this school and asked their leadership if this would be something they would like to 

participate in. This school would be added along with all of our other consortiums, allowing 

participation in CTE programs at Pankow.  

Discussion followed. 

E.3. Health Book Recommendation 9-12 

Ms. Montpas stated a pilot survey was done. These textbooks have not been replaced since 2010. The 

curriculum is not changing, just the materials to be used. 

Discussion followed. 

E.4. Student Travel Requests 

 There was no discussion. 

E.5. School Age Child Care (SACC) Tuition Rate Proposal 

Dr. Sedick stated an analysis was done and the program is currently operating in the red due to new 

employee contracts and inflation. He detailed the plan the district is recommending for a new tuition 

flat-rate structure and fees to cover costs to run the program and bring it more in line with comparable 

programs in other districts, maintaining fiscal responsibility. The changes include an increase in the 

annual registration fee from $25.00 per family to $50.00 per child, with a maximum of $75.00 per 

family, a flat rate fee system, a late fee, and a research fee. 

 E.6. Tuition Based Preschool & Early Childhood Before- and After-Care Rate Increase Proposal 

Dr. Sedick stated, similar to SACC it appears as though these programs have also been operating in 

the red for the past several years for similar reasons. He worked with the Early Childhood Director to 

put together some modest price increases to these programs also, stating that there have not been any 

increases since 2016. He detailed the changes proposed which included a non-refundable deposit of 

$60.00, a $25.00 late fee, and elimination of the 2 day program, offering only a 3, 4, or 5 day 

schedule. 

Discussion followed. 

F. Business Office 

F.1. Consent Agenda Items 

• Budget Report & Quarterly Budget Update 

• Payment Registers 

• Overtime Report 

• Summary of Investments & Wire Transfers 

Discussion followed. 

F.2. *Bond Owner/Architect Contract-Partners in Architecture (PIA) 



 MINUTES OF THE COMMITTEE OF THE WHOLE MEETING FOR MAY 12, 2025                 Page 4 

 

L’Anse Creuse Public Schools 

 

Mrs. Konon provided an overview of the contract. 

Motion by Mr. Doss, supported by Mr. Da Via, to approve the Bond Owner/Architect Contract-

Partners in Architecture (PIA) as presented. 

Yes: All 

No: None 

Motion carried. 

F.3. *Bond Owner/Technology Designer Services 

Motion by Mr. Doss, supported by Mr. Da Via, to approve the Bond Owner/Technology Designer 

Services as presented. 

Yes: All 

No: None 

Motion carried. 

F.4. *Recommendation for Kitchen Equipment Purchase – Double Oven, Refrigerator, Warming Cabinets 

Motion by Mr. Doss, supported by Mr. Da Via, to approve the Recommendation for Kitchen 

Equipment Purchase – Double Oven (MSS), Refrigerator (LCHS), Warming Cabinets (LCHS-N) as 

presented. 

Yes: All 

No: None 

Motion carried. 

F.5. Recommendation for Priority Waste Contract Extension 

The proposal is to renew the agreement with Priority Waste for which will extend the contract term 

from July 1, 2025, through June 30, 2026, and reflects an increase of $1,865 over the current fiscal 

year, which represents a 2.6% increase.  

Discussion followed. 

F.6. Resolution to Request a Truth-In-Budget Hearing 

 There was no discussion. 

G. Human Resources Office 

G.1. Employment Recommendations 

There was no discussion. 

H. Other Matters 

H.1. Resolution for MISD Budget 

There was no discussion. 

H.2. *Band Trailer Bid Award 

Mr. Gratton provided details regarding the two bids received for the trailer purchase and 

recommended the lower bid at a cost of $223,020.99. 

Discussion followed. 



 MINUTES OF THE COMMITTEE OF THE WHOLE MEETING FOR MAY 12, 2025                 Page 5 

 

L’Anse Creuse Public Schools 

 

Motion by Mr. Da Via, supported by Mrs. Hernden, to approve the Band Trailer Bid Award as 

presented. 

Yes: All 

No: None 

Motion carried. 

H.3. Letter to Prosecutor 

Mr. Lipski stated neither he nor other Board members have received any updates. 

H.4. *Resolution for Designation of Electoral Representative & Alternate for the MISD Biennial Election 

Discussion followed. 

Motion by Mr. Doss, supported by Mr. Da Via, to approve Designation of Electoral Representative & 

Alternate for the MISD Biennial Election for Mr. Lipski as the representative and Mrs. Hernden as 

the alternate as presented. 

Yes: All 

No: None 

Motion carried. 

I. Hearing of School District Patrons Follow-up 

No patrons addressed the Board at this time. 

J. Board Member Comment 

Mr. Doss congratulated the LCPS retirees. He also attended the LCHS Honors program and was 

proud to see how many students are graduating with honors and is looking forward to attending 

LCHS-N’s honors program. 

Mr. Da Via stated he is happy for the retirees but is a bit concerned about the difficulty in replacing 

1,106 years of experience. He stated he wishes the Human Resources luck in this endeavor. 

Mrs. Hernden recognized two coaches inducted into the hall of fame and thanked them for their 

dedication. She stated the LCHS-N girls tennis team has gone undefeated this season and are MAC 

champs. She thanked the Transportation Department for all that they do in spite of challenges they 

face. She thanked Ms. Tuttle for her years of service and dedication. She stated she agrees with Ms. 

Ropp and hopes appropriate budget cuts and concessions are made in the district. She stated she 

believes federal funding is at risk for the district. She stated this is police week and thanked police 

officers and their families for their service. She stated this week also includes Armed Forces Day and 

would the members of the military for their service. 

Mr. Lipski stated we have 5 presentations coming up for the next Board meeting to celebrate our 

students and staff and is looking forward to it. We will also be celebrating student athletes who have 

signed letters of intent and we will be celebrating them at the Board meeting in June. He stated it’s 

nice to see how much the district has to celebrate including the retirees this year. He also thanked the 

culinary team for a job well done for the retiree celebration. 

K. **Closed Session – Motion to enter closed session pursuant to Section 8(h) of the Open Meetings 

Act to discuss material exempt from discussion or disclosure by State or Federal statute, including 

two written opinions of legal counsel subject to attorney-client privilege. 

Motion by Mr. Doss, supported by Mrs. Ross, to move into Closed Session at 7:44 p.m. 

 

 



 MINUTES OF THE COMMITTEE OF THE WHOLE MEETING FOR MAY 12, 2025                 Page 6 

 

L’Anse Creuse Public Schools 

 

Roll Call Vote 

Yes: Doss, Ross, Lipski, Hernden, Da Via  

No: None 

Motion carried. 

Motion by Mrs. Ross, supported by Mrs. Hernden, to reconvene to Regular Session at 8:24 p.m. 

 

Roll Call Vote 

Yes: Ross, Hernden, Doss, Lipski, Da Via 

No: None 

Motion carried. 

K. *Adjournment 

Motion by Mr. Doss, supported by Mrs. Ross, to adjourn the meeting at 8:25 p.m. 

 

Yes:  All 

No: None 

Motion carried. 

 

Respectfully submitted, 

 

 

 

Sharon L. Ross, Secretary  

Board of Education 

SLR:cjg 



 

 

 

 

 

BOARD OF EDUCATION 

REGULAR MEETING MINUTES 

MAY 19, 2025 – 6:30 P.M. 

 

The Board of Education of the L’Anse Creuse Public Schools district convened a Regular Board Meeting on 

Monday, May 19, 2025 at 6:30 p.m. at the Harry L. Wheeler Community Center and Administrative Offices, 

located at 24076 F.V. Pankow Boulevard, Clinton Township, Michigan. 

 

A. Call to Order, Pledge of Allegiance, Roll Call 

 Mr. Al Doss, Vice President, called the Regular Board Meeting to order at 6:30 p.m. 

 

Roll Call 

 

Present:  Mr. Al Doss, Vice President 

Mrs. Sharon Ross, Secretary 

Mr. John Da Via, Treasurer 

Mr. Jeffrey Cyprus, Trustee 

Mrs. Sandra Hernden, Trustee 

Mr. Shane Sellers, Trustee 

 

Absent:  Mr. Adam Lipski, President 

 

Also Present: Mr. Keith Howell, Superintendent 

Ms. Lisa Montpas, Assistant Superintendent for Curriculum & Instruction 

Mr. Michael Van Camp, Assistant Superintendent for Human Resources 

Mrs. Kathy Konon, Assistant Superintendent for Business & Operations 

Mrs. Kimberly Rawski, Director for Secondary Education 

Dr. Tony Sedick, Director for Elementary Education 

Dr. Major Mickens, Director for Community Education and Student Services 

Mrs. Beth Disbrow, Director for Finance 

Mr. Brandon Streng, Director for Technology 

Ms. Cheryl Goodall, Executive Assistant to the Superintendent 

Employees and Patrons of the District 

 

B. *Approval of Agenda for the May 19, 2025 Regular Board Meeting 

Motion by Mr. Cyprus, supported by Mrs. Ross, to approve the May 19, 2025 Regular Board Meeting 

Agenda as presented. 

 

Yes: All 

No: None 

Motion carried. 

C. Presentations 

C.1. L’Anse Creuse High School Saxophone Quartet 

Mr. Howell congratulated the saxophone quartet from LCHS who was selected to perform in the 

Michigan School Band and Orchestra Association’s (MSBOA) Spring Honors Festival Concert. Their 

selection marks only the third time in the history of our District that an ensemble has been selected 

for this honor. Only 61 ensembles out of the 1,000+ ensembles statewide received this nomination, 

and the group from LCHS was one of only four ensembles in the state to be selected. They performed 

a musical piece for the community.    

H.7.d. 



 MINUTES OF THE REGULAR MEETING FOR MAY 19, 2025                  | Page 2 

 

L’Anse Creuse Public Schools 

 

C.2. DECA State Finalists and International Qualifiers 

Mr. Howell congratulated the DECA programs at both high schools for the successful year, including 

showings at the State Competition in Detroit and several students qualifying for the International 

Competition in Orlando, Florida.  

Ms. Rebecca Culver of LCHS and Mr. Josh Lamberti of LCHS-N both spoke recognizing the 

successful year and the numerous accomplishments of the DECA students. They both expressed the 

extreme pride they have in their DECA members. 

The student president and co-presidents also spoke expressing their appreciation for their teachers and 

sponsors for the support and guidance in the DECA program and on a daily basis. 

C.3. Macomb County Coaches Hall of Fame Induction 

Mr. Howell stated Donald Roda is retiring this year after 31 years of service as a teacher and coach at 

L’Anse Creuse High School. On May 1, Mr. Roda was inducted into the Macomb County Coaches’ 

Hall of Fame. Mr. Howell then introduced Ms. Alysia Samborsky, principal at LCHS who 

congratulated and thanked Mr. Roda for his more than 4 decades of dedication. 

C.4. Valedictorians and Salutatorians 

Mr. Howell recognized and congratulated the 2025 Valedictorians and Salutatorians from LCHS and 

LCHS-N. 

C.5. Macomb County All Academic Honorees 

Mr. Howell recognized and congratulated the students who were selected by the MISD as All-

Academic Honorees, representing LCPS for their achievements in academic excellence in Macomb 

County.  

C.6. Military Student Recognition 

Mr. Howell recognized a student who, as of Decision Day on May 1, has committed to serving in the 

Marines. There are a total of four district students who have chosen to join one of the branches of our 

U.S. Armed Forces. 

Mr. Howell also recognized any veterans that were present and thanked them for their service. 

Mr. Doss called a break from 7:01 p.m. – 7:10 p.m. 

D. Hearing of School District Patrons 

Pam Sape stated she has a granddaughter at LCHS-N and thanked the staff for her granddaughter’s 

high assessment test scores and shared she has also received an athletic scholarship to play basketball. 

She also has a 6th grade grandson at MSN who struggled during the Covid shutdown and is now doing 

great. She expressed concern about job cuts at the building level. 

 

Mr. P congratulated students and staff that were recognized today. He stated that his rights were 

violated on April 28, 2025 and is requesting an apology from the Board.  

 

Kelly McDevitt, president of LCEA, stated she is continuing her monthly series of Teacher Triumphs. 

She shared a story of a teacher discovering a student in need, providing assistance to a student, their 

sibling and the student’s single parent who also had medical challenges. She shared how the teacher 

went above and beyond to assist this student and their family. The teacher spouse also helped to assist 

the student and their family when they were able to secure a better place to live. This student is now 

in high school and is thriving in his environment. 

 



 MINUTES OF THE REGULAR MEETING FOR MAY 19, 2025                  | Page 3 

 

L’Anse Creuse Public Schools 

 

Yvonne Michalski, parent, stated she is following up on environmental issues she believes are present 

at LCHS-N. She expressed concerns about building conditions and would like to see additional 

testing done.   

 

E. Superintendent’s Report 

E.1. District Update 

Mr. Howell stated a comprehensive interview and review process has been completed and he’s 

looking forward to bringing the two candidates selected for the elementary principal positions at 

Higgins and Tenniswood. Their employment recommendations will be coming to the Board on June 

9. He recognized the interview team who did a great job with this process. 

Mr. Howell stated May brings many celebrations and appreciates all the students that were present 

tonight and at the last Board meeting. He stated a number of great things are happening at L’Anse 

Creuse and appreciates all we’re celebrating and is looking forward to the graduations. 

E.2. Recommendation for Expulsion of Student #0403 

Motion by Mr. Sellers, supported by Mr. Da Via, to approve the Resolution for Expulsion of Student 

#0403 as presented. 

 Discussion followed.   

 Roll Call Vote 

 Yes: Sellers, Da Via, Hernden, Cyprus, Ross, Doss 

 No: None 

 Motion carried. 

F. Consent Agenda 
Please note: Unless removed from the Consent Agenda, items identified within the Consent Agenda will be acted on at one time. 

Motion by Mr. Sellers, supported by Mr. Da Via, to approve the following Consent Agenda items as 

presented. 

F.1. Budget Report & Quarterly Budget Update 

F.2. Payment Registers 

F.3. Purchases (None this month) 

F.4. Summary of Investments & Wire/ACH Transfers 

F.5. Employment Recommendations 

F.6. Student Travel Requests 

Discussion followed. 

Roll Call Vote 

Yes: Sellers, Da Via, Ross, Hernden, Doss, Cyprus 

No: None 

Motion carried. 

G. Curriculum and Instruction 

G.1. Benchmark Assessment – NWEA 

Motion by Mr. Sellers, supported by Mr. Cyprus, to approve the Benchmark Assessment – NWEA as 

presented. 

Yes: All 

No: None 

Motion carried. 



 MINUTES OF THE REGULAR MEETING FOR MAY 19, 2025                  | Page 4 

 

L’Anse Creuse Public Schools 

 

G.2. Recommendation to begin CTE Consortium with Faith Christian School 

 (New for the 2025-2026 school year) 

Motion by Mr. Sellers, supported by Mr. Da Via, to approve the Recommendation to begin CTE 

Consortium with Faith Christian School as presented. 

Yes: All 

No: None 

Motion carried. 

G.3. Health Book Recommendation 9-12 

Motion by Mr. Sellers, supported by Mrs. Hernden, to approve the Health Book Recommendation 9-

12 as presented. 

Yes: All 

No: None 

Motion carried. 

G.4. School Age Child Care (SACC) Tuition Rate Proposal 

The changes include an increase in the annual registration fee from $25.00 per family to $50.00 per 

child, with a maximum of $75.00 per family, a flat rate fee system, a late fee, and a research fee. 

Motion by Mr. Sellers, supported by Mr. Da Via, to approve the School Age Child Care (SACC) 

Tuition Rate Proposal as presented. 

Discussion followed. 

 

Yes: All 

No: None 

Motion carried. 

 

G.5. Tuition Based Preschool & Early Childhood Before- and After-Care Rate Increase Proposal 

The changes include a non-refundable deposit of $60.00, a $25.00 late fee, and elimination of the 2 

day program, offering only a 3, 4, or 5 day schedule. 

Motion by Mr. Sellers, supported by Mr. Da Via, to approve the Tuition Based Preschool & Early 

Childhood Before- and After-Care Rate Increase Proposal as presented. 

Yes: All 

No: None 

Motion carried. 

H. Business Office 

H.1. Recommendation for Priority Waste Contract Extension 

The proposal is to renew the agreement with Priority Waste for which will extend the contract term 

from July 1, 2025, through June 30, 2026, and reflects an increase of $1,865 over the current fiscal 

year, which represents a 2.6% increase.  

Motion by Mr. Sellers, supported by Mrs. Hernden, to approve the Recommendation for Priority 

Waste Contract Extension as presented. 

Discussion followed. 

 

 



 MINUTES OF THE REGULAR MEETING FOR MAY 19, 2025                  | Page 5 

 

L’Anse Creuse Public Schools 

 

Yes: All 

No: None 

Motion carried. 

H.2. Recommendation to Accept Form L-4029 

Motion by Mr. Sellers, supported by Mr. Da Via, to approve the Recommendation to Accept Form L-

4029 (2025 Tax Rate Request) as presented. 

Yes: All 

No: None 

Motion carried. 

H.3. Resolution to Request a Truth-In-Budget Hearing 

Motion by Mr. Sellers, supported by Mrs. Hernden, to approve the Resolution to Request a Truth-In-

Budget Hearing as presented. 

Yes: All 

No: None 

Motion carried. 

I. Operations 

I.1. Vehicle Purchase (Grounds) 

Mrs. Konon read a statement of explanation on behalf of Mr. Gratton who was unable to attend the 

meeting. The cost of the vehicle with the plow is $58,942.00 using the MiDeal contract pricing. When 

including the insurance pay-off for the previous vehicle, this becomes approximately a $46,600.00 

expenditure out of the Operations budget. 

 

Motion by Mr. Da Via, supported by Mrs. Ross, to approve the Vehicle Purchase (Grounds) as 

presented. 

Yes: All 

No: None 

Motion carried. 

J. Other Matters 

J.1. Resolution for MISD Budget 

Motion by Mr. Sellers, supported by Mrs. Ross, to approve the Resolution for MISD Budget as 

presented. 

Roll Call Vote 

Yes: All 

No: None 

Motion carried. 

J.2. Resolution for Designation of Electoral Representative & Alternate for the MISD Biennial Election 

Mr. Howell stated that the Board is not required by law to have an alternate. Mr. Lipski was selected 

as the representative at the meeting on May 12, 2025. Mrs. Hernden requested to be removed as the 

alternate. No other action needed. 

Discussion followed. 

J.3. Resolution for Designation of Electoral Representative & Candidate Selection for the MISD Biennial 

Election 



 MINUTES OF THE REGULAR MEETING FOR MAY 19, 2025                  | Page 6 

 

L’Anse Creuse Public Schools 

 

Motion by Mr. Da Via, supported by Mr. Sellers, to approve the Resolution for Designation of 

Electoral Representative & Candidate Selection of Mr. Hubler and Mr. Farley for the MISD Biennial 

Election to be voted on by MISD Biennial Election representative Adam Lipski on June 2, 2025. 

Discussion followed. 

 

Yes: All 

No: None 

Motion carried. 

K. Hearing of School District Patrons Follow-up 

 None at this time. 

L. Board Member Comment 

Mr. Cyprus stated it was great to see student presentations and congratulated everyone on a successful 

school year. 

Mr. Da Via stated he enjoyed attending the awards assemblies for the high schools. He stated it’s 

wonderful the see the number of students that are achieving great things. He stated it would be 

interesting to have a five-year follow-up on the students to see how they’re doing. 

Mr. Doss agreed with Mr. Da Via and stated a 10-year follow-up would be interesting too. He stated 

he really enjoyed presentations and stated how impressive the involvement by everyone is. His son 

also participated in DECA and stated it has also been an remarkable year being a part of this program. 

He also stated he is impressed with the students committing to the Armed Forces. 

Mrs. Ross stated she enjoys this time of year and is pleased that students and staff are getting the 

recognition they deserve. She stated she appreciates the students who have elected to serve the 

country in the military service. She stated that the efforts, hard work and achievements of all students, 

not just ones at the top of their class, are also worth recognition. 

Mr. Sellers thanked the teachers from DECA and commended them on the amazing job they’ve done 

with this program. He thanked Mr. Howell and Mr. Lipski for their leadership on the budget issues 

and is hopeful all can achieve a middle ground on the budget-related decisions. He thanked the 

district and Mrs. Amy Gole for their efforts on the Pankow Scholarship Night and said it was a 

wonderful night. He stated his family does a scholarship on his grandfather’s name and it was 

wonderful to be able to have his grandmother present the scholarship. He thanked the district’s efforts 

in making that happen for his family. 

Mrs. Hernden stated the presentations were the most amazing she’s ever seen. She wished good luck 

to the LCHS-N varsity lacrosse team and congratulated the girls tennis team and the girls flag football 

team. She attended the Celebration of Learning event at Atwood and stated it was a wonderful time to 

see the students work and reflect on their achievements. She stated it took her back to when her son, 

now a senior, was in elementary school. She read a message to the class of 2025 wishing them well. 

M. **Closed Session – Motion to enter closed session pursuant to Section 8(h) of the Open Meetings 

Act to discuss material exempt from discussion or disclosure by State or Federal statute, including 

three written opinions of legal counsel subject to attorney-client privilege. 

 Motion by Mr. Sellers, supported by Mrs. Hernden, to enter into Closed Session at 7:58 pm. 

Roll Call Vote 

Yes: Sellers, Hernden, Cyprus, Da Via, Doss, Ross 

No: None 

Motion carried. 



 MINUTES OF THE REGULAR MEETING FOR MAY 19, 2025                  | Page 7 

 

L’Anse Creuse Public Schools 

 

Motion by Mr. Sellers, supported by Mr. Da Via, to reconvene to Regular Session at 9:41 p.m. 

Roll Call Vote 

Yes: Sellers, Da Via, Hernden, Doss, Cyprus, Ross  

No: None 

Motion carried. 

N. Adjournment 

Motion by supported by Mr. Sellers, supported by Mr. Cyprus, to adjourn the meeting at 9:42 p.m. 

 

Yes:  All 

No: None 

Motion carried. 

 

Respectfully submitted, 

 

 

 

Sharon L. Ross, Secretary  

Board of Education 

SLR:cjg 



 

 

 

BOARD OF EDUCATION 

SPECIAL MEETING MINUTES 

May 20, 2025 – 5:00 P.M. 

 

The Board of Education of the L’Anse Creuse Public Schools district convened a Special Meeting on 

Tuesday, May 20 at 5:00 p.m. at the Harry L. Wheeler Community Center and Administrative Offices, 

24076 F.V. Pankow Boulevard, Clinton Township, Michigan. 

 

A. Call to Order, Pledge of Allegiance and Roll Call 

 

Mr. Al Doss, Vice President, called the Special Board Meeting (Cost Management Workshop for 

the 2025 – 2026 school year) to order at 5:00 p.m.  

 

Roll Call 

 

Present:  Mr. Al Doss, Vice President 

Mrs. Sharon Ross, Secretary 

Mr. John Da Via, Treasurer 

Mr. Jeffrey Cyprus, Trustee 

Mrs. Sandra Hernden, Trustee 

Mr. Shane Sellers, Trustee 

 

Absent:  Mr. Adam Lipski, President 

  Mr. Jeffrey Cyprus, Trustee 

 

Also present: Mr. Keith Howell, Superintendent 

 Ms. Lisa Montpas, Assistant Superintendent for Curriculum & Instruction 

Mr. Michael Van Camp, Assistant Superintendent for Human Resources 

Ms. Kathy Konon, Assistant Superintendent for Business & Operations 

Ms. Kimberly Rawski, Director for Secondary Education 

Mr. Tony Sedick, Director for Elementary Education 

Ms. Nancy Supanich, Director for Special Education 

Dr. Major Mickens, Director for Community Education and Student Services 

Mr. Brandon Streng, Director for Technology 

Ms. Beth Disbrow, Director for Finance 

Ms. Cheryl Goodall, Executive Assistant to the Superintendent 

Employees and Patrons of the District 

 

Mr. Doss read a statement from Mr. Lipski stating he is unable to attend due to an important family obligation. He 

stated he has spent countless hours working with Mr. Howell and reaffirmed his commitment to the important 

work being done on the district budget. 

B. Approval of the Agenda 

Motion by Mr. Sellers, supported by Mr. Da Via, to approve the May 20, 2025 Special Board 

Meeting agenda as presented. 

Yes: All 

No: None 

Motion carried. 

 

H.7.e. 



MINUTES OF THE SPECIAL MEETING OF MAY 20, 2025    Page 2 

 

 

C. Hearing of Patrons 

 

Michael Lynch, teacher, encouraged the community to contact government representatives to 

advocate for funds that are still needed for student support as a result of the pandemic. 

 

Elizabeth Allen, district media specialist, instructional technology coach, teacher and former 

student, spoke about the importance of a two-person instructional technology coach team. Last 

year, the district invested in a new initiative of one-to-one student iPads at the elementary level. 

Over the past year, they have rebuilt what technology integration looks like in LC classrooms 

today. Eliminating one of these positions will stall progress made and risk student success. She 

has seen students whose voices may not have been previously heard, become creators, 

collaborators and problem solvers. The two coach team has provided districtwide support to staff, 

students, and parents. Cutting one of these positions means staff and student reach will be cut in 

half. She requested this decision be reconsidered. 
  

Michelle Ropp, paraprofessional at Carkenord, expressed concerns about the job cuts happening 

in the district and about special education resource rooms falling out of ratio due to the job cuts. 
 

Mr. P., community member, stated he’s looking forward to the budget presentation. He stated if 

no cuts are made at the top, a recall will ensue and hopes to see cuts being made in 

administration.  
 

Heather Budzynowski, technology secretary, president of clerical union, community member and 

parent of former students, stated while she understands budget cuts and the difficult decisions that 

come with them, she is speaking on behalf of staff members who will be impacted by the loss of 

the media tech clerk support of the districtwide student one-to-one devices at the schools. She 

detailed the responsibilities of the media tech clerks and the critical role they play in the 

increasing volume of support needed for these devices, along with the other tasks that come with 

the devices, such as forgotten passwords, sending devices out for repairs, contacting parents, 

collecting fines for damages, missing chargers, forgotten passwords, etc. 
 

Kerri Stewart, staff member, parent of former student, and former union leader, stated there’s no 

way to make up for the loss of a media clerk in the buildings on a day-to-day basis. She stated she 

feels if there is a position created, to perhaps help in the technology office with paperwork, 

collections, tracking, etc. that may possibly help. 

D. Cost Management Workshop FY26 

 
Mr. Howell presented the Cost Management Workshop for the 2025-2026 school year. 

Mr. Howell opened the floor to questions from the Board. 

Discussion followed. 

E. Adjournment 

Motion by Mr. Sellers, supported by Mrs. Hernden, to adjourn the meeting. The meeting was 

adjourned at 6:06 p.m. 

 

 Yes: All 

 No: None 

 Motion carried. 

 

 

 

 



MINUTES OF THE SPECIAL MEETING OF MAY 20, 2025    Page 3 

 

 

Respectfully submitted, 

 

 

 

Sharon L. Ross, Secretary  

Board of Education 

 

SLR:cjg 



Keith Howell 
 SUPERINTENDENT  

 

BUSINESS OFFICE 
 

 

Kathy Konon, CPA 
                 ASSISTANT SUPERINTENDENT FOR  
                         BUSINESS AND OPERATIONS 

 

Beth Disbrow 
                                       DIRECTOR FOR FINANCE

                                       
24076 F.V. PANKOW BLVD. 

CLINTON Twp., MI  48036-1304 
586.783.6300  

586.783.6312 FAX 

 

 

BOARD OF EDUCATION 
 

Adam Lipski   Al Doss    Sharon Ross         John Da Via Jeffrey Cyprus Sandra Hernden Shane Sellers 
PRESIDENT    VICE PRESIDENT     SECRETARY           TREASURER TRUSTEE TRUSTEE  TRUSTEE 

 

NOTICE OF NONDISCRIMINATION.  It is the policy of L’Anse Creuse Public Schools not to discriminate on the basis of race, color, religion, national origin or ancestry, gender, age, disability, height, weight or marital status 

in its programs, services, activities, or employment.  Inquiries related to nondiscrimination policies should be directed to: Civil Rights Coordinator, Assistant Superintendent for Human Resources, L’Anse Creuse Public Schools, 

Harry L. Wheeler Community Center and Administrative Offices, 24076 F. V. Pankow Blvd., Clinton Twp.,, MI 48036, and (586) 783-6300. Nondiscrimination inquiries related to disability should be directed to:  Section 504 

Coordinator, Director for Special Education, (586) 783-6300. 
 

HARRY L. WHEELER COMMUNITY CENTER AND ADMINISTRATIVE OFFICES 

 

 

 

  
 

 
 

H.8. 

Initiator:  Kathy Konon, CPA   
 
Board Meeting: June 23, 2025 
 
Agenda Item:  Amended Resolution to add Middle School East as a Voting Precinct  
 

 Board Action Required     CONFIDENTIAL 
 Informational Material 
 Other       _______________________ 

 
 
 
Background: 
It has been the practice of L’Anse Creuse Public Schools to enter into an agreement with local 
municipalities to permit use of L’Anse Creuse Public Schools facilities as voting precincts for 
public elections. 
 
 
Current Status:   
Municipalities have submitted resolutions requesting permission to use district facilities for 
public elections from 2024 through 2028. Chesterfield Township is seeking to utilize Middle 
School East for voters in lieu of Francis A. Higgins Elementary School. Currently, the township is 
approved to use Joseph M Carkenord Elementary School, Green Elementary School and Francis 
A. Higgins Elementary School. 
 
 
 Future Direction (Notes or Comments)/Recommended Motion: 

Administration recommends that the Board of Education motion to approve the voting 
precinct as presented 
 

KK/jh 

 













BOARD OF EDUCATION 
 

Adam Lipski Al Doss Sharon Ross John Da Via Jeffrey Cyprus Sandra Hernden Shane Sellers 
PRESIDENT VICE PRESIDENT SECRETARY  TREASURER TRUSTEE TRUSTEE  TRUSTEE 

 

NOTICE OF NONDISCRIMINATION.  It is the policy of L’Anse Creuse Public Schools not to discriminate on the basis of race, color, religion, national origin or ancestry, gender, age, disability, height, weight or 
marital status in its programs, services, activities, or employment.  Inquiries related to nondiscrimination policies should be directed to: Civil Rights Coordinator, Assistant Superintendent for Human Resources, 
L’Anse Creuse Public Schools, Harry L. Wheeler Community Center and Administrative Offices, 24076 F. V. Pankow Blvd., Clinton Township, MI 48036, and (586) 783-6300. Nondiscrimination inquiries 
related to disability should be directed to:  Section 504 Coordinator, Director for Special Education, (586) 783-6300. 
 

Keith Howell 
 SUPERINTENDENT 

 
  

Lisa E. Montpas 
ASSISTANT SUPERINTENDENT 

FOR CURRICULUM AND INSTRUCTION 
 
 

Kimberly Rawski 
DIRECTOR FOR 

SECONDARY EDUCATION 
 

Dr. Tony Sedick 
 DIRECTOR FOR 

ELEMENTARY EDUCATION 
 

24076 F.V. PANKOW BLVD. 
CLINTON TWP., MI  48036-1304 

586.783.6300 
586.783.6312 FAX 

WWW.LC-PS.ORG 

 

 

  DEPARTMENT OF CURRICULUM AND INSTRUCTION 

 

 

 

 
 
 
 
 
 
Initiator:  Dr. Major Mickens 
 
Board Meeting: June 23, 2025 
 
Agenda Item:  Michigan High School Athletic Association Membership Resolution 
  
 

 Board Action Required     CONFIDENTIAL 
 Informational Material 
 Other_______________________ 

 
 
 
Background: 
The Michigan High School Athletic Association (MHSAA) membership is renewed on an annual basis 
by school districts for secondary schools.  The association sponsors statewide tournaments and makes 
eligibility rules with respect to participation.   

 
 
 
Current Status: 
The MHSAA is requesting approval of the resolution for renewal of the MHSAA 2025/2026 
membership. 
 
 
 
Future Direction (Notes or Comments): 
Administration recommends approval of the resolution for renewal of the MHSAA 2025/2026 
membership. 
 

I.1. 

http://www.lc-ps.org/








Keith Howell 
 SUPERINTENDENT  

BUSINESS OFFICE 
 

 

Kathy Konon, CPA 
                 ASSISTANT SUPERINTENDENT FOR  
                         BUSINESS AND OPERATIONS 

 

Beth Disbrow 
                                       DIRECTOR FOR FINANCE  

 
24076 F.V. PANKOW BLVD. 

CLINTON TWP., MI  48036-1304 
586.783.6300  

586.783.6312 FAX 
WWW.LC-PS.ORG 

BOARD OF EDUCATION 
 

Adam Lipski   Al Doss    Sharon Ross         John Da Via Jeffrey Cyprus Sandra Hernden Shane Sellers 
PRESIDENT    VICE PRESIDENT     SECRETARY           TREASURER TRUSTEE TRUSTEE  TRUSTEE 

 

NOTICE OF NONDISCRIMINATION.  It is the policy of L’Anse Creuse Public Schools not to discriminate on the basis of race, color, religion, national origin or ancestry, gender, age, disability, height, weight or marital status 

in its programs, services, activities, or employment.  Inquiries related to nondiscrimination policies should be directed to: Civil Rights Coordinator, Assistant Superintendent for Human Resources, L’Anse Creuse Public Schools, 

Harry L. Wheeler Community Center and Administrative Offices, 24076 F. V. Pankow Blvd., Clinton Twp.,, MI 48036, and (586) 783-6300. Nondiscrimination inquiries related to disability should be directed to:  Section 504 

Coordinator, Director for Special Education, (586) 783-6300. 
 

HARRY L. WHEELER COMMUNITY CENTER AND ADMINISTRATIVE OFFICES 

 

 

 

  
 

 

          J.1. 
Initiator:  Kathy Konon, CPA 
 
Board Meeting: June 23, 2025 
 
Agenda Item:  Truth-in-Budget Hearing  
 

 Board Action Required     CONFIDENTIAL 
 Informational Material 
 Other       _______________________ 

 
 
 

Background: 
It is required that L’Anse Creuse Public Schools hold a Truth-in-Budget Hearing.  The Board may 
not adopt its proposed budget until after the public hearing.   
 
 
 

Current Status: 
At the May 19, 2025 Board of Education meeting, the Board of Education approved the 
Resolution to Hold a Truth-in-Budget Hearing.  A legal ad was published on June 11, 2025, 
notifying the community of the hearing, and a copy of the proposed budget, including the 
proposed property tax millage rate has been made available for public inspection during the 
normal business hours at the Harry L. Wheeler Community Center & Administrative Offices.  The 
property tax millage rate proposed to be levied to support the proposed budget will be a subject 
at this hearing.   
 
 

Future Direction (Notes or Comments)/Recommended Motion: 
The administration recommends the Board. 
 
MOTION TO OPEN the Truth-in-Budget Hearing.   
 

MOTION TO CLOSE the Truth-in-Budget Hearing. 

 
KK/jh 

 

http://www.lc-ps.org/


Keith Howell 
 SUPERINTENDENT  

BUSINESS OFFICE 

Kathy Konon, CPA 
  ASSISTANT SUPERINTENDENT FOR  

  BUSINESS AND OPERATIONS 

Beth Disbrow 
  DIRECTOR FOR FINANCE

24076 F.V. PANKOW BLVD. 
CLINTON Twp., MI  48036-1304 

586.783.6300  
586.783.6312 FAX 

BOARD OF EDUCATION 

Adam Lipski   Al Doss    Sharon Ross   John Da Via Jefferey Cyprus Sandra Hernden Shane Sellers 
PRESIDENT    VICE PRESIDENT     SECRETARY   TREASURER TRUSTEE TRUSTEE  TRUSTEE 

NOTICE OF NONDISCRIMINATION.  It is the policy of L’Anse Creuse Public Schools not to discriminate on the basis of race, color, religion, national origin or ancestry, gender, age, disability, height, weight or marital status 

in its programs, services, activities, or employment.  Inquiries related to nondiscrimination policies should be directed to: Civil Rights Coordinator, Assistant Superintendent for Human Resources, L’Anse Creuse Public Schools, 

Harry L. Wheeler Community Center and Administrative Offices, 24076 F. V. Pankow Blvd., Clinton Twp.,, MI 48036, and (586) 783-6300. Nondiscrimination inquiries related to disability should be directed to:  Section 504 

Coordinator, Director for Special Education, (586) 783-6300. 

HARRY L. WHEELER COMMUNITY CENTER AND ADMINISTRATIVE OFFICES 

 
J.       

 

 2             .    

Initiator: Kathy Konon, CPA 

Board Meeting: June 23, 2025 

Agenda Item:  Recommendation to Accept the Final Amended 2024-2025 Budget 

 Board Action Required  CONFIDENTIAL 
 Informational Material 
 Other    _______________________ 

Background: 
The Board of Education of L’Anse Creuse Public Schools is required to adopt a budget for the 
new fiscal year by June 30th.  During the year when more accurate information becomes 
available, the district will propose a mid-year final budget as necessary/  

Current Status: 
To reflect changes in revenue and expense that occurred during the 2024-2025 fiscal year, an 
amended budget for the 2024-2025 fiscal year has been prepared by district Administration and 
is recommended, as stated.   

Future Direction (Notes or Comments)/Recommended Motion: 
Administration recommends that the Board motion to approve the recommendation for the Final 
Amended 2024-2025 Budget as presented. 

KK/jh 



PROJECTED

FINAL AMENDED

DESCRIPTION 2024/2025

REVENUE:

  Local $ 22,996,059

  State 107,902,779

  Federal 7,269,392

  Millage 5,491,000

  Other Financing Sources 2,573,219

  Total Revenue $ 146,232,449

$ 18,962,234 

$ 165,194,683 

EXPENDITURES:

  Instruction:

  Basic Programs $ 70,018,580

  Added Needs 22,808,658

  Adult and Continuing Education 415,026

  Support Services:

  Pupil 11,685,145

  Instructional Staff 6,382,162

  General Administration 1,519,644

  School Administration 9,254,534

  Business 1,900,607

L'ANSE CREUSE PUBLIC SCHOOLS

PROJECTED FINAL AMENDED BUDGET 2024-2025

EXPENDITURES BY STATE FUNCTION CODE COMBINED

RESOLVED, that this resolution shall be the general appropriations act of the L'Anse Creuse Public 

Schools for the fiscal year July 1, 2024 to June 30, 2025, an act to make appropriations; to provide 

for the expenditure of the appropriations; and to provide for the disposition of all income received 

by L'Anse Creuse Public Schools.

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, that the total revenues and unappropriated fund balance estimated to 

be available for appropriations in the General Fund of L'Anse Creuse Public Schools for the fiscal 

year July 1, 2024 to June 30, 2025, is as follows:

Estimated Fund Balance Available to Appropriate July 1, 2024

Total Available to Appropriate

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, that $153,217,693 of the total available to appropriate in the General 

Fund is hereby appropriated in the amounts and for the purposes set forth below:



  Operation and Maintenance 12,755,460

  Transportation 6,254,103

  Central Administration 5,010,838

  Other Support - Athletics 2,688,301

  Community Services 2,497,396

  Other Financing Uses 27,239

 TOTAL APPROPRIATED $ 153,217,693

Revenue in excess of (less than)

 Expenditures $ (6,985,244)

Estimated Fund Balance June 30,2025 $ 11,976,990 

Projected fund balance 8.19%

Ayes:

Nayes:

Absent:

RESOLUTION DECLARED ADOPTED

L'Anse Creuse Board of Education

Date

Sharon Ross, Secretary



REVENUE:

 Local $ 385,750

 State 1,901,718

 Federal 4,324,794

 Total Revenue $ 6,612,262

$ 3,501,825

$ 10,114,087 

Projected food service expenditures $ 6,057,530

Other Financing-Transfer to General Fund 200,000

 Total Expenditures $ 6,257,530

Revenue in excess of (less than)

 Expenditures $ 354,732

Estimated Fund Balance June 30,2025 $ 3,856,557 

Ayes:

Nayes:

Absent:

RESOLUTION DECLARED ADOPTED

Sharon Ross, Secretary

L'Anse Creuse Board of Education

Date

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, that $6,257,530 of the total available to appropriate in the Food & 
Nutrition Fund is hereby appropriated in the amounts and for the purposes set forth below:

EXPENDITURES:

L'ANSE CREUSE PUBLIC SCHOOLS 
AMENDED 2024-2025

FOOD & NUTRITION FUND 
BUDGET

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, that the total revenues and unappropriated fund balance available for 

appropriations in the Food & Nutrition Fund of L'Anse Creuse Public Schools for the fiscal year July 1,

2024 to June 30, 2025 is as follows:

Estimated Fund Balance Available to Appropriate July 1, 2024

Total Available to Appropriate



REVENUE:

Activities $ 2,749,825

$ 2,749,825

$ 1,498,021

$ 4,247,846 

Activities $ 2,787,178

  Total Expenditures $ 2,787,178

Revenue in excess of (less than)
  Expenditures $ (37,353)

Estimated Fund Balance June 30,2025 $ 1,460,668 

Ayes:

Nayes:

Absent:

RESOLUTION DECLARED ADOPTED

Sharon Ross, Secretary

L'Anse Creuse Board of Education

Date

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, that $2,787,178 of the total available to appropriate in the Student/School Activity Fund is 

hereby appropriated in the amounts and for the purposes set forth below:

EXPENDITURES:

L'ANSE CREUSE PUBLIC SCHOOLS 
AMENDED 2024-2025

STUDENT/SCHOOL ACTIVITY 
FUND BUDGET

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, that the total revenues and unappropriated fund balance available for appropriations in the 

Student/School Activity Fund of L'Anse Creuse Public Schools for the fiscal year July 1, 2024 to June 30, 2025 is as 

follows:

Estimated Fund Balance Available to Appropriate July 1, 2024

Total Available to Appropriate



REVENUE:

  Local (Interest Earnings ) $ 600,000 

 Other Financing Sources 110,310,783

 Total Revenue $ 110,910,783

Actual Fund Balance Available to Appropriate July 1, 2024 0

Total Available to Appropriate 110,910,783

EXPENDITURES:

 Purchased Services $ 3,500,000

 Capital Projects 15,857,230

 Bond Issuance Costs and Other 1,193,741

 Total Appropriated $ 20,550,971

Estimated Fund Balance June 30,2025 $ 90,359,812         

L'ANSE CREUSE PUBLIC SCHOOLS

FINAL BUDGET 2024-2025

2025 School Bond Fund Series 1

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, that the total revenues and unappropriated fund 

balance available for appropriations in the 2025 School Bond Fund of L'Anse 

Creuse Public Schools for the fiscal year July 1,2024 to June 30,2025 is a follows:

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, that $20,550,971 of the total available to appropriate 

in the 2025 School Bond Fund is hereby appropriated in the amounts and for the 

purposes set forth below:



Keith Howell 
 SUPERINTENDENT  

 

BUSINESS OFFICE 
 

 

Kathy Konon, CPA 
                 ASSISTANT SUPERINTENDENT FOR  
                         BUSINESS AND OPERATIONS 

 

Beth Disbrow 
                                       DIRECTOR FOR FINANCE

                                       
24076 F.V. PANKOW BLVD. 

CLINTON Twp., MI  48036-1304 
586.783.6300  

586.783.6312 FAX 

 

 

BOARD OF EDUCATION 
 

Adam Lipski   Al Doss    Sharon Ross         John Da Via Jeffrey Cyprus Sandra Hernden Shane Sellers 
PRESIDENT    VICE PRESIDENT     SECRETARY           TREASURER TRUSTEE TRUSTEE  TRUSTEE 

 

NOTICE OF NONDISCRIMINATION.  It is the policy of L’Anse Creuse Public Schools not to discriminate on the basis of race, color, religion, national origin or ancestry, gender, age, disability, height, weight or marital status 

in its programs, services, activities, or employment.  Inquiries related to nondiscrimination policies should be directed to: Civil Rights Coordinator, Assistant Superintendent for Human Resources, L’Anse Creuse Public Schools, 

Harry L. Wheeler Community Center and Administrative Offices, 24076 F. V. Pankow Blvd., Clinton Twp.,, MI 48036, and (586) 783-6300. Nondiscrimination inquiries related to disability should be directed to:  Section 504 

Coordinator, Director for Special Education, (586) 783-6300. 
 

HARRY L. WHEELER COMMUNITY CENTER AND ADMINISTRATIVE OFFICES 

 

 

 

  
 

 

 

          J.3.           

 
 
 
Initiator:  Kathy Konon, CPA 
 
Board Meeting: June 23, 2025 
 
Agenda Item:  Recommendation to Accept the 2025-2026 Original Budget 
  

 Board Action Required     CONFIDENTIAL 
 Informational Material 
 Other       _______________________ 

 
 
 
Background: 
The Board of Education of L’Anse Cruse Public Schools is required to adopt a budget for the new 
fiscal year by June 30th. 
 
 
 

Current Status: 
The Truth-in-Budget hearing is scheduled to take place on June 23, 2025.  The proposed budget 
for the 2025-2026 fiscal year has been reviewed by district Administration and is recommended, 
as stated.   
 
 
 

Future Direction (Notes or Comments)/Recommended Motion: 
Administration recommends that the Board motion to approve the recommendation for the 2025-2026 
Original Budget as presented. 
 

 

KK/jh 



PROJECTED

ORIGINAL

DESCRIPTION 2025/2026

REVENUE:

 Local $ 23,835,145

 State 103,512,149

 Federal 7,083,164

 Millage 5,726,000

 Other Financing Sources 2,362,505

 Total Revenue $ 142,518,963

$ 11,976,990 

$ 154,495,953 

EXPENDITURES:

 Instruction:

 Basic Programs $ 66,578,848

 Added Needs 22,196,632

 Adult and Continuing Education 415,026

 Support Services:

 Pupil 11,250,010

 Instructional Staff 5,383,439

 General Administration 868,484

 School Administration 8,910,955

 Business 1,610,115

 Operation and Maintenance 12,517,004

Total Available to Appropriate

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, that $146,450,501 of the total available to appropriate in the General Fund 

is hereby appropriated in the amounts and for the purposes set forth below:

L'ANSE CREUSE PUBLIC SCHOOLS

PROJECTED ORIGINAL BUDGET 2025-2026

EXPENDITURES BY STATE FUNCTION CODE COMBINED

RESOLVED, that this resolution shall be the general appropriations act of the L'Anse Creuse Public 

Schools for the fiscal year July 1, 2025 to June 30, 2026, an act to make appropriations; to provide for 

the expenditure of the appropriations; and to provide for the disposition of all income received by 

L'Anse Creuse Public Schools.

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, that the total revenues and unappropriated fund balance estimated to be 

available for appropriations in the General Fund of L'Anse Creuse Public Schools for the fiscal year July 

1, 2025 to June 30, 2026, is as follows:

Estimated Fund Balance Available to Appropriate July 1, 2024



 Transportation 6,501,596

 Central Administration 4,748,121

 Other Support - Athletics 2,722,839

 Community Services 2,715,762

 Other Financing Uses 31,670

 TOTAL APPROPRIATED $ 146,450,501

Revenue in excess of (less than)

 Expenditures $ (3,931,538)

Estimated Fund Balance June 30,2026 $ 8,045,452 

Projected fund balance 5.65%

Ayes:

Nayes:

Absent:

RESOLUTION DECLARED ADOPTED

L'Anse Creuse Board of Education

Date

Sharon Ross, Secretary



REVENUE:

 Local $ 379,750

 State 1,901,716

 Federal 4,248,094

 Total Revenue $ 6,529,560

$ 3,856,557

$ 10,386,117 

$ 5,255,955Projected food & nutrition expenditures 
Other Financing-Transfer to General Fund 200,000

 Total Expenditures $ 5,455,955

Revenue in excess of (less than)

 Expenditures $ 1,073,605

Estimated Fund Balance June 30,2026 $ 4,930,162 

Ayes:

Nayes:

Absent:

RESOLUTION DECLARED ADOPTED

Sharon Ross, Secretary

L'Anse Creuse Board of Education

Date

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, that $5,455,955 of the total available to appropriate in the Food & 
Nutrition Fund is hereby appropriated in the amounts and for the purposes set forth below:

EXPENDITURES:

L'ANSE CREUSE PUBLIC SCHOOLS 
PROJECTED ORIGINAL 2025-2026 

FOOD & NUTRITION FUND 

BUDGET

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, that the total revenues and unappropriated fund balance available for 

Estimated Fund Balance Available to Appropriate July 1, 2025

Total Available to Appropriate



REVENUE:

Activities $ 2,749,825

 Total Revenue $ 2,749,825

$ 1,460,668

$ 4,210,493 

Activities 2,768,178

   Total Expenditures $ 2,768,178

Revenue in excess of (less than)
   Expenditures $ (18,353)

Estimated Fund Balance June 30,2026 $ 1,442,315 

Ayes:

Nayes:

Absent:

RESOLUTION DECLARED ADOPTED

Sharon Ross, Secretary

L'Anse Creuse Board of Education

Date

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, that $2,768,178 of the total available to appropriate in the 

Student/School Activity Fund is hereby appropriated in the amounts and for the purposes

set forth 

EXPENDITURES:

L'ANSE CREUSE PUBLIC SCHOOLS 
PROJECTED ORIGINAL 2025-2026

STUDENT/SCHOOL ACTIVITY FUND 
BUDGET

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, that the total revenues and unappropriated fund balance available 

for appropriations in the Student/School Activity Fund of L'Anse Creuse Public Schools for the

fiscal year July 1, 2025 to June 30, 2026 is as follows:

Estimated Fund Balance Available to Appropriate July 1, 2025

Total Available to Appropriate



REVENUE:

  Local (Interest Earnings ) $ 1,200,000 

 Other Financing Sources 0

 Total Revenue $ 1,200,000

Estimated Fund Balance Available to Appropriate July 1,2025 90,359,812

Total Available to Appropriate 91,559,812

EXPENDITURES:

 Purchased Services $ 20,267,843.00 

 Capital Projects 70,041,969.00 

 Bond Issuance Costs and Other 50,000.00 

 Future Years Expected Expense (30,631,334)

 Total Appropriated $ 59,728,478

Estimated Fund Balance June 30,2026 $ 31,831,334         

L'ANSE CREUSE PUBLIC SCHOOLS

ORIGINAL BUDGET 2025-2026

2025 School Bond Fund Series 1

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, that the total revenues and unappropriated fund 

balance available for appropriations in the 2025 School Bond Fund of L'Anse 

Creuse Public Schools for the fiscal year July 1,2025 to June 30,2026 is a follows:

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, that $59,728,478 of the total available to appropriate 

in the 2025 School Bond Fund is hereby appropriated in the amounts and for the 

purposes set forth below:



Keith Howell 
 SUPERINTENDENT  

 

BUSINESS OFFICE 
 

 

Kathy Konon, CPA 
                 ASSISTANT SUPERINTENDENT FOR  
                         BUSINESS AND OPERATIONS 

 

Beth Disbrow 
                                       DIRECTOR FOR FINANCE

                                       
24076 F.V. PANKOW BLVD. 

CLINTON Twp., MI  48036-1304 
586.783.6300  

586.783.6312 FAX 

 

 

BOARD OF EDUCATION 
 

Adam Lipski   Al Doss    Sharon Ross         John Da Via Jeffrey Cyprus Sandra Hernden Shane Sellers 
PRESIDENT    VICE PRESIDENT     SECRETARY           TREASURER TRUSTEE TRUSTEE  TRUSTEE 

 

NOTICE OF NONDISCRIMINATION.  It is the policy of L’Anse Creuse Public Schools not to discriminate on the basis of race, color, religion, national origin or ancestry, gender, age, disability, height, weight or marital status 

in its programs, services, activities, or employment.  Inquiries related to nondiscrimination policies should be directed to: Civil Rights Coordinator, Assistant Superintendent for Human Resources, L’Anse Creuse Public Schools, 

Harry L. Wheeler Community Center and Administrative Offices, 24076 F. V. Pankow Blvd., Clinton Twp.,, MI 48036, and (586) 783-6300. Nondiscrimination inquiries related to disability should be directed to:  Section 504 

Coordinator, Director for Special Education, (586) 783-6300. 
 

HARRY L. WHEELER COMMUNITY CENTER AND ADMINISTRATIVE OFFICES 

 

 

 

  
 

 

 

          J.4. 

Initiator:  Kathy Konon, CPA 
 
Board Meeting: June 23, 2025 
 
Agenda Item:  Recommendation to Approve the District’s Annual Renewal of Insurance 

with M.A.I.S.L. 
  

 Board Action Required     CONFIDENTIAL 
 Informational Material 
 Other       _______________________ 

 
Background: 
The participation of L’Anse Creuse Public Schools in the M.A.I.S.L. insurance pool is reviewed 

annually. The pool includes: 

1. Package Premiums - property, general liability, automobile liability, physical damage 

and inland marine.  

2. Excess Property/Liability 

3. Boiler and Machinery 

4. School Board Legal 

5. Errors and Omissions/Crime 

 

Current Status: 
At the May M.A.I.S.L. Board of Directors meeting, Arthur J. Gallagher Risk Management Services 

presented the renewal information.  The total annual premium is $530,104.00 and includes 

cyber insurance and keeping the funding of the Loss Fund at 100%. The premium summary is 

attached.  

  
 

 

Future Direction (Notes or Comments)/Recommended Motion: 
Administration recommends that the Board motion to approve the recommendation for the District’s 
Annual Renewal of Insurance with M.A.I.S.L. as presented. 
 

KK/jh 





Keith Howell 
 SUPERINTENDENT  

 

BUSINESS OFFICE 
 

 

Kathy Konon, CPA 
                 ASSISTANT SUPERINTENDENT FOR  
                         BUSINESS AND OPERATIONS 

 

Beth Disbrow 
                                       DIRECTOR FOR FINANCE

                                       
24076 F.V. PANKOW BLVD. 

CLINTON Twp., MI  48036-1304 
586.783.6300  

586.783.6312 FAX 

 

 

BOARD OF EDUCATION 
 

Adam Lipski   Al Doss    Sharon Ross          John Da Via Jeffrey Cyprus Sandra Hernden Shane Sellers 
PRESIDENT    VICE PRESIDENT     SECRETARY           TREASURER TRUSTEE TRUSTEE  TRUSTEE 

 

NOTICE OF NONDISCRIMINATION.  It is the policy of L’Anse Creuse Public Schools not to discriminate on the basis of race, color, religion, national origin or ancestry, gender, age, disability, height, weight or marital status 

in its programs, services, activities, or employment.  Inquiries related to nondiscrimination policies should be directed to: Civil Rights Coordinator, Assistant Superintendent for Human Resources, L’Anse Creuse Public Schools, 

Harry L. Wheeler Community Center and Administrative Offices, 24076 F. V. Pankow Blvd., Clinton Twp.,, MI 48036, and (586) 783-6300. Nondiscrimination inquiries related to disability should be directed to:  Section 504 

Coordinator, Director for Special Education, (586) 783-6300. 
 

HARRY L. WHEELER COMMUNITY CENTER AND ADMINISTRATIVE OFFICES 

 

 

 J.5.   

  
Initiator:         Kathy Konon, CPA 
 
Board Meeting:      June 23, 2025 
 
Agenda Item:          Recommendation for Workers Compensation Excess Insurance Policy 
  

 Board Action Required     CONFIDENTIAL 
 Informational Material 
 Other       _______________________ 

 
Background: 
As an employer, L’Anse Creuse Public Schools is required to maintain workers compensation insurance.  
The district is self-insured employer, meaning that we are responsible for payment of claims under the 
retention limit.  Claims over the retention limit are covered by our excess policy. Due to the complexity of 
workers compensation rules and regulations our claims are serviced by a third-party administrator.  

 
Current Status: 
Our current excess liability policy is with Benchmark. It was renewed in June 2023 and is set to expire on 
June 30, 2025. The annual premium for this policy is $35,586, with a current retention of $500,000. 
 
We worked with ASU Group to issue and evaluate proposals for quotes on excess insurance policies.   
 
Benchmark Insurance is offering two options. 
 
Proposal 1:  One-year policy maintaining our $500,000 retention limit with an annual premium of 
$35,679. 
 
Proposal 2:  Two-year policy maintaining our $500,000 retention limit with an annual premium of 
$34,965. 
 
The administration is recommending that the bid be awarded to Benchmark Insurance Company for a 
two-year policy, maintaining our $500,000 retention limit with an annual premium of $34,965. ASU 
included the reduction in staff levels in the quote for the district to realize some savings as compared to 
the current contract. 

 
Future Direction (Notes or Comments)/Recommended Motion: 
Administration recommends that the Board of Education motion to approve the recommendation for the 

Workers Compensation Excess Insurance bid to Benchmark Insurance Company for a two-year policy as 

presented. 

KK/jh 

 



  

CURRENT OPTION 1 OPTION 2

CARRIER Benchmark Benchmark Benchmark

TERM 2-YEAR 1-YEAR 2-YEAR

ESTIMATED ANNUAL PAYROLL $59,429,452 $68,467,703 $68,467,703

SPECIFIC EXCESS RETENTION: $500,000 $500,000 $500,000

SPECIFIC EXCESS LIMIT STATUTORY STATUTORY STATUTORY

PREMIUM RATE PER $100 OF PAYROLL $0.0599 $0.0521 $0.0511

EMPLOYERS LIABILITY $1,000,000 $1,000,000 $1,000,000

ANNUAL PREMIUM $35,586 $35,679 $34,965

CURRENT 2023 Est. % Change
Payroll $59,429,452 $68,467,703 15%

Rate per $100/payroll $0.0599 $0.0521 -13%

            Excess Premium $35,586 $35,679 0%

CURRENT 2023-24 Est. % Change
Payroll $59,429,452 $68,467,703 15%

Rate per $100/payroll $0.0599 $0.0511 -15%

            Excess Premium $35,586 $34,965 -2%

L'Anse Creuse Public Schools

OPTION  1

OPTION  2

2025 WC EXCESS RENEWAL



Keith Howell 
SUPERINTENDENT  

 

HUMAN RESOURCES 
 

Michael W. Van Camp 
ASSISTANT SUPERINTENDENT 

FOR HUMAN RESOURCES 

 

Anita Dzieszkowski 
SUPERVISOR FOR HUMAN RESOURCES 

 
24076 F.V. PANKOW BLVD. 

CLINTON TOWNSHIP, MI  48036-1304 
586.783.6300  

586.783.6311 FAX 
WWW.LC-PS.ORG 

BOARD OF EDUCATION 
 

Adam Lipski Al Doss Sharon Ross John Da Via Jeffrey Cyprus Sandra Hernden Shane Sellers 
PRESIDENT VICE PRESIDENT SECRETARY TREASURER TRUSTEE TRUSTEE TRUSTEE 

 

NOTICE OF NONDISCRIMINATION.  It is the policy of L’Anse Creuse Public Schools not to discriminate on the basis of race, color, religion, national origin or ancestry, gender, age, disability, height, weight or marital status 

in its programs, services, activities, or employment.  Inquiries related to nondiscrimination policies should be directed to: Civil Rights Coordinator, Assistant Superintendent for Human Resources, L’Anse Creuse Public Schools, 

Harry L. Wheeler Community Center and Administrative Offices, 24076 F. V. Pankow Blvd., Clinton Township, MI 48036, and (586) 783-6300. Nondiscrimination inquiries related to disability should be directed to:  Section 504 

Coordinator, Director for Special Education, (586) 783-6300. 
 

HARRY L. WHEELER COMMUNITY CENTER 

AND ADMINISTRATIVE OFFICES 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 
 
Initiator:  Mike Van Camp 
  
Board Meeting: June 23, 2025 
 
Agenda Item:  Letter of Understanding  
 L’Anse Creuse Education Association, MEA-NEA 
  

Board Action Required     CONFIDENTIAL 
 Informational Material 
 Other_______________________ 

 
 
Background:   
 
The Board of Education of L’Anse Creuse Public Schools (the “Board”) and the L’Anse Creuse 
Education Association, MEA-NEA (the “Association”) are parties to a collective bargaining 
agreement that is set to expire on August 31, 2025. Since February 2025, the Parties have been 
actively engaged in collective bargaining negotiations. 
 
Current Status:   
 
The Parties have formalized their consensus through a Letter of Understanding (LOU), which 
outlines agreements on 2025-2026 School Calendar, Step Increases, Lane Movement, and 
restored Prohibited Bargaining Topics. 
 
Future Direction (Notes or Comments)/Recommended Motion:   
 
Administration recommends that the Board motion to approve the LOU as presented. 
 
 
MV/jd 
 

 

 K.1. 

http://www.lc-ps.org/


1 

 

Letter of Understanding 

Between the 

L’Anse Creuse Public Schools  

And 

The L’Anse Creuse Education Association, MEA-NEA  

  

The Board of Education (the “Board”) of L’Anse Creuse Public Schools (the “District”) and the 

L’Anse Creuse Education Association, MEA-NEA (the “Association”) agree to the following 

Letter of Understanding: 

 

WHEREAS, the Board and the Association are collectively “Parties” to a collective bargaining 

agreement that expires on August 31, 2025; and 

 

WHEREAS, the Parties have been engaged in collective bargaining negotiations since February, 

2025; and 

 

WHEREAS, the Parties have reached an agreement regarding certain topics of bargaining that 

were previously considered prohibited topics of bargaining pursuant to Section 15(3) of the Public 

Employment Relations Act, specifically topics related to: 1) teacher evaluation; 2) reduction and 

recall; 3) teacher discipline; 4) payroll dues deduction; and 5) teacher placement; and 

 

WHEREAS, the Parties have reached an agreement regarding the school calendar for the 2025-

2026 school year; and 

 

WHEREAS, the Parties have reached an agreement regarding the payment of “step” increases for 

the 2025-2026 school year; and 

 

WHEREAS, the Parties desire to enter into this Letter of Understanding (“LOU”) regarding the 

topics herein, and otherwise desire to continue bargaining all other topics once the Fiscal Year 

(“FY”) 2024-2025 audit results are known.   

 

NOW THEREFORE, THE PARTIES AGREE AS FOLLOWS: 

 

1. The 2025-2026 school year calendar attached hereto as Exhibit A shall be implemented 

for the 2025-2026 school year. 

 

2. Bargaining unit employees who are eligible to step on Schedule A, contained in Article IV, 

Professional Compensation, shall receive one step at the commencement of the 2025-2026 

school year.  

 

3. Bargaining unit employees who are eligible to move lanes on Schedule A, contained in 

Article IV, Professional Compensation, shall move lanes commensurate with their degree 

at the commencement of the 2025-2026 school year. 

 



2 

 

4. The Parties agree to the attached substantive provisions regarding the following: 

 

a. Teacher Evaluation (Exhibit B); 

 

b. Payroll Deduction (Exhibit C); 

 

c. Employee Protection/Discipline (Exhibit D); 

 

d. Assignments, Vacancies, and Transfers (Exhibit E); 

 

e. Association Representation, Complaints, Personnel File (Exhibit F); and 

 

f. Reduction and Recall (Exhibit G) 

 

5. The Parties agree the substance of this LOU and the attached Exhibits shall become part of 

the successor collective bargaining agreement between the Parties once it is fully 

negotiated. 

 

6. The Parties agree to hold collective bargaining in abeyance until such time as the Parties 

have an opportunity to further evaluate the FY 2024-2025 audited financial statements.  

However, the Parties agree to discuss the status of the audited financial statements and the 

next steps in the bargaining process by no later than September 30, 2025. 

 

7. The Parties agree that Paragraphs 1 – 5 shall become effective on September 1, 2025, 

except for any dates in the calendar that are prior to September 1, 2025 shall take effect on 

the dates listed in the calendar. 

 

8. The Parties agree that Paragraph 6 shall become effective immediately upon ratification by 

both Parties. 

 

9. The Parties agree that this LOU constitutes the entirety of the Agreement between the 

Parties, and there are no other understandings or agreements to amend the collective 

bargaining agreement between the Parties except those that are stated herein. 

 

 
 

FOR THE ASSOCIATION     FOR THE BOARD/DISTRICT 

By:__________________________    By:___________________________ 

 

Its:__________________________    Its:___________________________ 

 

Date:________________________    Date:_________________________ 



3 

 

EXHIBIT A 

Calendars 

 

 

S M T W Th F S S M T W Th F S S M T W Th F S S M T W Th F S

1 2 1 2 3 4 5 6 1 2 3 4 1

3 4 5 6 7 8 9 7 8 9 10 11 12 13 5 6 7 8 9 10 11 2 3 4 5 6 7 8

10 11 12 13 14 15 16 14 15 16 17 18 19 20 12 13 14 15 16 17 18 9 10 11 12 13 14 15

17 18 19 20 21 22 23 21 22 23 24 25 26 27 19 20 21 22 23 24 25 16 17 18 19 20 21 22

24 25 26 27 28 29 30 28 29 30 26 27 28 29 30 31 23 24 25 26 27 28 29

31 30

S M T W Th F S S M T W Th F S S M T W Th F S S M T W Th F S

1 2 3 4 5 6 1 2 3 1 2 3 4 5 6 7

7 8 9 10 11 12 13 4 5 6 7 8 9 10 1 2 3 4 5 6 7 8 9 10 11 12 13 14

14 15 16 17 18 19 20 11 12 13 14 15 16 17 8 9 10 11 12 13 14 15 16 17 18 19 20 21

21 22 23 24 25 26 27 18 19 20 21 22 23 24 15 16 17 18 19 20 21 22 23 24 25 26 27 28

28 29 30 31 25 26 27 28 29 30 31 22 23 24 25 26 27 28 29 30 31

S M T W Th F S S M T W Th F S S M T W Th F S S M T W Th F S

1 2 3 4 1 2 1 2 3 4 5 6 1 2 3 4

5 6 7 8 9 10 11 3 4 5 6 7 8 9 7 8 9 10 11 12 13 5 6 7 8 9 10 11

12 13 14 15 16 17 18 10 11 12 13 14 15 16 14 15 16 17 18 19 20 12 13 14 15 16 17 18

19 20 21 22 23 24 25 17 18 19 20 21 22 23 21 22 23 24 25 26 27 19 20 21 22 23 24 25

26 27 28 29 30 24 25 26 27 28 29 30 28 29 30 26 27 28 29 30 31

31

CALENDAR KEY

MS PT Conferences No School full or half First day of School/teacher work time 

HS PT Conferences HS Exam Days PD

EL PT Conferences MS Record Days SAT PSAT

EL Records Evening ConferenceCOMP DAY

HS School Records

15 19 17

19 18 19 5

INSTRUCTIONAL/WORK DAYS 180 6 21 23 16 520 18 20

16 15 19 17

DEC JAN FEB

STUDENT DAYS 175 4 21 22

APRIL MAY JUNE JULY

TOTAL AUG SEPT OCT NOV JUNMARCH APRIL MAY

DECEMBER JANUARY 2025 FEBRUARY MARCH

ELEMENTARY SCHOOL CALENDAR 2025-2026

AUGUST 2024 SEPTEMBER OCTOBER NOVEMBER



4 

 

 

S M T W Th F S S M T W Th F S S M T W Th F S S M T W Th F S

1 2 1 2 3 4 5 6 1 2 3 4 1

3 4 5 6 7 8 9 7 8 9 10 11 12 13 5 6 7 8 9 10 11 2 3 4 5 6 7 8

10 11 12 13 14 15 16 14 15 16 17 18 19 20 12 13 14 15 16 17 18 9 10 11 12 13 14 15

17 18 19 20 21 22 23 21 22 23 24 25 26 27 19 20 21 22 23 24 25 16 17 18 19 20 21 22

24 25 26 27 28 29 30 28 29 30 26 27 28 29 30 31 23 24 25 26 27 28 29

31 30

S M T W Th F S S M T W Th F S S M T W Th F S S M T W Th F S

1 2 3 4 5 6 1 2 3 1 2 3 4 5 6 7

7 8 9 10 11 12 13 4 5 6 7 8 9 10 1 2 3 4 5 6 7 8 9 10 11 12 13 14

14 15 16 17 18 19 20 11 12 13 14 15 16 17 8 9 10 11 12 13 14 15 16 17 18 19 20 21

21 22 23 24 25 26 27 18 19 20 21 22 23 24 15 16 17 18 19 20 21 22 23 24 25 26 27 28

28 29 30 31 25 26 27 28 29 30 31 22 23 24 25 26 27 28 29 30 31

S M T W Th F S S M T W Th F S S M T W Th F S S M T W Th F S

1 2 3 4 1 2 1 2 3 4 5 6 1 2 3 4

5 6 7 8 9 10 11 3 4 5 6 7 8 9 7 8 9 10 11 12 13 5 6 7 8 9 10 11

12 13 14 15 16 17 18 10 11 12 13 14 15 16 14 15 16 17 18 19 20 12 13 14 15 16 17 18

19 20 21 22 23 24 25 17 18 19 20 21 22 23 21 22 23 24 25 26 27 19 20 21 22 23 24 25

26 27 28 29 30 24 25 26 27 28 29 30 28 29 30 26 27 28 29 30 31

31

CALENDAR KEY

MS PT Conferences No School full or half First day of School/teacher work time 

HS PT Conferences HS Exam Days PD

EL PT Conferences MS Record Days SAT PSAT

EL Records Evening ConferenceCOMP DAY

HS School Records

15 19 17

19 18 19 5

INSTRUCTIONAL/WORK DAYS 180 6 21 23 16 520 18 20

16 15 19 17

DEC JAN FEB

STUDENT DAYS 175 4 21 22

APRIL MAY JUNE JULY

TOTAL AUG SEPT OCT NOV JUNMARCH APRIL MAY

DECEMBER JANUARY 2025 FEBRUARY MARCH

MIDDLE SCHOOL CALENDAR 2025-2026

AUGUST 2024 SEPTEMBER OCTOBER NOVEMBER



5 

 

 

 

2025/26 DISTRICT CALENDAR 

Wednesday, August 27, 2025 & Wednesday, April 8, 2026 are Regular Dismissal 

Days/Times All other Wednesdays, Students are Released One Hour Early 

 

August 19 & 20, Tue & Wed Teacher Professional Development Days 

August 25, Monday First Day of School - ½ Day for Students & Teachers 

August 27, Wednesday Regular dismissal time-no early release 

Aug 29 - Sept 1 No School – Labor Day – School Resumes Tue, Sept 2 

October 1, Wednesday High School Evening Conferences 

October 2, Thursday High School ½ Day – Afternoon & Evening Conferences 

October 3, Friday High School ½ Day for Students & Teachers 

October 15, Wednesday No School for All Students – Teacher Professional Development Day 

October 17, Friday Elementary & Middle School ½ Day- Teacher Records Day 

October 22, Wednesday Elementary & Middle School Evening Conferences 

October 23, Thursday Elementary & Middle School ½ Day Afternoon & Evening Conferences 

Elementary & Middle School ½ Day for Students & Teachers  

S M T W Th F S S M T W Th F S S M T W Th F S S M T W Th F S

1 2 1 2 3 4 5 6 1 2 3 4 1

3 4 5 6 7 8 9 7 8 9 10 11 12 13 5 6 7 8 9 10 11 2 3 4 5 6 7 8

10 11 12 13 14 15 16 14 15 16 17 18 19 20 12 13 14 15 16 17 18 9 10 11 12 13 14 15

17 18 19 20 21 22 23 21 22 23 24 25 26 27 19 20 21 22 23 24 25 16 17 18 19 20 21 22

24 25 26 27 28 29 30 28 29 30 26 27 28 29 30 31 23 24 25 26 27 28 29

31 30

S M T W Th F S S M T W Th F S S M T W Th F S S M T W Th F S

1 2 3 4 5 6 1 2 3 1 2 3 4 5 6 7

7 8 9 10 11 12 13 4 5 6 7 8 9 10 1 2 3 4 5 6 7 8 9 10 11 12 13 14

14 15 16 17 18 19 20 11 12 13 14 15 16 17 8 9 10 11 12 13 14 15 16 17 18 19 20 21

21 22 23 24 25 26 27 18 19 20 21 22 23 24 15 16 17 18 19 20 21 22 23 24 25 26 27 28

28 29 30 31 25 26 27 28 29 30 31 22 23 24 25 26 27 28 29 30 31

S M T W Th F S S M T W Th F S S M T W Th F S S M T W Th F S

1 2 3 4 1 2 1 2 3 4 5 6 1 2 3 4

5 6 7 8 9 10 11 3 4 5 6 7 8 9 7 8 9 10 11 12 13 5 6 7 8 9 10 11

12 13 14 15 16 17 18 10 11 12 13 14 15 16 14 15 16 17 18 19 20 12 13 14 15 16 17 18

19 20 21 22 23 24 25 17 18 19 20 21 22 23 21 22 23 24 25 26 27 19 20 21 22 23 24 25

26 27 28 29 30 24 25 26 27 28 29 30 28 29 30 26 27 28 29 30 31

31

CALENDAR KEY

MS PT Conferences No School full or half First day of School/teacher work time 

HS PT Conferences HS Exam Days PD

EL PT Conferences MS Record Days SAT PSAT

EL Records Evening ConferenceCOMP DAY

HS School Records

15 19 17

19 18 19 5

INSTRUCTIONAL/WORK DAYS 180 6 21 23 16 520 18 20

16 15 19 17

DEC JAN FEB

STUDENT DAYS 175 4 21 22

APRIL MAY JUNE JULY

TOTAL AUG SEPT OCT NOV JUNMARCH APRIL MAY

DECEMBER JANUARY 2025 FEBRUARY MARCH

HIGH SCHOOL CALENDAR 2025-2026

AUGUST 2024 SEPTEMBER OCTOBER NOVEMBER



6 

 

October 24, Friday 
High School ½ Day for Students & Teachers – Teacher Records Day 

November 4, Tuesday No School for All Students & Teachers - Election Day 

November 21, Friday Elementary ½ Day- Teacher Records Day 

November 26-28, Wed-Fri Thanksgiving Break - School Resumes Mon, Dec 1 

December 22 – January 2 No School - Winter Break - School Resumes Mon, Jan 5 

January 14, Wednesday High School ½ Day Exams for Students 

January 15, Thursday High School ½ Day Exams – Teacher Records Day 

January 16, Friday 
High School ½ Day Exams – Teacher Records Day 

Elementary & Middle School ½ Day – Teacher Records Day 

January 19, Monday No School for All Students and Teachers – MLK Day 

February 12, Thursday ½ Day of School for All Students & Teachers 

Feb 13 – Feb 17 No School- Mid Winter Break- School Resumes Wed, Feb 18 

February 27, Friday Middle School ½ Day- Teacher Records Day 

March 5, Thursday High School ½ Day – Afternoon & Evening Conferences 

March 6, Friday Elementary ½ Day – Teacher Records Day 

March 11, Wednesday Elementary ½ Day – Afternoon & Evening Conferences 

March 12, Thursday 
Elementary ½ Day – Afternoon Conferences 

Middle School ½ Day – Afternoon & Evening Conferences 

March 18, Wednesday No School for All Students – Teacher Professional Development Day 

March 27, Friday ½ Day for All Students & Teachers 

March 30 – April 6 No School - Spring Break - School Resumes Tues, April 7 

April 8, Wednesday 
Middle School & High School Testing Day - Schedule TBA 

Elementary FULL Day - Regular Dismissal Time 

April 9, Thursday High School Testing Day – Schedule TBA 

May 6, Wednesday No School - Teacher Professional Development Day 

May 22, Friday ½ Day for All Students & Teachers 

May 25, Monday No School - Memorial Day 

June 3, Wednesday 
High School ½ Day Exams - Teacher Records Day 

Middle School ½ Day- Teacher Records Day 

June 4, Thursday 
High School ½ Day Exams - Teacher Records Day 

Elementary & Middle School ½ Day- Teacher Records Day 

June 5, Friday 
½ Day for All Students & Teachers - High School Exams 

Last Day of School 

 

Marking Periods for the 2025-2026 School Year 

August 25, Monday First Day of school 

September 26, Friday Secondary Mid-Marking Q1 ends 

September 30, Tuesday Secondary Mid-Marking grades/comments due by 9 am – Quarter 1 

October 17, Friday Elementary – Mid-Marking T1 

October 21, Tuesday Elementary – Mid-Marking grades/comments due by 9 am 

October 24, Friday Secondary - End of first marking period Q1 

October 28, Tuesday Secondary – Marking grades/comments due by 9 am – Q1 



7 

 

November 21, Friday Elementary –End of T1 

November 25, Tuesday Elementary –T1 grades/comments due by 9 am 

December 5, Friday Secondary – Mid-Marking Q2 

December 9, Tuesday Secondary – Mid-Marking grades/comments due by 9 am – Quarter 2 

January 16, Friday Secondary – End of marking period S1, Q2 

January 16, Friday Elementary- Mid-Marking T2 

January 20, Tuesday Elementary – grades/comments due in PowerSchool by 9 am 

January 20, Tuesday Secondary – Grades due in PowerSchool by 9 am 

February 27, Friday Secondary – Mid-Marking Q3 

March 3, Tuesday Secondary Mid-Marking grades/ comments due by 9 am – Q3 

March 6, Friday Elementary –End T2 

March 10, Tuesday Elementary –Grades/comments due by 9 am 

April 3, Friday Secondary - Q3 Ends 

April 7, Tuesday Secondary – grades/comments due by 9 am – Q3 

April 24, Friday Elementary – Mid-Marking T3 

April 28, Tuesday Elementary – Mid-Marking grades/ comments due by 9 am 

May 1, Friday Secondary - Mid-Marking Q4 

May 5, Tuesday Secondary - Mid-Marking grades/comments due by 9 am – S2, Q4 

June 5, Friday Elementary/Secondary - grades due by the end of the day Q4, S2, T3 

 

August 25, 2025– first day of school 

High School exams must be dated 1/14, 1/15 or 1/16/2026  

Middle school exams (Spanish and Algebra) must be dated 1/15 or 1/16/2025 

January 16, 2026 – last day of first semester 

January 19, 2026 – first day of second semester 

High School exams must be dated 6/3, 6/4 or 6/5/2026 

Middle school exams (Spanish and Algebra) must be dated 6/4 or 6/5/2025 

June 5, 2025 – last day of school 

 

 

 

 

 



8 

 

EXHIBIT B 

          Teacher Evaluation 
 

          Article _________ 

 

A. The negotiated performance evaluation system shall include a rigorous, transparent, and 

fair performance evaluation system that includes: 

 

1. Specific performance goals identified by the teacher to improve their effectiveness in 

the upcoming school year. 

2. An evaluation of the teacher’s job performance with timely and constructive 

feedback. 

3. Clear approaches to measuring student growth with relevant data on student growth. 

4. Multiple rating categories that take into account student growth and assessment data 

or student learning objective metrics that have been negotiated with the Association. 

5. The use of student growth and assessment data or student learning objective metrics 

as 20% of the year-end evaluation determination. Teachers should develop two 

growth measures, collaboratively determined with their evaluator, to be utilized for 

Growth Measures #1 & #2.  NWEA growth may be utilized as Growth Measure #3 if 

it yields better results than Growth Measures #1 or #2. Student growth is defined as 

an increase in measured student academic performance.  

6. A negotiated year-end evaluation form that utilizes other objective criteria for 80% of 

the year-end evaluation determination. 

 

B. Process: The negotiated Performance Evaluation system and all forms shall be available 

on the district website. Forms shall include a Post-Observation Feedback Form, Year-

End Evaluation Reporting Form, and Individual Development Plan (IDP) Form.  

 

1. Classroom observations that are intended to assist in the year-end performance 

evaluation for teachers will be conducted as follows: 

 

a. The teacher shall be notified no later than September 30 of each year (or within 

two weeks for a teacher hired after the start of the school year) who the 

administrator will be that conducts their year-end evaluation.  Teachers will be 

evaluated by either the building principal, assistant principal, or immediate 

supervisor. Special Education teachers will be evaluated by the Special Education 

Director or building principal, assistant principal, or immediate supervisor.  

b. A meeting shall be held with the appropriate administrator and the first-year 

probationary teacher.  This meeting shall take place within thirty (30) calendar 

days of each first-year probationary teacher's first day of work.  The purpose of 

the meeting is to discuss the goal and expectation plan for the year.  A written 

goal and expectation plan shall be presented to the teacher within ten (10) work 

days of the meeting.  The formal individualized development plan (IDP) shall be 



9 

 

created with input from the teacher and appropriate administrator, then finalized 

and presented in written form to the probationary teacher prior to the end of the 

probationary teacher's first year. 

c. Bargaining unit employees shall not evaluate other bargaining unit employees. 

d. Observations conducted by other bargaining unit employees shall not include any 

type of written feedback. 

e. The classroom observations used in the year-end evaluation must include a review 

of the teacher’s lesson plan for the day of the observation and the state curriculum 

standard being used in the lesson. The lesson plan shall be available to the 

administrator no more than two days before the classroom observation. Unless 

identified as a deficiency in performance within an existing IDP, teachers will not 

be required to submit lesson plans to administrators except to comply with the 

provisions of this Section.  

f. The observation must include a review of pupil engagement in the lesson that is 

observed. 

g. In order to assure 1.e and 1.f above, the scheduled observation shall be no less 

than forty-five (45) minutes. 

h. There shall be notice of each planned scheduled observation date given to the 

teacher at least five (5) work days prior to the observation unless the teacher and 

administrator agree to a change in the timeline.  Upon such notice, the teacher will 

provide information relative to 1.e and 1.f before the observation occurs. 

i. The evaluator shall meet with the teacher before the observation for a pre-

observation conference, which shall include discussion relating to explanation of 

the evaluation form, the teacher’s explanation of the activity to be observed, what 

specific things the evaluator will be looking for, and any concerns the teacher may 

have. 

j. Feedback on both 1.e and 1.f will be discussed during the post-observation 

meeting between the administrator conducting the observation and the teacher.  

The post-observation meeting shall be held no later than ten (10) work days after 

the observation occurred unless the teacher and administrator agree to an 

extension of the timeline. At the post-observation meeting, the teacher will be 

provided with written feedback on the observation on the post-observation 

feedback form. Failure to meet the ten (10) school day timeline negates this 

particular observation. 

k. If the evaluation includes criticism resulting from the observation, feedback must 

be given to the teacher within ten (10) work days of such observation. The 

evaluator shall inform the teacher of performance area(s) that need to be improved 

together with suggestions for improvement. An Association representative may be 

present at the conference at the teacher’s request. 

l. There shall be at least two (2) classroom observations of a teacher in each school 

year that the teacher is evaluated and that are conducted at least 60 days apart.  

One evaluation shall occur in each semester of each school year. 

m. Unscheduled observations shall be no less than twenty (20) minutes. 



10 

 

n. A mid-year performance update shall be provided to any teacher for whom there 

is a concern that he/she may be rated less than effective.  

o. After two observations that contain concerns which may result in a less than 

effective rating, a teacher can request an observation by a different administrator, 

chosen by the district. This observation will be unannounced. 

p. Nothing in this section will be construed to limit the ability of an administrator to 

walk into and observe a teacher’s classroom at any time and to give feedback as 

to what was observed.  Such walkthroughs will only be included in a year-end 

evaluation if all aspects of this section have been met. 

 

2. The annual performance evaluation system will assign a year-end rating of 

“effective”, “developing” or “needing support.”  

 

The year-end evaluation determination and form shall be delivered at a meeting with 

the observing administrator and the teacher no later than May 1 of each year. In the 

event there is no year-end evaluation as described above, the teacher shall be deemed 

“effective” per the year-end evaluation determination. 

 

3. Teachers may have an Association representative present at meetings or conferences 

between the teacher and the Administrator, held for the purpose of discussing a 

written evaluation report. Should the evaluation of a teacher prove unsatisfactory, the 

Association shall be made aware of that fact prior to the teacher's discussion with the 

administrator to review the evaluation. 

 

4. Teachers who work less than sixty (60) days in any school year, who have an 

accumulated leave of absence from work during the school year amounting to a total 

of 50% or more of the scheduled school days in a school year, who have their 

evaluation results vacated through the grievance procedure, or are otherwise not 

evaluated due to extenuating circumstances the district deems applicable for 

exempting a teacher from the annual evaluation process, as agreed upon by the 

Association, shall not be provided an evaluation for that year. Said teachers shall 

receive the same rating they received in the prior year for the current year if it was 

conducted by the district. If the prior year evaluation was not conducted by the 

district, no rating shall be assigned.  

 

5. Once a staggered schedule, agreed upon by the district and the Association, is created 

beginning in the 2024-2025 school year, if a tenured teacher has been rated “highly 

effective” or “effective” for the three (3) most recent consecutive year-end 

evaluations, they shall be evaluated every third year thereafter.  If the subsequent 

year-end rating is not “effective” on an evaluation following the third year, the 

teacher shall be evaluated annually until receiving an “effective” rating for an 

additional three (3) consecutive years. 

 



11 

 

6. In addition to the above procedures (Sections B. 1-5), teachers who are evaluated 

with an IDP shall be provided the following: 

 

a. Specifically identified areas that need improvement. 

b. Specific performance goals, in writing, that will be used to assist in improving 

effectiveness for the next school year developed in consultation with the teacher. 

Specific performance goals shall be measurable and observable. 

c. Training to be provided by the district to assist the teacher in meeting the goals of 

the IDP.  

d. Assistance which may include time during the school day, material, resources, 

and/or consultant services to assist in meeting the goals of the IDP.  

e. A mid-year progress report, supported with at least two (2) classroom 

observations (for teachers rated as less than effective), or one (1) classroom 

observation (1st year teachers in the district) conducted consistent with Section 

B.1 above and completed no later than February 1, that is used as a supplemental 

tool to gauge a teacher’s improvement from the preceding school year and to 

assist in any needed additional improvement that is aligned with the existing IDP.  

f. A mentor teacher. 

 

7. Any non-compliance with the evaluation process as described above shall be subject 

to the grievance process. 

 

8. All teachers shall have the right to submit a rebuttal to their evaluation which will be 

included in their personnel file and attached to the year-end evaluation.  

 

9. The principal’s, assistant principal’s, or supervisor’s records or observations shall not 

be referred to in the official evaluation unless the records or observations have been 

brought to the attention of the teacher or have been placed in the personnel file. 

 

C. Rights of Tenured Teachers: 

1. A tenured teacher who is rated as “needing support” shall have the following due 

process rights to challenge said rating: 

 

a. The teacher may request a review meeting of the evaluation and the rating to 

the district’s superintendent.  Such a request must be made in writing within 

30 calendar days after the teacher is informed of the rating.  Upon receipt of 

the request, the superintendent shall review the evaluation and rating and may 

make any modifications, as appropriate, based on the superintendent’s review. 

A written response regarding the superintendent’s findings must be provided 

to the teacher who requested the review no later than 30 calendar days after 

the receipt of the request of the review.  

 



12 

 

b. If the written response does not resolve the matter, the teacher or the 

Association may request mediation though the Michigan Employment 

Relations Commission and provide a copy of that request to the 

administration.   

i. The request must be submitted in writing within thirty (30) calendar 

days after the teacher receives the written response from the 

superintendent. 

ii. Within fifteen (15) calendar days of receipt of the request for 

mediation, the district shall provide a written response to the teacher 

and the association confirming the mediation will be scheduled as 

appropriate.  

2. A tenured teacher who receives two (2) consecutive ratings of “needing support” may 

demand to use the grievance procedure as outlined in Article XIV.  

 

D. Training on evaluation system, tools, and reporting forms: 

1. Within the first four weeks of the school year, the district shall provide necessary 

training to all teachers on the evaluation system, reporting forms, and other important 

components of the year-end evaluation process. 

 
EXHIBIT C 

 
MEMBERSHIP STATUS AND PAYROLL DEDUCTION 

 
Article _______ 

 
It is agreed that any Bargaining Unit Employee covered by the terms of this Agreement may 

voluntarily join the L’Anse Creuse Education Association by completing the membership 

application and submitting it to the Association President or the Michigan Education 

Association. 

Within thirty (30) days of the beginning of the employment hereunder, the bargaining unit 

employee may sign and deliver to the Board an assignment authorizing deduction of 

membership dues and assessments to the Association (including the National Education 

Association and the Michigan Education Association). Such authorization shall be 

voluntary since it is understood that the payment of dues is not a condition of employment. 

Written notice of revocation shall be effective to cancel all deductions which are scheduled 

more than ten (10) days after the date the written notice is received by the Board. 

Pursuant to such authorization, deduction of membership dues shall be made from 16 

consecutive pays beginning in September of each year, and the Board agrees to remit to the 

Association all monies so deducted, within two (2) weeks of each payroll deduction, 

accompanied by a list of bargaining unit employees from whom the deductions have been 

made. The amount of the deduction shall be determined by the Association each year.  



13 

 

 

Hold Harmless 
 

The Association will defend and save harmless the Employer for any and all claims, 

demands, suits, and other forms of liability by reason of action taken by the Employer for the 

purpose of complying with this Article provided. 

 

1. The Employer gives timely notice of such action to the Association, and 

2. The Employer cooperates with the Association and its counsel as 

required by law, and 

3. The Association shall have complete authority to compromise and settle 

all claims which it defends under this Article. 

 

Notification 

 
The President of the Association will be notified within two (2) weeks after their hire date 

that new Employees are hired and assigned responsibilities by the Employer. 

 

 

EXHIBIT D 

 
EMPLOYEE PROTECTION/DISCIPLINE 

Article _______ 

 

A bargaining unit employee may only be disciplined for a reason which is not arbitrary or 

capricious. The term "discipline" as used in this Agreement includes warnings; reprimands; 

suspensions with or without pay; reductions in rank, compensation, or occupational advantage; 

discharges or other actions of disciplinary nature. Any such discipline shall be subject to the 

grievance procedure, hereinafter set forth, including arbitration. 

 

For discipline that involves the discharge or demotion of a tenured teacher or the non-renewal of  

a probationary teacher, the mandates, standard and procedures of the Michigan Teachers’ Tenure 

Act, MCL 38.71, et seq., shall apply.  

The discharge or nonrenewal of a probationary teacher shall not be subject to the grievance 

procedure.  

 

PROGRESSIVE DISCIPLINE 

 

The Board recognizes the value of progressive correction which normally begins with formal 

counseling, and when appropriate, the affected bargaining unit employee will be notified in 

writing of alleged violations together with suggested corrections for improvement. 



14 

 

A program of progressive discipline shall be followed, except for severe offenses that require the 

acceleration of discipline as stated below.  The following progression of discipline shall be 

followed, for each unrelated alleged violation, prior to the imposition of any other economic 

discipline on any bargaining unit employee: 

 

1. Verbal and/or Written Warning 

2. Written Reprimand 

3. Suspension without pay 

4. Discharge 

 

 

No suspension shall adversely affect any other rights or benefits under this Agreement.  The 

parties recognize that the severity of an offense may provide for the acceleration of the above 

progression of discipline.  

 

In the event a bargaining unit employee is disciplined and receives one of the forms of 

Progressive Discipline defined above, that bargaining unit employee’s evaluation rating will not 

be reduced based solely on the discipline. The evaluation rating may, however, be impacted if 

the subject of the discipline is directly related to the domains within the evaluation tool. 

 

If it is determined that the bargaining unit employee has engaged in an offense, infraction, 

misconduct, or other behavior warranting discipline, the administration’s decision as to the level 

of discipline shall be guided by principles including but not limited to the following: 

 

(a) The adequacy and credibility of the evidence derived from investigation.  

   

(b) The seriousness of the offense, infraction or misconduct. 

 

(c) The bargaining unit employee's prior disciplinary and/or employment record. 

 

EXHIBIT E 

Assignments/Vacancies/Transfers 

 
Article VIII 

 

I. Assignment Notification And Staffing 

 

A. The Board and Association recognize that an optimum educational environment includes 

a bargaining unit employee who is working within his/her area of special competence and 

in the school setting best suited to his/her personal circumstances. In no case shall a 

bargaining unit employee be assigned outside the scope of his/her teaching certificate, 

endorsement, or license.  

 



15 

 

B. Assignment shall be defined to mean the placement of the existing teaching staff into 

positions. At the middle school and high school level, when it is reasonable and not 

detrimental to the educational delivery system, the administration will attempt to limit the 

number of class assignments requiring additional preparations of class materials to three 

(3).  For example: 

 

Science/Biology  Math/Geometry 

Science/Physics or Science/Biology  

Science/Chemistry  Social Science/Am. History 

 

C. All bargaining unit employees shall be given written notice of their assignment for the 

forthcoming school year no later than June 1. For secondary bargaining unit employees, 

such notice shall include building, department(s), and a listing of probable courses to be 

taught. For elementary bargaining unit employees, such notice shall include building and 

grade level. For other bargaining unit employees, such notice shall include work locations 

and/or work schedule. Bargaining unit employees shall only be assigned in areas in which 

they are appropriately certified, licensed, or qualified. The method of notification may take 

the form of the publication or posting of the tentative building master schedule of each 

building for the following year, prior to the District Staffing and Assignment Process. In 

the event that changes are necessary, after the notice is given, the bargaining unit employee 

involved shall be notified promptly. Composition of the building master schedule is within 

the sole discretion of administration provided all bargaining unit employees are assigned 

within their certification, licensure, or qualifications and displacements from the building 

are not necessary. If displacements are necessary at the building level, then these 

displacements shall be done in accordance with the following criteria: 

 

a. Bargaining unit employees with the lowest evaluation rating shall be 

displaced. Evaluation ratings, highest to lowest, include Effective, 

Developing, Needing Support. 

b. Where evaluation ratings are the same, the bargaining unit employee with 

the least recency and length of service in the position by subject area or 

grade level shall be displaced. 

c. Where recency and length of service are the same, the bargaining unit 

employee with the least seniority shall be displaced. Where seniority is 

the same, the tie breaker number shall be used.  

 

II. Vacancies 

 
A. A temporary vacancy shall be defined as a situation where an active position within the 

bargaining unit is unoccupied or will be unoccupied for thirty (30) or more school days 

and where the bargaining unit employee involved is expected to return before the end of 

the school year, or where there are less than thirty (30) school days remaining in the school 

year.  Temporary vacancies shall be filled, on a tentative basis, by a certified laid off 

bargaining unit employee on layoff in accordance with Article IX. If the laid off  

bargaining unit employee declines the temporary position, it may be offered to another 

certified laid off bargaining unit employee. During the term of employment in the 



16 

 

temporary vacancy, he/she shall not be considered as recalled and his/her name shall 

remain on recall list.  If a laid-off bargaining unit employee declines to accept a temporary 

position he/she shall remain on the recall list and not lose seniority nor his/her rights to 

collect unemployment compensation. Laid-off bargaining unit employees shall have 

twenty-four (24) hours after notification to accept an offer for a temporary position. The 

rate of pay for a laid-off bargaining unit employee assigned to a temporary vacancy shall 

be the permanent substitute rate per day for the first sixty (60) days.  Upon reaching the 

sixty-first (61) day, the bargaining unit employee shall receive B.A. minimum salary.  

Upon reaching the ninety-first (91) day, the bargaining unit employee shall receive his/her 

regular teaching salary with the fringe benefits as specified in this Agreement.   

 

Upon the ninety-first (91) day of employment, a person from outside the bargaining unit 

shall become a member of the bargaining unit and enjoy all the rights and privileges of 

bargaining unit membership, retroactive to the first day of the vacancy. 

 

B. After publication and posting of the building master schedules with teaching assignments 

for the forthcoming year, the term “vacancy” shall be defined as a position within the 

bargaining unit presently unfilled, including newly created positions. Any vacancy that 

occurs after the beginning of the school year shall be filled in accordance with Article 

VIII, II, E and II, F.  A “vacancy” shall not include a position which is unfilled due to the 

leave of absence of a bargaining unit employee for less than a full school year and the 

bargaining unit employee is expected to return to the position following the leave of 

absence. 

 

C. The Board shall publicize the vacancies by giving written notice to the Association 

President, posting the vacancy on the district website, and sending the posting, by email, 

to all bargaining unit employees. The vacancy shall be posted for at least ten (10) work 

days. If the posting is for a job that is new to the District, then a sufficient description of 

the job content shall be included in the posting as well as the requirement of the State 

Board for certification. No position shall be permanently filled until the expiration of the 

posting period. Vacancies which occur during the summer months, when regular school 

is not in session, will be listed on the district's web site for the posting period of five (5) 

work days and sent by email to the Association President.  

 

D. A vacancy which occurs in the Intramural and Enrichment programs and for "Active" 

Clubs will be posted in all buildings and will first be filled from among the building staff, 

and then from the district staff. 

 

E. When filling a posted vacancy that exists for the forthcoming year, after the building 

master schedules are complete, the District shall consider the professional qualifications, 

attainments, and other relevant factors of all applicants within the school district. 

Vacancies will be filled as follows: 

 

1. Certified, licensed, or qualified bargaining unit employees from the recall list will be 

used to fill the vacancy in order of Article IX.    

 



17 

 

2. If there are no certified, licensed, or qualified bargaining unit employees on the recall 

list, all internal candidates, subject to Article VIII, II, E. 4, with at least three (3) full 

year of employment with the district, who meet the certification, licensure, or 

qualifications for the position may apply and those that apply may be granted an 

interview. The vacancy shall be filled in accordance with the following criteria. 

 

a. Bargaining unit employees with the highest evaluation rating shall be placed into 

the vacancy. Evaluation ratings, highest to lowest, include Effective, Developing, 

Needing Support. 

b. Where evaluation ratings are the same, the bargaining unit employee with the most 

recency and length of service in the position by subject area or grade level shall be 

placed into the vacancy.  

c. Where recency and length of service are the same, the bargaining unit employee 

with the highest seniority shall be placed into the vacancy. Where seniority is the 

same, the tie breaker number shall be used.  

 

3. If no certified, licensed, or qualified internal bargaining unit employees (with at least 3 

years of employment with the district) apply for said vacancy, said vacancy may be 

publicly posted and outside applicants may be considered through the Board’s existing 

employment policy.  

 

4. A response, in writing, indicating whether their request for transfer has been approved 

or denied will be returned to the bargaining unit employee within ten (10) working 

days. If a request for transfer has been denied, the response will indicate the reason(s) 

for denial. The following shall constitute valid reasons for denial of a voluntary 

transfer: 

 

Bargaining unit employee is not certified; 

Bargaining unit employee is not licensed; 

Bargaining unit employee is not qualified; 

Bargaining unit employee is on an improvement plan;  

Bargaining unit employee has been given or expects to be given a needing support 

rating in the current year; 

Bargaining unit employee has less than three (3) full years of employment; 

Position was filled by a bargaining unit employee with a higher evaluation rating; 

more recency and length of service, or more seniority; 

Legitimate needs of the District. 

 

F. Vacancies after August 1st and During the School Year 

 

1. When vacancies and newly created positions in the professional staff are determined to 

exist, notices shall be prominently posted on the District’s webpage for not less than 

five (5) business days prior to the closing date for filing application. A copy of said 

notice shall be sent to the Association President and by email to all bargaining unit 

employees at the time of posting.  

 



18 

 

2. The Association and the Board recognize that when vacancies occur after August 1st 

and during the school year it may be difficult to fill them from within the district 

without undue disruption to the existing instructional program. When such vacancies 

are determined to exist the usual procedures of posting and filing of applications shall 

be followed. When the vacancy is filled from within the district, the Superintendent 

will authorize the reassignment or transfer when, in his/her reasonable judgment, the 

least disruption to the existing instructional program would take place, but in no case 

later than the beginning of the next school year. 

 

G.   Vacancies for specialized positions that require specific experience and/or knowledge 

             (such as Instructional Coaches and Behavioral Interventionists) will be filled through the 

                interview process. Postings for these specialized positions must include the specific 

    experience and/or knowledge necessary to be considered qualified for the position.  

    Positions designated as specialized positions must be mutually agreed upon by the 

    District and the Association.  

 

III. Voluntary Reassignment/Transfer Requests 

 

A. A voluntary transfer shall be defined as an assignment to a different grade, department, 

building, or position as a result of a bargaining unit employee-initiated request.  Such 

requests shall be made in writing, using a preference form, by a date to be set by the District 

each year for the District Staffing and Assignment Process and after the building, special 

education, and non-classroom assignment placements are finalized, All other bargaining 

unit employee-initiated requests, not a part of the District Staffing and Assignment Process, 

shall be made in writing no later than the expiration of the posting. One (1) copy shall be 

filed with the Assistant Superintendent for Human Resources and one (1) copy shall be 

filed with the Association. The application shall set forth the reasons for the transfer, 

specify the grade, department, building, or position sought.  A request for transfer or 

reassignment, for the District Staffing and Assignment Process, may be submitted even 

though an opening does not exist at the time.  Voluntary transfers can be requested during 

the District Staffing and Assignment Process, during the summer when school is not in 

session, and for vacancies that occur at any time during the school year. If a bargaining 

unit employee desires to be considered for a vacancy that occurs after the District 

Assignment and Staffing process, the bargaining unit employee must apply for the vacancy.   

 

B. Bargaining unit employees who request a voluntary transfer shall complete an online 

application and apply for posted position(s).  Additional information may be attached.   

 

C. A bargaining unit employee transferring back to L’Anse Creuse from the International 

Academy of Macomb shall do so by March 1 pursuant to the Letter of 

Understanding/International Academy of Macomb.   

 

IV. Involuntary Reassignment/Transfer 

 

A. An involuntary reassignment/transfer shall be defined as follows: (a) a change in 

department at the secondary level; (b) a change between grade levels TK-2 and grade levels 



19 

 

3-5 at the elementary level. (c) a change in building assignment, excluding elementary 

specials and ancillary positions (Speech Language Pathologist, Social Worker, 

Psychologist, Behavioral Interventionists) assigned by the Special Education Director; (d) 

a change within the Special Education Department such as change to learning disabled, 

emotionally impaired; (e) a change from classroom teacher to non-classroom assignment 

such as interventionist or literacy coach. Bargaining unit employees and the Association 

shall be provided five (5) work days’ notice of the intention to involuntarily 

reassign/transfer the employee, and the notice shall specify the reasons for the transfer. 

 

B. An involuntary transfer and/or reassignment shall be made only in cases of emergency or 

legitimate needs of the district.  The Director of Human Resources will notify, in writing, 

the affected bargaining unit employee of the reason(s) for the involuntary transfer and/or 

reassignment. A transfer or reassignment will be considered involuntary if the bargaining 

unit employee did not formally apply for the same. Involuntary transfers shall be done in 

accordance with the following criteria but, when involving transfers within only one 

building, shall be limited to the impacted subject areas, grade levels or positions: 

 

a. Bargaining unit employees with the lowest evaluation rating shall be involuntarily 

transferred. Evaluation ratings, highest to lowest, include Effective, Developing, 

Needing Support. 

b. Where evaluation ratings are the same, the bargaining unit employee with the least 

recency and length of service in the position by subject area or grade level shall be 

involuntarily transferred.  

c. Where recency and length of service are the same, the bargaining unit employee 

with the least seniority shall be involuntarily transferred. Where seniority is the 

same, the tie breaker number shall be used.  

 

INVOLUNTARY TRANSFER EXAMPLES:  

 

Elementary:  

 

Example within building 

 

2nd grade section is eliminated and 4th grade section is added. Involuntary transfer of 2nd 

grade teacher to 4th grade done accordance with Article VIII, IV, B.  

 

2nd grade eliminated and 1st/2nd grade split is added. This is not considered an involuntary 

transfer. 

 

Example including more than one building 

 

3rd grade eliminated at one building. Involuntary transfer of teacher to an open position in 

another building will include all building teachers and done in accordance with Article 

VIII, IV, B.  

 

 



20 

 

Secondary:    

 

Example within building 

 

Additional two (2) sections of Math and two (2) less sections of Science are necessary. 

Only Math/Science certified teachers, if possible, shall be involved in the involuntary 

transfer and it shall be done in accordance with Article VIII, IV, B. If there are no 

Math/Science certified teachers within the building, more than one involuntary transfer 

may be necessary and more than two departments may be involved. The involuntary 

transfer shall be done in accordance with Article VIII, IV, B.   

 

Example including more than one building 

 

One less English teacher necessary at a middle school. Involuntary transfer from this 

middle school to an open position shall be based on certification necessary for the position 

being transferred to and done in accordance with Article VIII, IV, B.  

 

C. The District will return the bargaining unit employee to his/her previous building 

assignment no later than the following school year if the position is vacant and the 

bargaining unit employee was not transferred in accordance with Article VIII, IV, D and 

assuming that a request is made to the Human Resource Director not later than March 1, 

on a designated form.  

 

D. Notwithstanding the above, certain transfers and reassignments may be made by the 

District when in its judgment the bargaining unit employee is not as effective in a particular 

position as he/she would be in another, based on observation and evaluation data. Such 

transfers and reassignments would be considered involuntary as defined above.  

 

E. An involuntary transfer from a general education to a special education position shall not 

take place until the special education position is posted internally and externally and the 

position is unable to be filled.  

 

V. Miscellaneous/Part-Time/Shared Assignments 

 

A. When opening a new building, the administration will notify all bargaining unit  employees 

of the programs and what will be expected of the staff.   

 

B. Part-time bargaining unit employees are defined as those bargaining unit employees who 

have less than a full-time schedule as defined in Article VI.  These bargaining unit 

employees are to receive full rights, and protection as stated in this Master Agreement.  

Such bargaining unit employees will receive a salary pro-rated to the proportion of a full-

time assignment and benefits pro-rated per Article XII, K. Part-time bargaining unit 

employees requesting a full-time assignment for the next school year must do so in writing 

to the Assistant Superintendent for Human Resources by March 1st. 

 



21 

 

C. Part-time bargaining unit employees will be required to attend District Provided 

Professional Development and staff meetings on a percentage basis according to their 

proportion of a full-time assignment. A bargaining unit employee may attend all of the 

District Provided Professional Development, with approval from the Assistant 

Superintendent for Human Resources, and will be paid his/her per diem rate for all District 

Provided Professional Development attended beyond the required percentage.  

 

D. Shared Assignment - Bargaining unit employees may select job sharing, by application to 

the Human Resources Office, and upon the approval of the administration, pair a teaching 

assignment. 

 

1. Such a partnership will require special scheduling, administrative support, and 

effective communication to make this concept educationally sound. 

 

2. The job-sharing bargaining unit employees will receive a full year's credit on the 

seniority list and salary schedule.  The position must be applied for by March 1st 

each year for the following school year. 

 

3. Denial of such requests will not be subject to the grievance procedure. 

 

4. Job sharing bargaining unit employees will be responsible for all grade 

level/department and School Improvement meetings as mutually agreed upon 

between the bargaining unit employees and the building principal on a building by 

building basis.  Each plan is to be submitted with the request for shared time and 

signed by all parties involved. 

 

E. The positions or any part thereof presently in the bargaining unit shall not be transferred to 

persons not covered by the Agreement. 

 

F. The Board agrees that supervisors or non-unit personnel shall not be used at any time to 

displace employees regularly employed in the bargaining unit, except in emergencies when 

bargaining unit employees are not available or have refused to do the work. 

 

G. The Board shall not participate in any form of multi-district pre-kindergarten through grade 

twelve consortium in order to delegate, transfer, or receive services or functions of the kind 

and nature currently being provided by the employees of the Association's bargaining unit.  

No L'Anse Creuse bargaining unit employee will be displaced and/or laid off due to L'Anse 

Creuse students transferring to classes offered by any other member districts of that 

consortium. L'Anse Creuse shall be the employer of record for all L'Anse Creuse 

bargaining unit employees.  This provision is not applicable to the Juvenile Justice Center 

staff. 

 

 

 

 



22 

 

EXHIBIT F 
 

ASSOCIATION REPRESENTATION – Replaces Page 3, Article II, F 

 

A bargaining unit employee, represented by an exclusive bargaining agent under the Public  

Employment Relations Act shall, upon request, be entitled to Association representation 

in any case where an allegation has been made against the employee by a parent, student or 

colleague that is the subject of the meeting or if the administration suspects the bargaining 

unit employee may have committed some offense.  

 

The Association representative shall be informed of the subject matter of any meeting a 

bargaining unit employee is required to attend in advance of the meeting and shall be permitted 

to meet privately with the bargaining unit employee in advance of such a required meeting.  

 

The bargaining unit employee shall be entitled to the specific representative of their choice but if 

that person is not immediately available the meeting will not be unreasonably delayed. When a 

request for such representation is made, no action shall be taken with respect to the bargaining 

unit employee until such representative of the Association is present.   

 

COMPLAINTS AND NOTIFICATION – Add to Article II 

Except when immediate action is necessary for the health, safety, and welfare of students, a 

bargaining unit employee shall at all times be entitled to notification of any infraction of rules or 

delinquency in professional performance and be guaranteed a prearranged bargaining unit 

employee - administrative meeting for giving any warning, reprimand, or other disciplinary 

action concerning the infraction of rules or delinquency in professional performance.   

No material relating to student, parent, or school personnel complaints originating after initial 

employment will be placed in a bargaining unit employee’s personnel file unless the bargaining 

unit employee has been provided a copy of the material.  

 

Complaints against the bargaining unit employee shall be put in writing with names of the 

complainants, administrative action taken, and remedy clearly stated.  The bargaining unit  

employee may submit a written notation or reply regarding any material, including  

complaints, and the same shall be attached to the file copy of the material in question. 

When material is to be placed in a bargaining unit employee's file, the affected bargaining 

unit employee shall review and sign said material. Such signature shall be understood to 

indicate awareness of the material but in no instance shall said signature be interpreted to 

mean agreement with the content of the material. 

 

Complaints, as defined in this section, shall not be useable for the purposes of annual 

bargaining unit employee performance evaluations unless the complaint is substantiated and 

discussed with the bargaining unit employee. 

 

Any alleged serious or repetitious infractions of rules or delinquency in professional performance 

not brought to a bargaining unit employee’s attention within ten (10) work days, after coming to 

the attention of administration, shall not be the subject of further evaluation or record.  



23 

 

MISCELLANEOUS  PROTECTIONS – Add to page 36, Article VII, M 

 

Neither the mentor nor the mentee shall be permitted to participate in any matter related to the 

evaluation of the other. The mentor shall not be called as a witness in any grievance or 

administrative hearing involving the mentee nor shall the mentee be called as a witness in any 

grievance or administrative hearing involving the mentor, unless the administrative hearing or 

grievance is related to misconduct or gross negligence. 

PERSONNEL FILE – Replaces Page 39, Article VII, T, 1 

 

A bargaining unit employee will have the right to review, upon request, the contents of his/her 

official Personnel File in the Human Resources Office, exclusive of credentials and letters of  

recommendation, and to have a representative of the Association accompany him/her in such 

review.  Other examination of a bargaining unit employee's Personnel File shall be limited to 

qualified supervisory personnel.  

  

No “verbal warnings” shall be contained in the Personnel File.  Any such warning deemed a  

“verbal warning” shall be communicated to the individual and there shall be no written record  

of such in the bargaining unit employee’s Personnel File. 

 

A bargaining unit employee may provide a response to any materials included in the Personnel 

File and the appropriate administrator will be provided with a copy of same.  The response shall 

become a part of the Personnel File.    

 

All discipline or complaints that are four (4) years or older shall be expunged from the  

Personnel File at the bargaining unit employee’s request, except as limited by any existing 

laws. 

 

EXHIBIT G 
 

Reduction and Recall   

 

ARTICLE IX 

 

 

Bargaining unit employees who successfully complete a probationary period are entitled to 

continuous employment.  Seniority shall mean continuous employment in the L’Anse Creuse 

Public Schools school district as a L’Anse Creuse Education Association bargaining unit 

employee.  Seniority shall also accrue to bargaining unit employees who are on disability leave, 

Family Medical Leave Act (FMLA), bargaining unit employees who are on layoff status, 

bargaining unit employees on Association leave time for unpaid leave of absence, except as 

previously stated, shall not count toward seniority. The starting date for seniority credit shall be 

the first bargaining unit employee contract calendar day worked. 

 

By February 21st of each school year, the Board, after consultation with the Association, shall 

publish and deliver to each building representative a copy of the revised seniority list.  The Board 



24 

 

shall also deliver ten (10) copies of the revised list to the Association.  Using the criteria established 

in this section, the list shall contain the ranking of each bargaining unit employee and shall contain 

the number of years of seniority each bargaining unit employee has accrued.  The list shall also 

contain the certification(s) of each bargaining unit employee. The list shall be binding in all cases 

involving seniority. 

 

REDUCTION PROCEDURE 

When it is determined by the District that it is necessary to conduct a staffing and/or program 

reduction or any other personnel determination that results in the elimination of a position, said 

staffing decisions shall be based on retaining effective teachers.  In the event there is a reduction 

of personnel, the parties will confer and in order to promote an orderly reduction in personnel, the 

following procedures will be used: 

 

The Superintendent or designee shall determine the positions proposed to be eliminated and shall 

meet with the Association President at least ten (10) days before the meeting at which the Board 

will consider proposed layoffs for the purpose of discussion and reviewing the proposed layoffs 

and related matters. Representatives from the Association will be present at the meeting where the 

notifications for reduction in staff are developed.  The Association shall receive written 

copies of said notifications within five (5) days of their development. 

 

Bargaining unit employee’s being laid off between May 31st and the start of the school year shall 

receive a fifteen (15) calendar day notice, in writing.  All other layoffs shall require a thirty (30) 

calendar day notice in writing.  

 

Documentation to support State licensure, authorization, or certification requirements and 

additional hours shall be submitted to the Personnel Office by January 15th. A bargaining unit 

employee, however, may declare additional State licensure, authorization, or certification 

requirements, supported by proof of that State licensure, authorization, or certification, to the 

Personnel Office before August 1st to be considered for a vacated position. If such State 

licensure, authorization, or certification is not achieved, the bargaining unit employee shall not be 

employed for the vacated position. 

 

Order of Reduction 

In the event of layoff the order of reduction for bargaining unit employees shall be as follows: 

 

1. Non-certified bargaining unit employees, in positions that require certification, and 

temporary employees will be laid off first, provided there are certified and qualified 

bargaining unit employees to replace them as allowed by law. 

 

2. If reduction is still necessary, then probationary bargaining unit employees, tenured 

bargaining unit employees, and bargaining unit employees in positions that do not require 

certification will be laid off based on the following: 

 



25 

 

a. Bargaining unit members with the highest evaluation rating shall be retained. 

Evaluation ratings, highest to lowest, include Effective, Developing, Needing 

Support. 

 

b. Where evaluation ratings are the same, the bargaining unit members with the most 

years of experience in the grade level (elementary) or subject (secondary) shall be 

retained. Grade level credit for teaching in grades Pre-K through 5 shall count 

towards any “elementary vacancy.” Subject, at the middle school level shall be 

defined as any position relevant to the subject included in the vacancy (i.e. Math, 

Science, English, Social Studies, etc.). Subject at the high school level shall be 

defined as any position relevant to the subject included in the vacancy (i.e. Math, 

Science, English, Social Studies, etc.). For bargaining unit employees, in positions 

that do not required certification, years of experience shall be defined as years of 

experience in that position (i.e. Counselor, SLP, Social Worker, etc.). For counseling 

positions, years of experience shall also include grade level and/or subject area 

experience in the classroom. For specialized positions, as defined in Article VIII, II, 

G, bargaining unit members with the specific experience and/or knowledge for the 

position, included in the most recent posting, shall be retained in order of seniority.  

 

c. Where evaluation ratings and years of experience are the same, the bargaining unit 

member with the highest seniority shall be retained. Where seniority is the same, the 

tie breaker number shall be used.  

 

3. The Board shall give written notice of layoff by sending a registered letter or certified 

letter to the bargaining unit employee at his/her last known address.  It shall be the 

responsibility of the bargaining unit employee to notify the Board of any change in 

address. 

 

4. Bargaining unit employees, on the district insurance, who are laid off shall have 

insurance benefits continued and paid by the Board throughout the summer recess 

(August 31st) for layoffs that occur at the end of the school year. For layoffs that occur 

during the school year, bargaining unit employees shall have insurance benefits continued 

and paid for by the Board until the end of the month that follows the date of layoff. After 

that, a laid off bargaining unit employee may continue his/her insurance benefits in 

accordance with the Carrier’s layoff/benefit continuation policy inclusive of paying the 

subscriber group rate premium for the Consolidated Omnibus Reconciliation Act of 1985 

(COBRA). 

 

5. The Association recognizes that the decision of the Board as to whether there shall be 

layoffs is final.  

 

 



26 

 

 

Recall Procedure 

No positions shall be declared vacant to external applicants if there are people on layoff status 

who have the appropriate State licensure, authorization, or certification to be recalled to an 

available 

position.  

 

1. If there are bargaining unit positions that are created and/or vacant, after voluntary transfers 

are completed, laid off bargaining unit employees who are certified and qualified or licensed 

for the position(s) will be given the first opportunity to fill such positions.  Notification shall 

be given to all laid off bargaining unit employees and the vacancy or vacancies shall be filled 

based on the following: 

 

a. Bargaining unit members with the highest evaluation rating shall be offered the 

position. Evaluation ratings, highest to lowest, include Effective, Developing, 

Needing Support.  

 

b. Where evaluation ratings are the same, the bargaining unit members with the most 

years of experience in the grade level (elementary) or subject (secondary) shall be 

offered the position. Grade level credit for teaching in grades Pre-K through 5 shall 

count towards any “elementary vacancy.” Subject, at the middle school level shall be 

defined as any position relevant to the subject included in the vacancy (i.e. Math, 

Science, English, Social Studies, etc.). Subject at the high school level shall be 

defined as any position relevant to the subject included in the vacancy (i.e. Math, 

Science, English, Social Studies, etc.). For bargaining unit positions that do not 

require certification, years of experience shall be defined as years of experience in 

that position (i.e., Counselor, SLP, Social Worker, etc.). For counseling positions, 

years of experience shall also include grade level and/or subject area experience in 

the classroom. For specialized positions, as defined in Article VIII, II, G, bargaining 

unit members with the specific experience and/or knowledge for the position, 

included in the most recent posting, shall be offered the position in order of 

seniority.  

 

c. Where evaluation ratings and years of experience are the same, the bargaining unit 

member with the highest seniority shall be offered the position. Where seniority is 

the same, the tie breaker number shall be used.  

 

2. Any laid off bargaining unit employee to whom notice of recall was sent by certified mail, 

return receipt requested, must notify the Board of the acceptance of the position within seven 

(7) calendar days of the date the recall notice was mailed from the Board Office. If the laid-

off bargaining unit employee fails to accept the offered full-time position, that bargaining 

unit member shall be dropped from the recall list.  

 



27 

 

3. It is the responsibility of the laid-off bargaining unit employee to notify the Personnel Office 

by certified mail, return receipt requested, of any change in his/her mailing address. 

 

4. A laid off bargaining unit employee shall retain recall rights for a period of three (3) years 

following the layoff.  

 

5. Recalled bargaining unit employees shall be notified by mail, sent certified, to the last known 

address as supplied by the bargaining unit employee to the Board.  Failure to respond to the 

offer of employment within ten (10) calendar days after the receipt of said mailing shall 

result in the termination of employment.  However, bargaining unit employees may refuse 

offers of less than full time or less than a full year of employment and still retain their 

placement on the recall list.  A bargaining unit employee may, at his/her option, request 

removal from the recall list, for the school year relative to part-time positions.  Once a 

bargaining unit employee has removed himself/herself from the recall list, the Board is not 

obligated to notify said bargaining unit employee of a part-time position for that school year. 

Any bargaining unit employee on leave is subject to the reduction in staff and recall 

procedures in this Article. Representatives from the Association will be present at the 

meeting where the notifications for recall are developed.  The Association shall receive 

written copies of said notifications within five (5) days of their development. 

 

 

 



S M T W Th F S S M T W Th F S S M T W Th F S S M T W Th F S

1 2 1 2 3 4 5 6 1 2 3 4 1

3 4 5 6 7 8 9 7 8 9 10 11 12 13 5 6 7 8 9 10 11 2 3 4 5 6 7 8

10 11 12 13 14 15 16 14 15 16 17 18 19 20 12 13 14 15 16 17 18 9 10 11 12 13 14 15

17 18 19 20 21 22 23 21 22 23 24 25 26 27 19 20 21 22 23 24 25 16 17 18 19 20 21 22

24 25 26 27 28 29 30 28 29 30 26 27 28 29 30 31 23 24 25 26 27 28 29

31 30

S M T W Th F S S M T W Th F S S M T W Th F S S M T W Th F S

1 2 3 4 5 6 1 2 3 1 2 3 4 5 6 7

7 8 9 10 11 12 13 4 5 6 7 8 9 10 1 2 3 4 5 6 7 8 9 10 11 12 13 14

14 15 16 17 18 19 20 11 12 13 14 15 16 17 8 9 10 11 12 13 14 15 16 17 18 19 20 21

21 22 23 24 25 26 27 18 19 20 21 22 23 24 15 16 17 18 19 20 21 22 23 24 25 26 27 28

28 29 30 31 25 26 27 28 29 30 31 22 23 24 25 26 27 28 29 30 31

S M T W Th F S S M T W Th F S S M T W Th F S S M T W Th F S

1 2 3 4 1 2 1 2 3 4 5 6 1 2 3 4

5 6 7 8 9 10 11 3 4 5 6 7 8 9 7 8 9 10 11 12 13 5 6 7 8 9 10 11

12 13 14 15 16 17 18 10 11 12 13 14 15 16 14 15 16 17 18 19 20 12 13 14 15 16 17 18

19 20 21 22 23 24 25 17 18 19 20 21 22 23 21 22 23 24 25 26 27 19 20 21 22 23 24 25

26 27 28 29 30 24 25 26 27 28 29 30 28 29 30 26 27 28 29 30 31

31

CALENDAR KEY

MS PT Conferences No School full or half First day of School

HS PT Conferences HS Exam Days PD

EL PT Conferences MS Record Days SAT PSAT

EL Records Evening Conference

HS COMP DAY HS Records, ES & MS COMP

COMP DAY

HS School Records

15 19 17

19 18 19 5

INSTRUCTIONAL/WORK DAYS 180 6 21 23 16 520 18 20

16 15 19 17

DEC JAN FEB

STUDENT DAYS 175 4 21 22

APRIL MAY JUNE JULY

TOTAL AUG SEPT OCT NOV JUNMARCH APRIL MAY

DECEMBER Jan-26 FEBRUARY MARCH

SCHOOL CALENDAR 2025-2026

AUGUST 2025 SEPTEMBER OCTOBER NOVEMBER



Keith Howell 
 SUPERINTENDENT  

 

SUPPORT SERVICES 
 

Don Gratton 
                 DIRECTOR FOR OPERATIONS 

 

Randy T. Baker 
SUPERVISOR FOR  

MAINTENANCE & CUSTODIAL SERVICES  
 

Kim Bryer and Holly Vitale 
SUPERVISORs FOR TRANSPORTATION 

24400 F.V. PANKOW BOULEVARD CLINTON TOWNSHIP, MI  48036-1305 586-783-6550 586-783-6556 FAX WWW.LC-PS.ORG 

NOTICE OF NONDISCRIMINATION.  It is the policy of L’Anse Creuse Public Schools not to discriminate on the basis of race, color, religion, national origin or ancestry, gender, age, disability, height, weight or marital status 

in its programs, services, activities, or employment.  Inquiries related to nondiscrimination policies should be directed to: Civil Rights Coordinator, Assistant Superintendent for Human Resources, L’Anse Creuse Public Schools, 

Harry L. Wheeler Community Center and Administrative Offices, 24076 F. V. Pankow Blvd., Clinton Twp.,, MI 48036, and (586) 783-6300. Nondiscrimination inquiries related to disability should be directed to:  Section 504 

Coordinator, Director for Special Education, (586) 783-6300. 
 

LARRY F. BRENDER SUPPORT SERVICES CENTER 

 
 

 

  
 
 

Initiator:  Don Gratton 
 
Board Meeting: June 23, 2025 
 
Agenda Item:  Lawn Mower Purchase for Grounds 
 

 Board Action Required     CONFIDENTIAL 
 Informational Material 
 Other       _______________________ 

 
 
 

Background: 
Currently, we maintain approximately 350 acres of grass in the district, using lawn mowers that 
are circa 2008, that were purchased with the last bond. The mowers are worn out, and it is 
getting hard to find repair parts. 
 
 
Current Status: 
After searching the state purchasing pages and various purchasing consortiums. I was able to 
find Gravely Zero turn mowers on the Sourcewell site, (which we are a member of) for 
$12,444.12 each. I compared the Gravely mower to a compatible Exmark Zero turn mower 
which sells for $15,129.00. I would like to purchase Gravely Zero turn mowers, using bond 
dollars for the purchase. 
 
 
Future Direction (Notes or Comments)/Recommended Motion: 
Administration is seeking Board approval for the purchase of 3 Gravely Pro-Turn, Zero turn lawn 
mowers using the Sourcewell contract 112624-ACO. The cost of each mower is $12,444.12 for a 
total of $37,332.36. 

L.1. 



DATE: June 12, 2025
CONTRACT: Sourcewell Contract

CONTRACT NO.: 112624-ACO
CONTRACT PERIOD: February 01, 2025 - January 31, 2029

TIN: 39-0135100

TO: Attn:  Don Gratton REQUESTED DEALER: T B D
L'Anse Creuse Public Schools
Phone:  (586) 531-0608
E-mail:  grattdo@lc-ps.org

Sourcewell ID #:  12512

CONTACT PHONE

920-756-4665

MODEL QTY CONTRACT PRICE LINE TOTAL

992526 3 12,444.12$ 37,332.36$ 

-$ 

-$ 

-$ 

-$ 

-$ 

SUBTOTAL 37,332.36$ 
FREIGHT $0.00

TOTAL 37,332.36$ 

DESCRIPTION

THANK YOU FOR CONSIDERING A GRAVELY COMMERCIAL MOWER!

QUOTE NO.  

06122025-7

Pro-Turn® 360 - 31 hp Kawasaki FX921V, 

w/60" 7 Gauge X-Factor® 3 deck, Parker 

HTJ Transaxles, Ogura GT2.75

CONTACT NAME

Tyler Walimaa

P.O. SUBMITTAL

TWALIMAA@ARIENSCO.COM

mailto:twalimaa@ariensco.com
mailto:twalimaa@ariensco.com
mailto:twalimaa@ariensco.com


Keith Howell 
 SUPERINTENDENT  

 

SUPPORT SERVICES 
 

Don Gratton 
                 DIRECTOR FOR OPERATIONS 

 

Randy T. Baker 
SUPERVISOR FOR  

MAINTENANCE & CUSTODIAL SERVICES  
 

Kim Bryer and Holly Vitale 
SUPERVISORs FOR TRANSPORTATION 

24400 F.V. PANKOW BOULEVARD CLINTON TOWNSHIP, MI  48036-1305 586-783-6550 586-783-6556 FAX WWW.LC-PS.ORG 

NOTICE OF NONDISCRIMINATION.  It is the policy of L’Anse Creuse Public Schools not to discriminate on the basis of race, color, religion, national origin or ancestry, gender, age, disability, height, weight or marital status 

in its programs, services, activities, or employment.  Inquiries related to nondiscrimination policies should be directed to: Civil Rights Coordinator, Assistant Superintendent for Human Resources, L’Anse Creuse Public Schools, 

Harry L. Wheeler Community Center and Administrative Offices, 24076 F. V. Pankow Blvd., Clinton Twp.,, MI 48036, and (586) 783-6300. Nondiscrimination inquiries related to disability should be directed to:  Section 504 

Coordinator, Director for Special Education, (586) 783-6300. 
 

LARRY F. BRENDER SUPPORT SERVICES CENTER 

 
 

 

  
 
 

Initiator:  Don Gratton 
 
Board Meeting: June 23, 2025 
 
Agenda Item:  Floor Machine for Yacks Elementary 
 

 Board Action Required     CONFIDENTIAL 
 Informational Material 
 Other       _______________________ 

 
 
 

Background: 
As we are replacing the carpeted hallways in Yacks Elementary School with hard surface 
flooring, the current floor machine is in need of replacement.  
 
 
Current Status: 
Quotes were solicited for a New Advance SC1500 20-inch Ecoflex Floor Scrubber which is a 
Commercial Stand On Floor Scrubber. 3 quotes were received from, Imperial Dade - $10,081.90, 
Advance Technical Cleaning Solutions - $12,199.00 and Total Repair Services Inc. - $12,500.00. 
 
 
Future Direction (Notes or Comments)/Recommended Motion: 
Administration is seeking Board approval for the purchase of 1 New Advance SC1500 20 inch 
Ecoflex Rider Floor Scrubber, to replace the existing floor machine at Yacks Elementary School. 
The purchase would be from Imperial Dade for the price of $10,081.90. The cost would be a 
bond acceptable purchase. 

L.2. 









Keith Howell 
 SUPERINTENDENT  

 

SUPPORT SERVICES 
 

Don Gratton 
                 DIRECTOR FOR OPERATIONS 

 

Randy T. Baker 
SUPERVISOR FOR  

MAINTENANCE & CUSTODIAL SERVICES  
 

Kim Bryer and Holly Vitale 
SUPERVISORs FOR TRANSPORTATION 

24400 F.V. PANKOW BOULEVARD CLINTON TOWNSHIP, MI  48036-1305 586-783-6550 586-783-6556 FAX WWW.LC-PS.ORG 

NOTICE OF NONDISCRIMINATION.  It is the policy of L’Anse Creuse Public Schools not to discriminate on the basis of race, color, religion, national origin or ancestry, gender, age, disability, height, weight or marital status 

in its programs, services, activities, or employment.  Inquiries related to nondiscrimination policies should be directed to: Civil Rights Coordinator, Assistant Superintendent for Human Resources, L’Anse Creuse Public Schools, 

Harry L. Wheeler Community Center and Administrative Offices, 24076 F. V. Pankow Blvd., Clinton Twp.,, MI 48036, and (586) 783-6300. Nondiscrimination inquiries related to disability should be directed to:  Section 504 

Coordinator, Director for Special Education, (586) 783-6300. 
 

LARRY F. BRENDER SUPPORT SERVICES CENTER 

 
 

 

  
 
 

Initiator:  Don Gratton  
 
Board Meeting: June 23, 2025 
 
Agenda Item:  Pool Dehumidification Project 
 

 Board Action Required     CONFIDENTIAL 
 Informational Material 
 Other       _______________________ 

 
 
 

Background: 
As part of the 2024 Bond, the replacement of the pool area dehumidification units at both High 
Schools were identified as a critical need. Partners in Architecture, along with their engineering 
team, designed and specified the equipment necessary to replace the dehumidification units 
and other associated equipment in the pool area. 
 
 
Current Status: 
Multiple bids were solicited for multiple categories associated with the Pool Dehumidification 
Project (see attached bid tabs). The categories were, Structural Steel, Mechanical and Electrical. 
Four alternates were accepted to replace aging sump pumps at both buildings. Post bid 
interviews were held with the lowest bidding companies, with Partners in Architecture, Barton 
Malow and myself in attendance. Bids with alternates came in at $43,800.00. 
 
 
Future Direction (Notes or Comments)/Recommended Motion: 
Administration is seeking the Board to approve the following contracts for Structural Steel: 
Great Lakes Welding and Fabrication, LLC for $624,000.00, Mechanical: Contrast Mechanical, 
Inc. for $1,269,800.00 and Electrical: Joule Electrical Contracting for $153,100.00 and a project 
contingency of $71,483.00, for a total project cost of $2,118,383.00.  

L.3. 



                                                                                             Building Innovative Solutions   

Barton Malow Builders | 26500 American Dr. Southfield, MI 48034 

 

 
June 19, 2025 
 
Mr. Keith Howell 
Superintendent 
L’Anse Creuse Public Schools 
24076 F.V. Pankow Boulevard   
Clinton Township, MI 48036 
 
Subject: Bid Package No. 25-05 Award Recommendations     

 
Dear Mr. Howell, 
 
On June 4, 2025, formal Bids were received for L’Anse Creuse Public Schools Bid Package 25-05, 
Pool Mechanical Units at LCHS and HSN, including pool sump pump replacement.  Upon review of 
the proposals and a post-bid interview with the lowest bidders in conjunction with the Partners in 
Architecture, Barton Malow is prepared to recommend the following actions concerning the award 
of a contract.   

The Base Bid consists of replacing the pool dehumidification units at both L’Anse Creuse High 
School and L’Anse Creuse High School – North, including steel reinforcements to accommodate the 
new units and refurbishing the steel maintenance platforms/grillage. 

To optimize bid results, multiple elements of the project were separated from the Base Bid as 
Alternates.  As the attached bid tabulation summary indicates, Alternates 3A, 3B, 4A, and 4B are 
included in the recommended award amounts.  Alternates 1A, 1B, 2A, and 2B are not included in 
the recommendation after discussions with the Bond Team during the 6/11/2025 OAC meeting.  

The accepted alternate descriptions are as follows: 
 

o Alternate #3A: Replace Drain Tile Sump Pumps at LCHS. 
 

o Alternate #3B: Replace Drain Tile Sump Pumps at HSN. 
 

o Alternate #4A: Replace Standpipe Sump Pumps at LCHS. 
 

o Alternate #4B: Replace Standpipe Sump Pumps at HSN. 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



                                                                                             Building Innovative Solutions   

Barton Malow Builders | 26500 American Dr. Southfield, MI 48034 

 

We recommend the following contract award: 

Bid Category #050000 Structural Steel  

Great Lakes Welding and Fabrication, LLC (Dryden, MI)                      $624,000.00  

 

Bid Category #230000 Mechanical 

Contrast Mechanical, Inc. (Romeo, MI)                     $1,269,800.00  

  

Bid Category #260000 Electrical   

Joule Electrical Contracting (Armada, MI)                                                     $153,100.00   

 
 

Not included in the contract award amount is a construction contingency for unforeseen conditions 
and additional work.  With an allocated contingency of $71,483.00, the total project costs of 
$2,118,383.00 are within the total budgeted amount for the high school athletic projects.  General 
Conditions costs for such items as final cleaning, dumpsters, and permitting are a portion of the 
indirect costs identified in the bond application. 

 
Sincerely, 

 

Samuel Esser, P.E., CCM, LEED AP 
Sr. Project Manager 
 
Attachments:   L’Anse Creuse Public Schools BP #25-05 Bid Tabs  
 
cc:  K. Konon (LCPS), D. Gratton (LCPS), M. Malone (PIA), J. Warner (BMB), J. Rogers (BMB) 



Contractor Award Amount LCHS HSN Base Bid

Alternate 1A: 

Replace Pool 

Boiler at LCHS

Alternate 

1B:Replace Pool 

Boiler at HSN

Alternate 2A: 

Replace Vent 

Fans, Unit 

Heaters, 

Damper Motors 

at LCHS

Alternate 

2B:Replace Vent 

Fans,Unit 

Heaters,Damper 

Motors at HSN

Alternate 3A: 

Replace Drain 

Tile Sump 

Pumps at LCHS

Alternate 3B: 

Replace Drain 

Tile Sump 

Pumps at HSN

Alternate 

4A:Replace 

Standpipe Sump 

Pumps at LCHS

Alternate 4B: 

Replace 

Standpipe Sump 

Pumps at HSN

VE 1(Wire 

Wheel Hand 

Prep Method)

Nelson Iron Works (WITHDREW) $99,990.00 $49,400.00 $149,390.00

Great Lakes Welding and 

Fabrication, LLC.
$624,000.00

$340,000.00 $340,000.00 $680,000.00 -$56,000.00

Conti, LLC. $602,300.00 $597,710.00 $1,200,010.00 $115,811.00 $115,811.00 $70,302.00 $70,302.00 $37,202.00 $37,202.00 $37,152.00 $37,152.00

Ecker Mechanical Contractors, Inc. $608,376.00 $608,376.00 $1,216,752.00 $150,457.00 $150,457.00 $74,092.00 $74,092.00 $33,694.00 $33,694.00 $22,120.00 $22,120.00

Contrast Mechanical, Inc. $1,269,800.00 $613,000.00 $613,000.00 $1,226,000.00 $122,000.00 $122,000.00 $46,000.00 $46,000.00 $15,000.00 $15,000.00 $6,900.00 $6,900.00

Miller-Boldt, Inc. $618,000.00 $618,000.00 $1,236,000.00 $148,000.00 $148,000.00 $69,000.00 $69,000.00 $48,000.00 $48,000.00 $16,000.00 $16,000.00

Watson Bros. Service Co. Inc. $651,500.00 $651,500.00 $1,303,000.00 $113,000.00 $113,000.00 $85,000.00 $85,000.00 $25,000.00 $25,000.00 $14,500.00 $14,500.00

Goyette Mechanical Co., Inc. $662,067.00 $641,478.00 $1,303,545.00 $127,356.00 $127,356.00 $63,581.00 $63,581.00 $20,815.00 $20,815.00 $10,947.00 $10,947.00

Joule Electrical Contracting $153,100.00 $76,550.00 $76,550.00 $153,100.00 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0

Great Lakes Power & Lighting, Inc. $80,000.00 $86,000.00 $166,000.00 $2,000.00 $2,000.00 $7,000.00 $6,000.00 $3,000.00 $3,000.00 $3,000.00 $3,000.00

Brenner Contracting DBA Brenner 

Electric $122,500.00 $122,500.00 $245,000.00 $5,000.00 $5,000.00 $10,250.00 $10,250.00 $6,500.00 $6,500.00 $5,000.00 $5,000.00

Total  $2,046,900.00

Contingency $71,483.00 3.49%

Total including Contingency $2,118,383.00

26 0000 Electrical

L'Anse Creuse Public Schools BP#25-05 Pool Mechanical Units

Bid Tabulation

05 0000 Structural Steel

23 0000 Mechanical




	6.23.25 Regular Meeting Agenda
	G.2. #0406 Rec for Exp combined
	#0406 Expulsion Resolution
	Executive Summary Sheet #0406
	scan_2025-05-07-07-47-45
	#0406 Expulsion Hearing Letter J. Slaughter
	#0406 Expulsion Hearing Letter R. King
	Closed Session Request Form - Parent or Guardian 6.23.25

	G.3. #0409 Rec for Exp combined
	#0409 Expulsion Resolution
	Executive Summary Sheet #0409
	scan_2025-06-17-16-17-59
	#0409 Expulsion Hearing Letter
	#0409 Closed Session Request Form - Parent or Guardian 6.23.25

	G.4. #0413 Rec for Exp combined
	#0413 Expulsion Resolution
	Executive Summary Sheet #0413
	scan_2025-06-17-16-29-23
	#0413 Expulsion Hearing Letter
	#0413 Closed Session Request Form - Parent or Guardian 6.23.25

	G.5. #0419 Rec for Exp combined
	#0419 Expulsion Resolution
	Executive Summary Sheet #0419
	scan_2025-06-11-13-27-01
	Grade Changes - Letter from Teacher

	H.1. Budget Report & Quarterly Budget Update
	H.2. Payment Registers
	H.4. Summary of Investments & Wire ACH Transfers
	H.5. Employment Recommendations - June 23, 2025 combined
	3-Box Employment Recommendations -6-23-2025
	Employment Recommendations - June 23, 2025
	McBride, Lindsey - LOA
	McNamara, Sherlyn - LOA

	H.6.  Student Travel 6.23.25
	I.1.  MHSAA 6.23.25
	I.1. MHSAA 3 Box 6.23.25 combined
	I.1. MHSAA Membership Resolution Scan - edited

	J.1. Truth-in-Budget Hearing
	J.2. Recommendation to Accept the Final Amended Budget FY25
	J.3. Recommendation to Accept the Budget FY26
	J.4. Recommendation for District's Annual Renewal of Insurance with M.A.I.S.L
	J.5. Recommendation for Workers Compensation Insurance
	L.1. Zero turn mowers combined
	L.1. Zero turn mowers
	L.1. LCPS Quote - 992526 - 3

	L.2. Auto Scrubber combined
	L.2. Auto Scrubber
	L.2. Quotes

	M.2. MASB Invoice 25-26 School Year
	K.1. 3-Box -LOU- LCEA-6-23-2025 combined.pdf
	3-Box -LOU- LCEA-6-23-2025
	LOU -LCEA 6-23-2025
	Teacher Calendar - FINAL 6.17.2025

	I.1. MHSAA 3 Box 6.23.25 combined.pdf
	I.1. MHSAA 3 Box 6.23.25
	I.1. MHSAA Membership Resolution Scan - edited

	L.3. Pool Dehumidification Units 3 Box combined.pdf
	L.3. Pool Dehumidification Units 3 Box
	L.3. LCPS BP25-05 Award Rec 6-19-25

	H.5. Employment Recommendations - June 23, 2025 combined.pdf
	3-Box Employment Recommendations -6-23-2025
	Employment Recommendations - June 23, 2025
	McBride, Lindsey - LOA
	McNamara, Sherlyn - LOA




